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Financial Highlights
BB E

For the year ended 31 March

BZ3A3MALEE

2021 2020 Change
HK$000 HK$'000 # &)

FET FET
Revenue B 323,382 63,633 408.2%
Gross profit EF 100,000 61,206 63.4%
Gross profit margin Esplpes 30.9% 96.2% (65.3)%
Profit (loss) for the year attributable N2 &) #E A A FE(E A 22,308 (297755) N/A
to owners of the Company FEmF(EE) !
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per & & £ 7K K # & & 7| 0.25 (3.26) N/A
share (HK$) (Es18) &) i A

As at 31 March

MW3A31H

2021 2020 Change
HK$000 HK$'000 = E)

FET FET
Net asset value BEFHE 3,230,445 3,235,821 (0.2)%
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFEET) 39.3 35.4 11.0%

Net Assets & Net Asset Value per share
attributable to owners of the Company

AAREBANBEEEFEREREEFE

HK$ million
BEBT

4,000 - HK$40.2 HK$39.3
Hks3so KO HKS38.8  |yeas, 1

3,547
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2,852

2,000 -

1,000 A

0

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
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Segment Revenue

DEEXRE
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

It has been more than a year since the COVID-19 pandemic
disrupted our lives. The global economic was deteriorated. The
outbreak made global downturn and widespread economic and
social disruption. Property market in Hong Kong was challenging.
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “"Group”) continued its
development strategies to achieve an overall stable performance.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$323,382,000 (2020: approximately:
HK$63,633,000), representing an increase of approximately
HK$259,749,000 or approximately 408.2% as compared to the
corresponding year in 2020. The profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company was approximately HK$22,308,000
(2020: loss of approximately HK$297,755,000). Gross profit margin
for the year was approximately 30.9%, compared to last year of
approximately 96.2%. The basic and diluted earnings per share
amounted approximately to HK$0.25 for the year ended 31 March
2021, as compared with loss per share of HK$3.26 for last year.

Property Sales

While the property market in Hong Kong was still subduing
by COVID-19 infections, the low interest rate environment is
expected to continue which has given homebuyers a big boost in
purchasing power in the property market. The Group recorded a
notable contribution from property sales in the year as compared
to recorded as nil with no roll out new property development
projects in the last corresponding year, launches of sale of “Ayton”
during the year generated approximately 85% of total revenue of
the Group. The Group will continue to identify suitable land for
development purpose.

2020/214F ¥
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Property Rental

The overall contribution from property rental during the year
decreased by approximately 15.8% as compared to the last
corresponding year, attributable mainly to the impact of the
on-going pandemic and the economic downturn results in the
demand in market was weak and availability rise. Solutions were
devised to assist tenants to ease their financial pressure. The
Group will continue to strengthen its investment property portfolio
for stable recurrent income and increase the rental yields for
long-term asset appreciation.

Land Bank

The Group is always identifying suitable land to increase its land
banks. During the year, the existing land banks of the Group
consists of the residential property redevelopment projects located
in Waterloo Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong and Chatham Road North,
Kowloon, Hong Kong of which the later one has completed the
consolidated of the ownership through the public auction under the
Land (Compulsory Sale for Redevelopment) Ordinance (“"LCSRO")
(Chapter 545 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong is expected to continue to
exert pressure on the local economy during this year. However,
recovery of economy and ease of pandemic situation will be driven
by the introduction of vaccination program. The local property
market is expected to stabilise over the year 2021 on account of
low interest rate as well as the relief measures provided by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administration Region and
the banks in Hong Kong to bring relief to those who are under
stress from their finances. Hong Kong's economy recently showed
signs of recovery from recession. Hong Kong as an international
financial centre will continue to benefit from the opportunities
created by the Great Bay Area integration of Hong Kong into the
overall national development would provide additional impetus for
future growth. The Group will continue to focus on its strength to
diversify its properties portfolio, investing in high quality assets
and strengthening the income base of the Group.
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APPRECIATION

Facing a competitive and challenging environment, on behalf
of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the
"Directors”), | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to all staff members for their dedication, hard
work and efforts in tackling the many tough challenges this year,
which help to maintain the Group’s effective operations. | would
also like to express my gratitude to our Directors for their guidance
and all our shareholders and customers for their continued support.

Koon Ho Yan Candy
President

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue amounted
to approximately HK$323,382,000 (2020: approximately
HK$63,633,000), representing an increase of approximately
HK$259,749,000 or approximately 408.2% as compared to last
year.

The profit for the year attributable to the Company's owners
was approximately HK$22,308,000 (2020: loss of approximately
HK$297,755,000). The gross profit margin for the year was
approximately 30.9%, compared to last year of approximately
96.2%, there was a decrease of approximately 65.3%.

The basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to HK$0.25 for
the year ended 31 March 2021, as compared with loss per share of
HK$3.26 for last year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil).

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in property
development, property investment, securities investment and loan
financing businesses which property development and property
investment are the core businesses of the Group. The review of
each business segment of the Group is set out below.

Revenue recognised in this business segment during the year
amounted to approximately HK$275,319,000 (2020: nil). The
review of existing major projects of the Group is set out below:

Project Waterloo Road

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, owns the site at
Nos. 93, 93A, 95 and 95A Waterloo Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
which has a site area of approximately 9,800 square feet (the
“Waterloo Site").

The Waterloo Site is being redeveloped into a luxurious residential
accommodation with club house facilities and car parks, and the
estimated gross floor area is approximately 48,954 square feet.
The construction of the superstructure works is undergoing and
this project is expected to be completed and to be launched in late
2022.

HE202143A3ALFE  AEB 2L XS
#7 /323,382,0007% JT (20204 : #763,633,000
7 TT) 0 8 & 4 1 1 49259,749,0005% T 8k 49
408.2% °

ARAABEBAELERAFEZMNO AR
22,308,000 7T (20204 : & 18 49297,755,000
BIL) e REE 2 EFELB309% + KFEH
#1/296.2% ' F L #165.3% °

HE2021F3A3MBILFE  BREALE
SEAF 025 EFRATREIE3.26
BT e

EFEe M2 HREEHZ2021F3A318 15
EREAA% B (20204F - &)

RAFE AEBTIERLEVEZER Y
ERE BHRrREKEFBREEXEL WX
BREMERERAEENZLER - K
SEEEB O BEEHN T -

RAFE AEBDSBERNEEBY A
275,319,000 7T (20204F : &) - Zx &= F /]
BETZEARBEHNTX:

B &EEE

AEBBEBEX2ENBRAREEE B NE
T E 893 « 93A ~ 95X 95A %R - M AR A TH
FE49,800 FFR([EBITEHEME ) -

BITEENWRBEEEZAREETHEBREE
ESMZEXTE GALEERBELOA
48,954 F FR o P ZEETRIEEHEITH -
FEEH N IEEBN2022EER T RIEE o



Project Chatham Road North

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, held in excess
of 80% in Nos. 470, 472, 474, 476 and 478 Chatham Road North,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Chatham Road North Building”) as at
31 March 2021. The total site area of this project is approximately
4,653 square feet. On 29 November 2018, the Company filed an
application to the Lands Tribunal pursuant to the LCSRO for an
order for sale all the undivided shares of Chatham Road North
Building (including those owned by the Group, as required by the
LCSRO) for the purposes of redevelopment, with the intention to
bid in the public auction and acquiring the remaining units held by
the registered owner (units not owned by the Group), representing
approximately 11.31% of the undivided shares of the Chatham
Road North Building.

The Company has successfully won the bid in respect of the
Chatham Road North Building at the public auction held on 1 June
2021. Details were set out in the announcement issued by the
Company dated 1 June 2021. Upon completion of the acquisition,
the Chatham Road North Building will be 100% owned by the
Group and will be redeveloped into a composite building with
residential and commercial use. The estimated attributable gross
floor area after redevelopment is expected to be approximately
41,139 square feet. The demolition work is expected to commence
in November 2021.

Details of the project of Chatham Road North Building were set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 16 May 2018, 8 June
2018, 30 November 2018 and 11 September 2020 and the circulars
of the Company dated 25 June 2018 and 23 October 2020.

Inverness Road Property — “Ayton”

“Ayton” is a residential project located at Nos. 14-20 Inverness
Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong developed and wholly-
owned by the Group. It consists of two 8-storey residential blocks
comprising 60 residential units, 29 car parking spaces and 3
motor parking spaces. The total saleable area of approximately
40,742 square feet. The Group has launched its first phase of the
sale of "Ayton” in May 2020. As at the date of this annual report,
28 units released were sold and the aggregate contracted sales
amounted to approximately HK$416,346,000. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, 23 units among the transactions have been
completed and a revenue of approximately HK$275,319,000 has
been recorded for sale of properties.

2020/214F ¥
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As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s portfolio of investment
properties comprised of residential, commercial and industrial units
located in Hong Kong.

During the year, the gross rental income of the Group
was approximately HK$32,815,000 (2020: approximately
HK$38,957,000), representing an approximately 15.8% decrease
over the last year. The decrease in rental income was primarily
attributable to the on-going of COVID-19 pandemic impact.

As at 31 March 2021, the occupancy rate of commercial units
and industrial units of the Group’s investment properties were
99.1% and 77.2% respectively. A loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties of approximately HK$85,640,000 (2020:
approximately HK$196,888,000) was recognised during the year.
The segment reported a loss approximately HK$71,954,000 for
the year (2020: approximately HK$178,691,000), representing a
decrease in loss of approximately HK$106,737,000 compared to
last year.

The Group invested in a diversified portfolio of equity securities
comprising blue-chip stocks and top-tier investments products to
enhance its yields and seek gains. The Group takes into account
the following criteria for investment decision: (i) potential return on
investment in terms of capital appreciation and dividend payment
for the targeted holding period; (ii) risks exposure in comparison
with the Group's risk tolerance level at the prevailing time; and (iii)
diversification of the existing investment portfolio.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$360,322,000
(2020: approximately HK$172,858,000). The stock markets were
volatile during the year and the Group recorded a gain in the
securities investment segment of approximately HK$153,865,000
for the year (2020: loss of approximately HK$24,385,000).

R2021F38318  AEEMREWEMAS
BEMREANET HBEDWENIES

fiL o

RAFE AEEHSHESBALELY
32,815,00058 7T (20204F : #738,957,00058 7T)
BEFERDL158% - WEMHE WK ARD
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Details of the major listed equity securities as at 31 March 2021  #202143A31H » T B F IR AR E A £ 15

were as follows: m
Approximate
percentage Approximate
held to Dividend percentage
the total income for  Fair value of total
issued share the year  gain for the assets of the
capitalin the  Investment ended vyearended Fairvalueat  Group at
Numberof investment cost/costof ~ 31March ~ 31March  31March  31March
Company name (stock code) sharesheld ~ company acquisition 2021 2021 202 202
EARER
HEanE BEANF 2215
HRERE 3A3AL  3AMEL  RANE  3A3NEZ
FiRe 2Rk REHE/ EEY EEe  3[ANAZ HBEEZ
AAEB(RGRT) HE BHEAL  WBHE  REWA AVEKE ATE #HEAM
HKS000  HKSO00  HK$O00  HKS000
FAT AT FET AT
Best Food Holding Company Limited ("Best Food") (1488) 20,294,000 129% 23,765 — 9 14,206 0.29%
BRARBRAA(EE) (488
Agncultura\ Bank of China Limited (1288) 4,164,916 0.01% 11,801 2 — 1291 0.26%
hEEZEAROERA(1288)
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC") 7778900 0.01% 40,165 b17 6,623 43373 0.87%
(1398
TEIBRTRAERAA(IHRT]) (139%)
China Construction Bank Corporation (“CCB" (939 2053370 0.00% 10,894 — 2514 13409 0.27%
hERRRTROERAT (RRET) (939
China Sce Group Holdings Limited (1966) 1,929,000 0.05% 3,286 419 289 6,925 0.14%
i S B RARR1966)
Esprit Holdings Limited (330) 1,600,000 0.08% 17695 - 192 1232 0.02%
ERERERERAL30
Others — — 38,300 188 14,104 50,589 1.02%
Hfh
Grand Total: 145,906 1,926 23,821 142,645 2.87%

EHE
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Purchases of CCB ELNs and disposals of CCB
Shares

On 21 May 2020, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, purchased the equity-linked notes (“ELNs”) which
was linked to shares in CCB (stock code: 939) in the principal
amounts of HK$50,000,000. The coupon rate for these ELNs was
15% per annum and through such purchase, the Group received
a total interest income of approximately HK$1,375,000 during the
year under review. Details of the purchase were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 May 2020.

On 16 July 2020 and 28 July 2020, the Company, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, further purchased the CCB ELNs
in principal amount of HK$15,000,000 and HK$15,000,000
respectively. The CCB ELNs matured on 9 October 2020 and
19 October 2020 respectively and the final share prices of CCB
were below the strike price, where the Group was obliged to take
delivery the underlying CCB shares according to the terms of the
CCB ELNs.

During the year, the Group disposed of total 3,100,000 CCB
shares on-market in a series of transactions conducted during the
period from 24 February 2021 to 2 March 2021 for an aggregate
gross sale proceeds of approximately HK$19,635,000 (excluding
transaction costs) and recognised a total gain of approximately
HK$3,915,000 from the disposal. Details of the purchases and
disposals were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 17 July 2020 and 4 March 2021.

Purchase and Disposal of ICBC ELNs and disposal
of ICBC Shares

On 24 June 2020, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, purchased the ELNs of ICBC (stock code: 1398) in the
principal amounts of HK$30,000,000. The ICBC ELNs matured on
15 September 2020 and the final share price of ICBC was below
the strike price, where the Group was obliged to take delivery the
underlying ICBC shares according to the terms of the ICBC ELNs.

During the year, the Group disposed of total of 3,700,000 ICBC
shares on-market in a series of transactions conducted during the
period from 24 February 2021 to 2 March 2021 for an aggregate
gross sale proceeds of approximately HK$16,231,000 (excluding
transaction costs) and recognised a total gain of approximately
HK$2,529,000 from the disposal. Details of the purchase and
disposal were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 24 June 2020 and 4 March 2021.
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Purchase of Ping An ELNs and disposal of Ping An
Shares

On 15 July 2020, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, purchased the ELNs of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. (“Ping An") (stock code: 2318) in the
principal amounts of HK$15,000,000. The Ping An ELNs matured
on 8 October 2020 and the final share price of Ping An was below
the strike price, and the Group was obliged to take delivery the
underlying Ping An shares according to the terms of the Ping An
ELNS.

During the year, the Group disposed of total of 183,960 Ping An
shares on-market in a series of transactions conducted during the
period from 7 January 2021 to 8 January 2021 for an aggregate
gross sale proceeds of approximately HK$17,526,000 (excluding
transaction costs). Details of the purchase and disposal were set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 15 July 2020 and
12 January 2021.

Purchase of BOC ELNs and disposal of BOC Shares

On 30 July 2020, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, purchased ELNs of Bank of China Limited (“BOC")
(stock code: 3988) in the principal amounts of HK$20,000,000.
The BOC ELNs matured on 20 October 2020 and the final share
price of BOC was below the strike price, and the Group was
obliged to take delivery of the underlying BOC shares according to
the terms of the BOC ELNSs.

During the year, the Group disposed of total of 76,464,000
BOC shares on-market on 18 November 2020 for an aggregate
gross sale proceeds of approximately HK$20,951,000 (excluding
transaction costs). After the disposal, the Group no longer owns
any BOC shares. Details of the purchase were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 July 2020.
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Purchase and Disposal of Alibaba Shares

During the period from 8 July 2020 to 15 July 2020, the Company,
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, purchased an aggregate of
220,000 shares of Alibaba Group Holding Limited (“Alibaba”)
(stock code: 9988) on-market for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately HK$53,752,000 (exclusive of transaction costs).
Details of the purchase were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 15 July 2020. The Group disposed of such
Alibaba shares during the year and recorded a realised gain of
approximately HK$2,246,000. As at 31 March 2021, the Group did
not hold any Alibaba shares.

Investment in Eminence Shares

As at 1 April 2020, the Group, through Ace Winner Investment
Limited ("Ace Winner”), Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco
Development Limited (“Goodco”) (all of which were wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company), held an aggregate of
255,887,665 shares of Eminence Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”)
(stock code: 616), representing approximately 27.47% of the then
total issued share capital of Eminence.

(a) Acquisition of Eminence shares in September 2020

On 4 September 2020, the Group had acquired additional
equity interest in Eminence through on-market purchase of
a total 19,800,000 shares at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$4,950,000 (exclusive of transaction costs),
equivalent to an average price of approximately HK$0.25
per Eminence Share. Upon completion of the acquisition,
the Group's interest in Eminence increased to 275,687,665
Eminence shares, representing approximately 29.60% of the
total issued share capital of Eminence as of the date on 4
September 2020.

BARMEMEEER G

M20205FE7H8H £2020F7A15H B R - &
NAIEBREE2ENBRARR A AAMEEA
& H220000 kM EEEEBIZERER A
AI(MEEB (&K RS 9988) Ik h + 44
BB #) 553,752,000 T (KT X 5B
B) - BAFFBHNARRHEA2020F78
BRAZAHA - AEBERAFELEEH
Pl 2 B AR I 8515 B IR I 25 492,246,000
BT o M2021FE3A31IH  AEBN EFEF
A EEERD -

RESLKRAD

MR2020F4R81H A BEERELKKES
R~ 7 ([#E %) - Landmark Profits Limited
MEZBRERAG(ERNBIAELAQT
2= EMB AR FAE A H£255,887,665M
WeEasRAE(EWDA D K : 616)
MG e LERERITRABEY
27.47% o

(a) H2020F95 A LUK G

H2020F9R4H - AE BB B MM
%5 58 9B A A $£19,800,0008% & 1L A%
D KB 4 54,950,000 JT (K &t
ERZ5ER) HERFHESKRS L
B 490258 0 - TRREBEAK A&
B & L 2 s 1 E= 275,687,665 =
WD (& WL E =22020F9A84HE
BT AN 4R EE4929.60% °



(b) Share Offer

On 3 February 2021 (after trading hours), Ace Winner as
the offeror informed the board of directors of Eminence
that it intended to make, subject to the satisfaction of the
pre-condition, a voluntary conditional cash general offer to
acquire all of the issued Eminence shares (other than those
already owned or agreed to be acquired by the offeror and
parties acting in concert with it) at HK$0.50 per Eminence
share (the “Share Offer”) on the terms and conditions set
out in the composite document (which was despatched to
Eminence’s independent shareholders on 26 March 2021)
and in compliance with the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers (the "Takeovers Code”). The Share Offer
constituted a very substantial acquisition for the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). An ordinary
resolution of the Share Offer was duly approved by the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the
Company's special general meeting held on 19 March 2021.
On 7 April 2021, the Share Offer was declared unconditional
in all respects.

The Share Offer closed on 21 April 2021 (the “Closing
Date"”) and Ace Winner received valid acceptances of the
Share Offer in respect of a total 393,683,175 Eminence
shares, representing approximately 42.26% of the issued
share capital of Eminence and together with the Eminence
shares already held by Ace Winner and parties acting in
concert with it amount to an aggregate of 669,370,840
Eminence shares, representing approximately 71.86% of the
total issued share capital of Eminence as of the Closing Date.
Upon completion of the Share Offer, Eminence becomes a
subsidiary of the Company.

Details of the Share Offer were set out in the joint
announcements of the Company and Eminence dated 11
February 2021, 1 March 2021, 19 March 2021, 26 March
2021, 7 April 2021 and 21 April 2021, the announcement of
the Company dated 4 March 2021 and the circular of the
Company dated 4 March 2021.
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(c) Acquisition of Eminence shares in April 2021

(d)

On 22 April 2021, following the completion of the Share
Offer, the Company further acquired on-market a total of
27,000,000 Eminence shares at each of price of HK$0.50
(the Company is complied with Rule 31.3 of the Takeovers
Code) for an aggregate purchase price of approximately
HK$13,500,000 (exclusive of transaction costs). As a result,
the Group's interest in Eminence increased to 696,370,840
Eminence shares, representing approximately 74.76% of the
total issued share capital of Eminence as at the date of the
acquisition and up to the date of this annual report.

Subscription of Eminence Convertible Notes

On 1 March 2017, Eminence and Goodco entered into a
subscription agreement in respect of the issue by Eminence
of its 2017 (May) Convertible Note to Goodco in the principal
amount of HK$16,000,000 (2017 CN1"). On 7 August 2017,
Eminence and Goodco entered into a subscription agreement
in respect of the issue by Eminence of its 2017 (September)
Convertible Note to Goodco in the principal amount of
HK$28,200,000 (“2017 CN2"). On 17 June 2019, Eminence
and Goodco entered into a subscription agreement in respect
of the issue by Eminence of its 2019 Convertible Note to
Goodco in the principal amount of HK$70,000,000 (“2019
CN").

On 18 September 2020, Eminence and Goodco entered
into three deeds of amendment in respect of the proposed
alteration of the terms of each of the aforesaid convertible
notes (“Proposed Alteration”), pursuant to which both
parties agreed that the conversion price of such convertible
notes was revised to HK$0.25 per Eminence share (subject
to adjustment) and, the maturity date of the notes was
extended to 28 August 2024 upon the deeds of amendment
becoming unconditional. As a result of the Proposed
Alteration, a total of 389,120,000 Eminence shares would
be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the aforesaid
convertible notes at the revised conversion price of HK$0.25.
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During the year, no exercise of the conversion rights under
the aforesaid convertible notes held by Goodco was made
and the outstanding principal amount of the aforesaid
three notes as at 31 March 2021 was HK$97,280,000
(the outstanding principal amount of 2017 CN1, 2017 CN2
and 2019 CN was HK$16,000,000, HK$11,280,000 and
HK$70,000,000 respectively). The aggregate fair value of
the three notes was approximately HK$199,944,000 as
at 31 March 2021 (2020: approximately HK$85,914,000).
During the year, an unrealised fair value gain of approximately
HK$117,286,000 was recognised and the Group received a
total interest income of approximately HK$3,256,000 from
such convertible notes.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recorded an
interest income from the loan financing business amounting
to approximately HK$13,726,000 (2020: approximately
HK$23,487,000), representing approximately 4.2% of the total
revenue of the Group. The decrease in interest income was
primarily due to the decrease in average level of loans receivable
as at 31 March 2021. Loss derived from loan financing business
was approximately HK$38,352,000 for the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: approximately HK$22,279,000). The carrying amount
of loans receivable as at 31 March 2021 was approximately
HK$143,016,000 (2020: approximately HK$236,751,000). At
31 March 2021, the net impairment allowance recognised in
profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$47,791,000 (2020:
approximately HK$29,256,000) in its loan financing business.
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Below were the major transactions of the Group on loan financing
business during the year:

(a)

(b)

Co-lending Agreement

On 18 June 2019, Planetic International Limited (“Planetic”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a co-lending agreement with STI Partners Limited
(“STI"”) and China Yinsheng Finance Limited (“China
Yinsheng"), pursuant to which, inter alia, Planetic, STI and
China Yinsheng, as co-lenders, agreed to enter into a loan
agreement with an independent third party, as borrower,
and make available to the borrower, an aggregate loan
of HK$64,000,000 (of which the total commitment from
Planetic was HK$45,000,000 at an interest rate of 8.50%
per annum) for a period of twelve (12) months from the
drawdown date. Such loan was secured by charge on
properties of the borrower. During the year, the Group
received a total interest income from such lending of
approximately HK$366,000. The loan was fully repaid in May
2020.

Sale of Junior Notes

Charming Flash Limited (“Charming Flash”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as subscriber, entered
into a junior notes subscription agreement dated 31 October
2018 with Golden Glow Limited (the “lssuer”), as issuer,
pursuant to which Charming Flash subscribed for the fixed-
rate unsecured junior notes (the “Junior Notes") issued by
the Issuer in the amount of US$4,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$35,100,000) at an interest rate of 14.65%
per annum.
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Charming Flash later entered into a tripartite agreement (the
“Tripartite Agreement”) dated 20 February 2020 with
Green Heyday Limited (“Green Heyday") and the Issuer,
under which Charming Flash agreed to sell and Green Heyday
agreed to acquire, the Junior Notes at a consideration of
US$4,700,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,660,000).
The consideration will be paid by three instalments.
Charming Flash would have all rights attached or accruing to
the Junior Notes, including the rights to receive all payments,
dividends and distributions from the Junior Notes, until
such time as it receives full payment of the consideration
from Green Heyday and completes the sale and purchase
of the Junior Notes under the Tripartite Agreement. As at
31 March 2021, US$4,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$36,480,000 of the consideration had been received by
the Company. The Company is expected to recognise a gain
of approximately US$200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,560,000) from the sale of the Junior Notes, which is
calculated on the basis of the difference between the face
value of the Junior Notes of US$4,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$35,100,000) as at 20 February 2020
and the consideration of US$4,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$36,660,000).

Details of the transaction were set out in the announcements
published by the Company dated 11 August 2017, 2
November 2018 and 20 February 2020 respectively.

The Group financed its operations through internally generated
cash flow and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2021, the Group's
bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,472,467,000
(2020: approximately HK$1,428,186,000). The gearing ratio of the
Group, calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to total equity,
for the year was approximately 0.46 (2020: approximately 0.44).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has net current assets of
approximately HK$1,871,702,000 (2020: approximately
HK$1,549,088,000). Current ratio was approximately 3.8
(2020: approximately 2.5). The bank balances and cash as at
31 March 2021 was approximately HK$308,222,000 (2020:
HK$117,920,000), representing an increase of approximately
161.4% or approximately HK$190,302,000 compared to the
corresponding year of 2020.
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As at 31 March 2021, the maturity profile of the Group’s secured
bank borrowings is set out below:

MR2021F3A31H - AEEHIXFRITEE
Z B EIER S T

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2021F3H31H 202043H31H

Carrying amount repayable as follows (based on the scheduled repayment dates

set out in the loan agreements):
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— within a period not exceeding one year
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— within a period of more than one year but not exceeding two years

— E BB FETBBRF /R

— within a period of more than two years but not exceeding five years

—EHRAMFETHEALFNRER
— within a period of more than five years
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Less: Amount due within one year shown under current liabilities

HBRIRRBREZ - FRINEE

Amount due after one year shown under non-current liabilities
BIRRERBAB I —FRIMEE

As at 31 March 2021, bank loans of the Group in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$1,472,467,000 (2020: approximately
HK$1,428,186,000) which were secured by leasehold properties,
investment properties, properties held for development for
sale, properties held for sale, life insurance policy, listed equity
securities in Hong Kong, perpetual bonds and debt instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income of the Group
having a net book value of approximately HK$3,142,046,000
(2020: approximately HK$3,480,944,000). In addition, 19,800,000
Eminence shares with fair value of HK$9,702,000 (2020:
71,500,000 Eminence shares with fair value of HK$33,041,000)
held by a subsidiary of the Group is pledged to a bank.

HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TFET
468,010 823,275
45,896 237787
756,611 133,492
201,950 233,632
1,472,467 1,428,186
(468,010) (823,275)
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Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. During the year, the Group did not have
significant exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and thus,
no financial instrument for hedging purposes was employed.
The Directors considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2021 (2020: nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group invested
approximately HK$196,000 (2020: approximately HK$32,000)
on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and had
not invested on additions of investment properties (2020:
approximately HK$3,128,000).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no capital commitments in
respect of capital expenditure contracted for but not provided
(2020: nil).
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Acquisition and Termination of Acquisition of
Above Ace and Success Edge From Eminence

On 5 November 2020 (as supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 9 November 2020), the Company and Eminence
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which, among other things,
the Company conditionally agreed to purchase, and Eminence
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued shares of Above Ace
Limited (“Above Ace"”) and Success Edge Limited (“Success
Edge”), both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of Eminence, and
Eminence agreed to procure the assignment of the sale loans
owing by the two companies to Eminence to the Company at
completion, at an aggregate consideration of HK$1,100,000,000
(subject to adjustments). The sole material asset of Above Ace
(through wholly-owned subsidiaries) is the properties located at
Nos. 1B, 1C, 1D and 1E Davis Street, Kennedy Town, Hong Kong.
The sole material asset of Success Edge (through wholly-owned
subsidiaries) is the properties located at Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick
Street, Kennedy Town, Hong Kong.

The acquisition constitutes a very substantial acquisition for the
Company. The completion of the sale and purchase is subject to
the approval of Eminence’s independent shareholders and the
Shareholders, and is conditional on Eminence's successful bid for
the remaining share of Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Kennedy
Town, Hong Kong in the public auction pursuant to the LCSRO.
Eminence is the successful bidder at the auction held on 1 March
2021 and the acquisition of the remaining unit of Nos. 93 and 95
Catchick Street, Hong Kong was completed on 1 April 2021.

Upon completion of the Share Offer on 21 April 2021, Eminence
became a subsidiary of the Company. Having reviewed the
Company's and Eminence'’s respective businesses and operations,
the Company and Eminence agreed to terminate the Sale and
Purchase Agreement by entering into a termination agreement on
30 April 2021.

Details of the very substantial acquisition were set out in the
announcements jointly published by the Company and Eminence
dated 9 November 2020, 4 January 2021, 22 January 2021, 19
February 2021, 31 March 2021 and 30 April 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries or associates during the year ended 31
March 2021.

)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Project Chatham Road North

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, won the
bidding in respect of the Chatham Road North Building at the
public auction held on 1 June 2021. The latest development
of the Chatham Road North Building is set out in the section
"Property Development” under the headed “Business
Review" in this chapter of this annual report.

Investment in Eminence Shares

The Share Offer closed on 21 April 2021 and the Group has
further acquired a total of 27,000,000 Eminence shares on
22 April 2021, details of which were set out in the section
“Investments in Eminence Shares (b) Share Offer and (c)
Acquisition of Eminence shares in April 2021" under the
headed “Business Review" in this chapter of this annual
report.

Termination of Acquisition of Above Ace and
Success Edge

On 30 April 2021, the Company and Eminence entered into
a termination agreement to terminate the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, details of which were set out in the headed
“Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries or
Associated Companies” in this chapter of this annual report.

Discloseable Transaction — Acquisition of
promissory notes

On 25 May 2021, Gainever Corporation Limited, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, subscribed and
acquired a 8.0% Tranche B promissory notes (non-redeemable
and non-transferable) due on 25 September 2025 to be
issued by Lion Best Global Limited in the aggregate principal
amount of US$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,162,500,000) for a total consideration of US$3,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,300,000. The proceeds
of the promissory notes shall be used exclusively for the
subscription to preferred shares in a target company, which
will in turn invest the proceeds in real estate project relating to
the Xinyi A7 area/Taipei Sky Tower in Taiwan. The acquisition
constitutes a discloseable transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules, details of which were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 May 2021.
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(5) Discloseable Transaction — Purchase of Best
Food shares

During the period from 12 October 2020 to 15 June 2021, the
Group, acquired an aggregate of 31,678,000 shares of Best
Food (stock code: 1488) on the open market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$20,000,000 (excluding
stamp duty and transaction costs). Details of the purchase
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 16
June 2021.

The Group's businesses, financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group's businesses,
including the following highlighted risks of (i) Hong Kong economic
conditions which may directly affect the property market; (ii)
availability of suitable land bank for future development; (iii) the
continuous escalation of construction cost in Hong Kong in recent
years; (iv) business cycle for property under development may
be influenced by a number of factors and the Group's revenue
will be directly affected by the mix of properties available for
sale and delivery; (v) all construction works were outsourced to
independent third parties and they may fail to provide satisfactory
services adhering to our quality and safety standards or within the
timeline required by the Group; (vi) fluctuations of fair value gain
or loss incurred on financial assets and investment properties; (vii)
credit risk and recoverability of provision of loans which may incur
bad debts during the downturn of economy; and (viii) internet risk.

In response to the abovementioned possible risks, the Group has
a series of internal control and risk management system to cope
with the possible risks and has serious scrutiny over the selection
of quality customers and suppliers. The Company keeps develop
and review strategies, policies and guidelines on risk control; which
enable the Group to monitor and response to risk effectively and
promptly. The Company also actively proposes solutions to lower
the impact of the possible risks on the businesses of the Group.
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Despite the difficult year in 2020, the property market has been
helping along by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region to relax its policy to support businesses and
individuals to stimulus the economy in response to the COVID-19
pandemic.

Hong Kong's GDP grew 7.9% in the first quarter of 2021 from an
all-time low of a 9.1% contraction in the corresponding period of
last year. The Hong Kong economy recovered visibly in the first
quarter of 2021. The launch of COVID-19 vaccination programmes
strengthen of global pandemic prevention and control, it is
anticipated that there will be a gradual recovery in property market
and see the market stabilise in 2021, supported by the roll-out of
the vaccine.

Nevertheless, COVID-19 pandemic remains a key source of
uncertainty surrounding the global economic outlook, other
uncertain factors, including Sino-US relations also warrant
attention. The economy and property business in Hong Kong are
still challenging this year. The Group is prudently optimistic on the
prospects of the property market in Hong Kong and will devote
resources and efforts in increasing and replenishing its land bank.

In line with the investment strategy, the Group will continue to
identify appropriate investment opportunities that fit its objective
and investment criteria to enhance its financial position and further
value can be created for the Shareholders.

The Group will continue to monitor the market changes closely
and focusing its efforts in the development of its existing principal
businesses while exploring other opportunities with a view to
providing steady and favourable returns for the Shareholders and
strengthen every segment of its business.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 27 employees (2020:
32). Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted
to approximately HK$29,317,000 for the year under review
(2020: approximately HK$30,600,000). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance, experience
and prevailing industry practice. The Group provides a defined
contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund as required under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) for all eligible employees of the Group in
Hong Kong. Share option scheme is in place to provide appropriate
incentive to motivate employees of the Group.
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Ms. KOON Ho Yan Candy
President, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, aged 36, has been re-designated to
the president and chief executive officer, and the chairman of
the Executive Committee of the Company on 13 August 2020.
She was appointed as an executive Director and authorised
representative and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company in 2010. She is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. Ms. Koon obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics and Politics from the University of Durham, England in
2007. She also received her Bachelor of Laws degree and Legal
Practice Course qualification in 2009 from the University of Law,
England. Ms. Koon is the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the vice
president of the Company.

Ms. LUI Yuk Chu
Vice President and Executive Director

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, aged 63, is a co-founder of the Group, an
executive Director and vice president and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. She is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Besides, Ms. Lui is an
executive director and deputy chairman, and a member of the
executive committee of Eminence and serves as director of various
subsidiaries of Eminence. Ms. Lui has been involved in the textiles
industry for over 30 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. Ms. Lui was
appointed to the Board as an executive Director in 1994. In 2006,
Ms. Lui was appointed as vice president of the Company. Ms. Lui
is the wife of Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the co-founder of the Group.
She is also the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an executive
Director.
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Mr. TSE Wing Chiu Ricky
Vice President and Executive Director

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky, aged 63, has been re-designated to
the vice president and an executive Director, and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company on 13 August 2020.
He is also an authorised representative and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Tse is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration from Adam Smith University of America in the
United States in 1996. He has more than 30 years of experience in
garment manufacturing and merchandising. Mr. Tse was appointed
to the Board as an executive Director and vice president of the
Company in 2005, and was subsequently re-designated from
vice president to president of the Company and appointed as
chief executive officer of the Company in 2006. In 2007, Mr. Tse
was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director and resigned as president and chief executive officer of
the Company. In 2017, Mr. Tse was re-designated from a non-
executive Director to an executive Director, and appointed as the
president and chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. TSUI Chun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, aged 70, is an independent non-executive
Director since 2004. He is also a member and the chairman of
the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He obtained a
Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from the Oklahoma
City University in the United States in 1991 and is a fellow member
of both The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tsui
has over 40 years of experience in the public accounting profession
and the commercial sector, especially the travel industry. He has
experience in the preparation for the listing of shares on the Stock
Exchange and worked for a few listed companies. Mr. Tsui is now
practising as a public accountant under his own name.
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Mr. JONG Koon Sang
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Jong Koon Sang, aged 72, has been an independent non-
executive Director since 2005. He is also a member and the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Jong is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of International
Accountants, England; a fellow member of the Chartered
Management Institute, England; a fellow member of The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong; the accountant ambassador of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and Honorary Vice
President of Accounting Student Society of Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. Since 2014, he has been elected as
director and council member of the Association of International
Accountants, England. In the years of 2011 and 2012, Mr. Jong was
the President of The Association of International Accountants, Hong
Kong Branch. From 2010 to 2020, he was a member of the Regional
Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority. In 2019,
Mr. Jong was appointed as the alternative structured manager of
Shek Lei Catholic Primary School and Nam Wah Catholic Secondary
School. Mr. Jong was appointed by the foregoing schools in May
and June 2020 respectively as School Sponsoring Body Manager
of the Incorporated Management Committee commenced from 1
September 2020 to 31 August 2023. Mr. Jong has over 40 years
of management experience in the financial, industrial and property
business.

Mr. LAU Chak Hang Charles
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles, aged 34, has been an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman and a member of the
Nomination Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company since 6 August
2020. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is currently a consulting
director at Frost & Sullivan Limited, a multinational management
consulting firm principally engaged in market research and growth
consulting service, corporate strategic and operational advisory
service, etc. Client coverage of such company spans across
different continents and wide spectrum of industries. Mr. Lau has
over 7 years of extensive experience in the financial industry.
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The Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence are essential for upholding the
interests of the stakeholders and maximising Shareholder’s value
and is dedicated to maintaining a good standard of corporate
governance within a sensible and practical framework.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance, it
is responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. During the year, the Company has fully complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code, except for the deviations
disclosed herein.

Code Provision A.2.1

The roles of president and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy serves as president as well as chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board considers this
arrangement to be appropriate for the Company as it preserves
the consistent leadership which is conducive to making effective
planning and better execution of long-term strategies consistently.
The Board is of the view that a balance of power and authority
is adequately ensured by the operations and governance of the
Board which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals,
with half of them being independent non-executive Directors. The
Company will continue to review the existing structure when and
as it becomes appropriate.
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Code Provision C.2.5
The issuer should have an internal audit function

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the
year under review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group and considered that
the current risk management and internal control processes are
adequate to meet the needs of the Group in its current business
environment and nothing has come to its attention to cause the
Board to believe the Group's risk management and internal control
systems are inadequate. The Board was of the view that there is
no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group, however, shall review the need for one on annual basis.

The Board currently has six (6) Directors comprising three (3)
executive Directors and three (3) independent non-executive
Directors. The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (Vice President)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong

Mr. Jong Koon Sang

Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles (appointed on 6 August 2020)
Mr. Hon Tam Chun (retired on 6 August 2020)

The biographical details of all Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
Save as disclosed in that section, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other
material relationships among the Directors.
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The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the activities
and performance of the Group. Directors meet in person on a
regular basis on other occasions when a board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Board is responsible
for formulating of corporate strategies, reviewing and guiding
the business and affairs, monitoring financial and operating
performance and is individual. The Board reserves the authority to
make final decisions for all major matters of the Company covering
internal control and risk management, dividend payout, major
transactions, release of financial information, appointment/removal
of Directors and auditors, and other significant operational and
financial matters.

Executive Directors are involved in the day-to-day operations of
the Group. Independent non-executive Directors are involved in
scrutinising the Group's performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives and monitor performance reporting process.
As they are not involved in the daily management of the Group,
they bring an independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct. Their presence helps to enhance the
Board's balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives.

With a view to maintaining an appropriate balance of authority
and responsibility, such functions are either carried out directly by
the Board or indirectly through various committees established
by the Board, with respective functions set out in their terms of
reference. Currently, there are four (4) board committees, namely
executive committee (the "Executive Committee”), audit
committee (the “Audit Committee"”), remuneration committee
(the “"Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”).
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Attendance of Directors at Various Meetings

Details of the attendance of individual Directors at various
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2021 are as
follows:

Audit

Committee

Board meetings meetings
attended/held  attended/held
b/ 84 g/ 81

EERNESHERR

HE2021F3A3NBILFE HAREEHE
SEezNEBOT:

Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Special general
meetings meetings  Attendance at meetings

attended/held  attended/held 2020 AGM  attended/held
%/ 81 b/ 8 H 20205 -8 T

E3E8d FNZEGed HMZEEE3 RAZEEEE RFEFAE  RRMMAE

Executive Directors HrEs

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy EUMat 6/6 -
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu R/ 6/6 =
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky MkEEE 6/6 -

Independent non-executive Directors  BIFHTES

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong BREARE /6 22
Mr. Jong Koon Sang HRELE /6 02
Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles! AEhEEE 5/5 i
Mr. Hon Tam Chun? BEEEL 11 i
Notes:

1. Appointed as a Director on 6 August 2020.

2. Retired as a Director on 6 August 2020.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term of three (3) years. At all times during the year ended
31 March 2021, the Company has complied with the requirements
under Rule 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three (3) independent non-executive
directors, representing at least one third of the Board and with at
least one of them possessing appropriate professional accounting
and financial management expertise required under the Listing
Rules.
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The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite the fact that
each of Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Jong Koon Sang, has served
as an independent non-executive Director for more than nine (9)
years, the Board is of the view that their duration of service will
not interfere with their exercise of independent judgement in
carrying out their duties and responsibilities as the independent
non-executive Directors and believes that their valuable knowledge
and experience in the Group's business will continually benefit the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. All independent non-
executive Directors do not have any executive or management
role in the Company nor have been under the employment of any
member of the Group. The Board considers that all independent
non-executive Directors have met the independence guidelines of
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made on the recommendation
of the Nomination Committee and the Board and by the
Shareholders in a general meeting.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws"),
Directors who are appointed by the Board to fill casual vacancies or
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office until the next
following general meeting or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election at the
meeting after their appointments. All Directors, including those
appointed for a specific term, are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting no later than the third annual general meeting
since the last election or re-election.

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development of Directors

An induction package would be provided to each newly appointed
Director to ensure that each Director is familiar with the role of the
Board, the responsibilities and obligations of Director under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
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According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Training materials or briefings in respect of the updates on, among
other things, the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements are regularly circulated to all Directors. The Company
also provides and circulates to the Directors with monthly and
regular updates relating to the Group'’s business, financial position
and business environment, in which the Group operates.

All existing Directors have provided a record of training they
received during the year to the Company, which includes
attending seminars, reading various materials regarding directors’
responsibilities, updates on the Listing Rules and corporate
governance policy, etc, and such records have been maintained
by the company secretary of the Company for accurate and
comprehensive record keeping.

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Executive
Committee to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities
and to oversee particular aspect of the Group's affairs. Each Board
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and may access to independent professional advice
according to the Company’s policy, if necessary. Each Board
Committee holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws, its
specific written terms of reference and, where applicable, the
proceedings of the Board meeting. The written terms of reference
of the Board Committees are reviewed and updated regularly to
ensure that they are aligned with prevailing governance practices.
Each committee is required to report to the Board on its decision
and recommendations, where appropriate. The authority and duties
of each of the Board Committees are set out in its respective
terms of reference which are available on the Company’s and the
Stock Exchange’s websites.
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The Audit Committee currently comprises three (3) independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tsui Chun Kong (the
chairman), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles.
The appointment of Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles took effect on 6
August 2020 following the retirement of Mr. Hon Tam Chun from
the Audit Committee on the same day. Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and
Mr. Jong Koon Sang both possess the appropriate professional
accounting and financial management expertise and in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee are:

° to oversee the relationship with the external auditors;

° to review the interim and annual financial statements before
publication;

o to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures;

] to perform the corporate governance functions:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

° review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company.
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During the year, the Audit Committee members met twice with
the Group senior management and the independent auditor of the
Company to review (i) the draft consolidated financial statements
of the Group (including the annual results for the year ended 31
March 2020 and the interim results for the six-month period ended
30 September 2020 before recommending them to the Board
for approval); (ii) the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group; and (iii) the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control system of the Company. It keeps under review
the independence and objectivity of the Company’s independent
auditor and the non-audit services provided by the Company’s
independent auditor to the Group.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Jong Koon Sang
(chairman), Mr. Tsui Chun Kong and Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles,
and one (1) executive Director, namely Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky.
The appointment of Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles took effect on 6
August 2020 following the retirement of Mr. Hon Tam Chun from
the Remuneration Committee on the same day.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management;

° to review and determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and

° to review and approve the compensation arrangements
in connection with any loss or termination of their or
appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to
executive Directors and senior management which shall be
fair and not excessive.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one (1)
meeting to review and approve the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Company by reference
to factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere within the group and in the market. It has also made
recommendation to the Board on the directors’ fee for independent
non-executive Directors. No Director was involved in determining
his/her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee has discharged or will continue
to discharge its major roles to, among other things, approve the
terms of the service agreements of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company, make recommendations with
respect to the remuneration and policies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company and to review the remuneration
package and recommend salaries, bonuses, including the incentive
awards for Directors and senior management of the Company.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three (3)
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Chak Hang
Charles (chairman), Mr. Jong Koon Sang and Mr. Tsui Chun Kong,
and one (1) executive Director, namely Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky.
The appointment of Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles took effect on 6
August 2020 following the retirement of Mr. Hon Tam Chun from
the Nomination Committee on the same day.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee are:

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

° to identify and nominate suitable candidates of Directors for
the Board's consideration;

° to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and

° to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the succession planning for the chairman and the
chief executive of the Company.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting
to (i) review the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board and the qualifications for all Directors and senior
management of the Group; (ii) assess the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors; and (iii) identify and
recommend the appointment of new director to the Board for
approval, nominate the re-appointment of retiring directors to the
Shareholders for approval and proposed the re-designation of
president and chief executive officer of the Company.
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Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which incorporated
the selection criteria and nomination procedures for nomination
and appointment of Directors.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee takes into account of, inter alia, the
diversity of the Board as a whole, the candidate’s reputation for
integrity, commitment in respect of time, interest and attention to
the businesses of the Group as well as such other factors as the
Nomination Committee may consider appropriate.

In respect of the nomination procedure, all candidates are
required to submit his/her personal particulars and information
to the Nomination Committee. The secretary of the Nomination
Committee shall convene a meeting, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members (if any), for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. For filling a casual vacancy, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board's consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. A circular will be sent to the Shareholders
providing information as required pursuant to the applicable laws,
rules and regulations of the candidates nominated by the Board to
stand for election at a general meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. The Company has
adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity. In designing the
Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
industry experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on the considerations aforesaid,
and candidates will be considered, having due regard to diversity
on the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving those
measurable objectives and will review the Board Diversity Policy
on a regular basis to ensure its continuing effectiveness.
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The Board composition
follows:

and diversity as at 31 March 2021 are as

Composition ED
Female

pogid

Gender

4 5l

Age Group

FH AR 3140

Board tenure (No. of years)

EEQFH(FY) 1015

<1

Professional Experience

HEXER

Accounting

’m%é«l»
= A

T R

Finance
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MR2021F3A3MB  EFeNAEXMZ Tl
BFRmE

INED

Male

EEgi

61-70 >70

16-20 >20

General Management
—REE

Legal
R

Number of Directors 0 | 1 | 2 |

EE¥EA

ED — Executive Directors #177% &
INED — Independent Non-executive Directors &1/ FE#77 & F

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the three (3)
executive Directors, namely Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (chairman),
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky.

It meets as and when required between regular Board meetings of
the Company, and operates as a general management committee
under the direct authority of the Board. Within the parameters
of authority delegated by the Board, the Executive Committee
is committed to the implementation of the Group's strategy
set by the Board, monitors the Group’s investment and trading
performance, funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having
made specific enquiry with the existing Directors, all of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code since their appointment as a Director during
the year and/or throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.
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The Company also adopted a code on no less exacting terms
than the Model Code to regulate dealings in the securities of the
Company by certain employees of the Group who are considered
to be likely in possession of inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities.

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been re-appointed as the
independent auditor of the Company at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 6 August 2020 (“2020 AGM") until the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “2021 AGM").

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the audit and non-audit fees

paid or payable to the Company’s independent auditor, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, were as follows:

Services rendered for the Group

72 F R E SR 2L R FOT b A < R B R
B PR AR E AR B R A R AR
AREFANNE LR NAEEETES
BITMARTERRS -

EHeHERFASHAMITEREARAR
20208 H6H 817 2 IR R X & (/20204 &
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RABUZEMEHBERT &5A1T
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Fees paid/payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Bt/ BN ESHEERA
BAEBERHENRE EHMITHER
HK$°000
FHT
Audit services: EZR

—annual financial statements — FEMEHE 2,235

Non-audit services: IE 2% RS
—interim review — I HREE 740
—taxation and professional services —RIEREERE 29
Total: WEt 3,004

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation
and publication of the timely financial statements of the Company
which gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and ensure that they are prepared in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
Management of the Company had provided monthly updates
for giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and projects to enable the
Directors to discharge their duties. In preparing the accounts for
the year ended 31 March 2021, the Directors have adopted suitable
accounting policies which are pertinent to the Group’s operations
and relevant to the financial statements and have presented an
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.
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The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, the
accounts are prepared on a going concern basis and they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to the events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

A statement by the independent auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 74
to 81 of this annual report.

Currently, the Board has undertaken the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives and
ensuring that the Group established and maintained appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Audit Committee provides independent review on effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and gives their recommendation to the Board. Each department is
responsible for identifying, assessing and managing risks within
its business, ensuring that appropriate internal control for effective
risk management are implemented. On behalf of the Board, the
Audit Committee also regularly reviews the corporate governance
structure and practices within the Group and monitors compliance
fulfilment on an ongoing basis.

Audit Committee conducts a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems annually
by requiring all departments of the Company to undergo a self-risk
assessment process using a common risk management. It covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, on an annual basis. It also considers the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies
and procedures are in place to identify, assess, manage,
control and report risks. Such risks include strategic, credit,
operational (administrative, system, human resources, reputation),
market, liquidity, legal and regulatory. Exposure to these risks
is continuously monitored by the Board through the Audit
Committee.
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After reviewing the annual review on effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group as reported
by the Audit Committee, the Board considers the risk management
and internal control systems in respect of financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and adequate of resources were
effective and adequate in respect of the year ended 31 March
2021. The management of the Company confirmed that there is no
significant deficiency and weakness in the internal control system
has been identified.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are designed to
mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. The Board
considered that the current risk management and internal
control processes are adequate to meet the needs of the Group
in its current business environment and nothing has come to
its attention to cause the Board to believe the Group's risk
management and internal control systems are inadequate. The
Board was of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group, however, shall review
the need for one on annual basis.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles and guidelines of the Company in relation to the
distribution of dividend to its Shareholders. Subject to compliance
with applicable rules and regulations, the Board may, at its
discretion, determine the declaration of payment of dividend(s)
to its Shareholders in any amount, frequency in any financial
year depending on, among other things, the Group’s operation
and financial performance, economic conditions, the Group’s
business strategies and operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements as well as the interests of the Shareholders.

The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period.
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The Company engages Mr. Lee Po Wing as its Company Secretary
who is not an employee of the Company. Mr. Lee has confirmed
that for the year under review, he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the
executive Director and chief executive officer is the person whom
Mr. Lee Po Wing could contact for the purpose of code provision
F.1.1 of the CG Code.

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an
effective two-way communication with its stakeholders. A
shareholders communication policy has been adopted by the
Company. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to the Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of
formal channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements, circulars and other corporate communications.
Such published documents together with the latest corporate
information and news are also made available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at
www.easyknit.com. Annual general meeting and other general
meetings of the Company provides one of the primary forums for
communication with the Shareholders. Such meetings provide
the Shareholders with the opportunity to share their views and to
meet the Board and certain members of senior management.

Procedures for convening a special general
meeting

Pursuant to the Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(the "Bermuda Companies Act”), Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition (state the purpose of the meeting, be signed) to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting (the “SGM") to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. If the Directors do
not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda Companies Act, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition.
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The written requisition must state the purposes of the SGM,
and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A,
7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle
Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Principal
Place of Business”) for the attention of Company Secretarial
Department.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at the
general meetings

Shareholders may submit a requisition to move a resolution at a
general meeting pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act. The
number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall be: (a)
any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting; or (b) not
less than 100 Shareholders holding the issued ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Shares”). The requisition specifying the
proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders concerned, together
with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposal or the business to be dealt with
at the general meeting must be deposited at the Principal Place of
Business. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act. Moreover, the
notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposals submitted by the Shareholders concerned varies
as follows pursuant to Bye-law 63 of the Bye-laws:

(@) for an annual general meeting of the Company and any
SGM at which the passing of a special resolution is to be
considered, it shall be called by at least twenty-one (21)
clear days’ notice in writing (the notice period must include
twenty (20) clear business days under the Listing Rules’
requirement); and

(b)  for all other general meetings of the Company (including
a SGM) shall be called by at least fourteen (14) clear days’
notice in writing (the notice period must include ten (10) clear
business days under the Listing Rules’ requirement).
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Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting, the
Shareholder should follow the “Rules and Procedures Governing
the Election of Directors”, which can be found on the website of
the Company (www.easyknit.com).

Procedures for putting enquiries by the
Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in written form via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6,
481-483 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: 1218share@easyknit.com

In respect of the other shareholding/entitlement affairs:
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company has not made any changes to its Bye-
laws. The Company’s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws
are available on the websites of the Company (www.easyknit.com)
and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
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The Directors present this report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2021.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in property development,
property investment, investment in securities and loan financing,
details of which are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 227 of
this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid to the Shareholders during the year
(2020: nil.).

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year (2020: nil.).

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last 5 financial years, as
extracted from the consolidated financial statements, is set out on
page 228 of this annual report. This summary does not form part
of the consolidated financial statements.

The business review of the Group as required under Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the key financial performance indicators to the businesses
of the Group, including, among other things, (i) a fair review
of the Group's business; (i) a description of principal risks and
uncertainties facing to the Group; (i) an analysis using key financial
performance indicators and (iv) future development in the Group's
business, are disclosed in “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 7 to 24 of this annual report.

The corporate social responsibility, environmental policies and
performance of the Group are disclosed in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report set out on pages 62 to 73 of this
annual report.
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As far as the Board is concerned, the Group has complied in
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

During the year, the Group repurchased a total of 9,120,000
shares of its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange for an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$37,582,000 on 5
March 2021, 12 March 2021 and 15 March 2021 respectively.
All the repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled by the
Company on 15 March 2021 and 23 March 2021 respectively.
The repurchases of the Company's shares by the Directors during
the year were made pursuant to the mandate granted by the
Shareholders at the 2020 AGM, with a view to benefiting the
Shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value per
share and earnings per share of the Company. As at 31 March
2021 and up to the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company in issue was 82,200,403 shares.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year under review.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.
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The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders as at 31 March 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$869,330,000 (2020: approximately HK$871,197,000).

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity on pages 86 to 87 of this annual report and note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (President and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (Vice President)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong

Mr. Jong Koon Sang

Mr. Lau Chak Hang Charles (appointed on 6 August 2020)
Mr. Hon Tam Chun (retired on 6 August 2020)

Mr. Hon Tam Chun has no disagreement with the Board and
nothing relating to the affairs of the Company needed to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Tse Wing
Chiu Ricky, an executive Director and Mr. Jong Koon Sang, an
independent non-executive Director, will retire from office by
rotation at the 2021 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Lau
Chak Hang Charles will hold office until the 2021 AGM and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the 2021 AGM.
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Director an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 25 to 27
of this annual report.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Directors after 27 November 2020, the date of
the interim report the Company for the period from 1 April 2020 to
30 September 2020, are set out below:

° Details of changes in the Directors’ remuneration up to 31
March 2021 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

° The monthly remuneration of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, an executive
Director and vice president of the Company had been
increased to HK$270,000 with effect from 1 April 2021.

° The Director’s fee of each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tsui Chun Kong, Mr. Jong Koon Sang
and Mr. Lau Chak Hang had been increased to HK$155,000
per annum with effect from 1 April 2021.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the provisions of the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws. No
Director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one (1) year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Related Party Transactions/Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, there were no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group's
business, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director, or a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any
time during the year or at the end of the year.
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The Company was deemed to be interested in approximately
29.60% interest in Eminence as at 31 March 2021, which was
accounted for as an associate of the Company. The principal
businesses of Eminence and its subsidiaries are the property
development, property investment, investment in securities and
loan financing. As at 31 March 2021, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, who was
an executive Director and vice president of the Company, who
was also an executive director and deputy chairman of Eminence.
Upon completion of the Share Offer on 21 April 2021 and further
acquisitions of Eminence shares on 22 April 2021, as at the date
of this annual report, the Company was deemed to be interested
in approximately 74.76% interest in Eminence, which is accounted
for as a subsidiary of the Company.

The Company and Eminence are separate listed entities run by
separate and independent management. Ms. Lui cannot personally
control the Board and is fully aware of, and has been discharging,
her fiduciary duty to the Company and has acted and will continue
to act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Therefore, the Directors believe that the Company is
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm's
length from, Eminence.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021 and up to the date
of this annual report, none of the Directors had any interest in a
business which may compete with that of the Group and which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the
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by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited in its capacity as
the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries include
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy). Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is deemed to
be interested in the shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the
beneficiaries of The Magical 2000 Trust under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted and approved by the then Shareholders for
a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date whereby,
the Board, may at its discretion, grant share options to any eligible
participants (including Directors and employees of the Group) to
subscribe for the Shares subject to the terms and conditions as
stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.

The scheme mandate limit in respect of the granting of options
to subscribe for shares of the Company under the Share Option
Scheme has been refreshed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 8 August 2019 which the total number of shares
of the Company may be allotted and issued pursuant to the grant
or exercises of the options under the Share Option Scheme shall
not be exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at 8
August 2019 (i.e. 91,320,403 Shares).

During the year, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed
or cancelled under the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 March 2021
and the date of this annual report, there was no outstanding share
option under the Share Option Scheme.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme” above
and note 36 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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As at 31 March 2021, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV
of the SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed in
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company” under this report, the
following Shareholders had notified the Company and the Stock
Exchange of their relevant interests in the ordinary shares and
underlying shares of the Company, which represent 5% or more of

the total issued share capital of the Company:

Long positions in the ordinary shares and the

underlying shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder

TERRHEEB

Magical Profits Limited

Accumulate More Profits
Limited

The Winterbotham Trust
Company Limited
mEEREFRAERAA

Winterbotham Holdings
Limited

Mr. Christopher Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper

Sea Rejoice Limited
LFBRAA

Mr. Koon Wing Yee
BKELL

Notes

B &

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(ii)

(i)

Capacity

54

Beneficial owner

EmBEAA

Interest of controlled Corporation
REEEEZ R

Interest of controlled corporation
— Trustee

REFEEZESE —FEA

Interest of controlled Corporation

REFEE 2R

Interest of controlled Corporation
EEGEE 2 R

Beneficial owner

BEHBERA

Interest of spouse

fic (5 7 &=

Number of
Shares held

FEROGHA

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

29,179,480

17,429,664

17,429,664
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BmEI TIHIBRREMNEARANE] KB
ERARDEE®RR D &EBR 52 HE
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Percentage of
the Company’s
total issued
share capital
HE#T
RAEE 2z
BHAED

35.49%

35.49%

35.49%

35.49%

35.49%

21.20%

21.20%
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Notes:

(i) 29,179,480 Shares are registered in the name of and are beneficially
owned by Magical Profits Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited in its capacity
as the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust. The Winterbotham
Trust Company Limited is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham
Holdings Limited. Winterbotham Holdings Limited is owned as to
approximately 99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper.

(ii) 17,429,664 Shares are owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which is
wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu,
is deemed to be interested in 17,429,664 shares of the Company in
which Ms. Lui Yuk Chu was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

Details of related party transactions for the year are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
The Company has not entered into other transactions with its
connected parties which are required to be disclosed in this annual
report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

With regard to the related party transactions which also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions,
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they
are applicable.

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

EE

(i)  29,179,4808% % 15 A Magical Profits Limited
PERBEELLRAEESESE  ZARA
Accumulate More Profits Limited & & & -
i Accumulate More Profits Limited 8l B 1
A& The Magical 2000 Trust 2 1 5T AR 45 18
HRETHERAREZEHA - Winterbotham
Holdings Limited R )R 1R ET B R A
A] % B75% # # ° Christopher Geoffrey
Douglas Hooper %t “ H Winterbotham
Holdings Limited # 5 #799.99% & = ©

(i) 17429664 R EALEFERAGEE -
ZRARDHEARARNTEEEEKR X
TERE - BRELEERETEYU R LT
BE wEABREERLTHEARKZ
17,429,664 R AT RMD P A EH -

Br b SCPT#E EE & AN 0 R20219F3A318 » K
ARV EETWALT(BEERIARAEELT
BRABBRINEEG - HRARQR DK HEEE
BB EREESFR P EEPEXVIEE
2R3N W2 EXBRMARRWEZERZ R
KB RIRIEES K E KB E3361K A
RALRRRGFEZERMAZERZRAR -

AEEBBALIRGZABHARAERZ
fre IS MR M RE38 o AR T I £ B H
BALTAZEMRE ETRANEMATA
REAFHEPRBELRS °

HREAREBRNHERIAFERERS 2
MBALIRS  ARFERE EWHAE
VAEHEHEHBRBERTERZBERATETH
BAAE

REABETLXFEETAAKEZ K
ERERABOEBZERERITRAL °



During the year, the five (5) largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 66.26% of the Group's purchases and
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 23.40% of the
Group's purchases.

The five (5) largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 40.64% of the Group’s revenue and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 13.63% of the Group's
revenue.

Save as disclosed and to the best knowledge of the Company,
none of the Directors and their respective close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s total issued share capital) have any
interest in the five (5) largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

The Group values its employees who are the Group’s most
important assets. Staff are rewarded with competitive
remuneration packages and benefits. The Group is committed to
fostering a conducive, harmonious and discrimination-free working
environment. Occupational health and safety is the top priority
across the Group’s operations. Safety guidelines are established to
safeguard the employees from any occupational hazards.

The Group is also dedicated to providing high quality properties,
products and services to meet our customers’ needs and is
striving to maintain good relationship and close communication
with our business partners, banks, contractors and vendors. Thus,
senior management of the Group have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
as and when appropriate. During the year, there was no material
and significant dispute between the Group and its business
partners.

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$91,000.
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The emoluments mechanism of employees of the Group is set up
and approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Board on
the basis of employee’s performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.

The emolument of the Directors is determined by the Board
after review and on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to factors such as time commitment
and responsibilities of Directors, the Company's performance and
the prevailing market practice.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible participants. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above.

Under the Bye-laws, and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, every Director and other officers of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any
of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices and related
matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter
in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
of them. A Directors Liability Insurance is in place to protect the
Directors and officers of the Company against potential costs and
liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors and
officers of the Company.

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from pages 28 to 44 of
this annual report.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
of its Shares as required under the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 March 2021.
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The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2021 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Information of the duties of Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 34 to 35 in this annual report.

Events after the end of reporting period are set out in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 24 of
this annual report and in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, certified public accountants, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as independent
auditor of the Company at the 2021 AGM.

By order of the Board

Koon Ho Yan Candy

President and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERBRE

REPORTING STANDARD AND SCOPE

This Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG"”) Report
(the "ESG Report”) was prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide") set
out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. It provides an overview of
the ESG management approach as well as sustainability initiatives
and performance of the Group for the period from 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021 (the “"Reporting Period”).

The scope of this ESG Report covers our property investment,
securities investment and loan financing operations which
represent the Group’s most significant economic, environmental
and social impacts.

For a full list of ESG aspects, respective key performance
indicators (“KPIs") and their reference within this ESG Report,
please see the ESG guide content index included on pages 70 to
73.

Reporting Principles

|dentified ESG issues that are
material to the Group and
stakeholders for disclosure
HRHAEBREFENEBEZMIRE -
HERELEE  FABBESHE

Materiality
EEM

E1t

Adopted consistent
methodologies for meaningful
data comparisons over time
RA—ROBRERFE
CEBBRAEAEREMNLR

Consistency

— Bt P

57

Quantitative

Balance

HREEENEHE

AIRE HEREA(RE HERERD
RE(TRE -HERERBEDIBRE LT
MAMESE =+ EFEMORE - LERER
HFEEID(IRE - HERERESIINE
iR B o AN R Bl AN & B 78202054 A1
AZ2021F3A3E MU HREHBE]) MR
RN EREREESHUALTFERRE
iR KRB o

ABRE - L@ REIARS A E R ERM
MMERE BLHERENEFREER
THASEREE RERMERBAATE
FENNEBEE -

ERARE HEehEREBENFRBTE -
MENRRAMES(AREREERD R
HEARARE HEREABEAMNEL
FRFIOETBEMERE 4@ RERIES
NERS -

BEE 3 SR Al

Disclosed KPIs in a measurable
manner
LAR] FarE A7 R BB A BUEIE

Provided an unbiased picture of
the Group's ESG performance
TMRT A 2BAEBOHERE HLER
ERRE
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RIE - HEBRERBHRSE

Materiality Assessment EEMFMG

The Group conducted a materiality review to determine material A&EBEIR =S BRFETEEUHEZ - MU

ESG issues for disclosure by following a three-step process: ETERAEREENEERE HERE
AR

Reviewed ESG disclosures of industry peers to identify common disclosure practices.
PEL e ZRRELATNERE  HERERBESE  URERIERNIBEEEL -
97

The Group’s senior management convened a meeting to confirm a finalised list of material KPIs for disclosure.

Validation FEEEREEECHER  URREZERENEREE  FRAKESE -

27
e

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY TtEHEEE

The Group recognises that our business has an important role in =~ RNREBERHEE| - HAIWEBEHBEZEEE
contributing to a more sustainable future. As we drive business f - AZ R EMAIFENREKELTE o
growth, we strive to integrate corporate social responsibility ERFIHEESEFERARRE - P8 K
(“CSR") into our day-to-day operations. Guided by our CSR Policy, {t%¥#te@&fF((bgdesSE)@R AR
we have made continuous efforts to manage our environmental &8 - AN XM @ ETHEMNIEET - &
footprint, stock a robust talent pipeline and cater to the needs of AT Z N ERBRMNIRELT  FHER
the disadvantaged. AKBWAFTBEE TREDLHENTE -

58
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RIS - eERERHE

The Company is committed to the sustainable management of
our environmental footprint and continual improvement of our
performance. In line with our environmental stewardship, we
focus our efforts on energy efficiency, resource management and
cultivation of environmental awareness among employees.

Energy Conservation

BRI REIR

ARBBNERMORFERPETAFE
B A AEHHERR - RESHRMNIR
BEER BRALITEEXRREE RS
BREELBBEEINRREAL -

Promote staff awareness
BEEIESR

Monitor consumption data
ESHEBEE

Energy Consumption and Emissions

Electricity consumption in our managed properties and office
premises represents a significant proportion of our carbon footprint.
To this end, we actively explore energy-saving opportunities and
adopt hardware upgrades to enhance our energy performance
over time. At our managed properties, we transitioned all our
lighting fixtures to LED lights and equipped motion sensor controls
in public areas to ensure efficient energy use and to minimise
unnecessary consumption. We also maintain indoor temperatures
at a comfortable 24°C to 26°C and installed low emissivity or
double-glazed windowpanes to optimise thermal conditions and
insultation, reducing heat loss. Our offices are also renovated
with energy efficiency in mind, for instance, we maximise natural
lighting wherever possible to reduce the need for lighting fixtures.
We also set up an independently controlled lighting system to allow
for flexible and efficient usage of lights in different office areas.
When procuring appliances and electronics, the Group has placed
an emphasis on choosing newer more energy-efficient models.
To maximise cooling efficiency, we regularly hire professional
technicians to clean or replace our air filtration elements. During
lunch breaks and outside of office hours, the air-conditioning and
power connections are also partially turned off.
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Waste and Resource Management BYRERERE

The major type of waste at workplace is paper with some other I {ESFIHM T BEYEHARLHAR 86—
non-hazardous wastes such as carton box of smaller amounts, LHMEZEZY WHERIHHSE
while hazardous wastes produced are of immaterial amount. The MELXHNEEZEREREZYEHR L & - KEEH
Group encourages all employees to demonstrate sustainable B2 EETHHE I(ERERAZETS
behaviour in their everyday routines to foster a resource efficient MNIZBELHE RN TIEX - HFIERE
work culture. Our staff are directed to use digital copy file T RERAEFAHBRERE R BT KR

whenever possible, including for financial reports, meeting notices, & * & &%

2020/214F ¥

B BEEBXRTRRORA

circulars, and corporate information issued to our shareholders &l © & AR A B DRI ENRI & B E TE -
which significantly reduced our printing and mailing. When hard & H Z# B2 I AE - B MIEEF B BE

copies are necessary, we promote the use of recycled and Forest N &HZMERZ

Stewardship Council certified paper and use double-sided printing £ FA & E 5l E -

by default.

2 & 27 5%
H5®RE

BARR - SRR

Besides paper, we are also cognisant of reducing the general &K RIN > BFMEZHZBR D ERMD
waste generated in our offices and managed properties. Inour WAEMEEBMEELN —RED - £

office common area, we provide durable and reusable food &) ¥t A=A
containers, cutlery, and cups to eliminate single-use plastics BEFAMNEMA L

B i IR PR AT A AT
BERARMTF  AFERBE

as much as possible. The Group has also set up multi-material EGBENEBE - AEBACERME
recycling collection bins in the public areas of our managed EYWENAHLEBEIHERE ZE YR EIUWFE -

properties.

In line with the Group's resource management approach, we also B AEEBEBNEREE H i BRAMIEE
place a heavy importance on efficient use of water and strive ERBMBK EYEAITHEBRTE N
to conserve resources where practicable. We conduct regular  #i# &R - B EAEHBREE B8 MKEE
monthly inspections on our pipes and taps to ensure no leakages 28 BERKMPIOPWANEFAIAEE W E T E

in our office premises and managed properties. Additionally, I8 JJ7K o 1tk 4 >

BMREEMALTFER

sensor taps and water efficient fixtures were installed in all the FREKEBEREKESE  UF FihE B

washrooms to better manage water consumption. FEKE ©
Consumption ¥ i & Unit E{x

Electricity & J3:
—intotal A2 S 5t '000 kWh F & F EL B
— by intensity LA 2 & 5+ ‘000 kWh/FTEF TR E "SR 2B ES

Petrol ;5 jH:

—in total LA 48 £ 5t Litre & Ft

— by intensity A% & &F Litre/FTERF SR 2B E 8
Water 7K:

—intotal LA 42 € =t m337 5 K

— by intensity JA % & &t mYFTEY FK SR 2BES

2020/215 &

79.55
2.49

10.18
0.32

530
16.56

2019/20F &

81.03
2.53

8.72
0.27

462
14.44



2020/21 Annual Report

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group's GHG emissions were
mainly resulted from energy consumption whereas water and
paper use account for a relatively small amount as represented by
Scope 3 emissions.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BEREBHEME Unit E1{Z

Scope 1 emission & E18E ) £
Scope 2 emission & E 28 K £
Scope 3 emission & B3 =

—intotal A2 S 5t
— by intensity LA % [Z 51

Cultivating Environmental Awareness

To build a lasting environmentally conscious culture, we actively
raise sustainability awareness of our employees. At our office
premises, signs and internal notices relating to responsible energy,
water and material consumption are posted in common areas and
washrooms to strengthen the awareness of energy conservation
and consumption reduction for all employees, which helps to
guide all employees to form good habits of conservation and
environmental protection, thus laying a solid foundation for the
sustainable development of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, there were no non-compliance cases
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

tonnes of CO,eME — AL fix &
tonnes of CO,e M — &1L
tonnes of CO e M = AL %

tonnes of CO,eME — AL fix &
tonnes of CO_eME — €L ik &
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g 2758 23.62

mE = 44.51 45.56
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£ E 72.30 69.37

g 2.26 217
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Employees are the engine which drives the success of our
business. As such, we remain committed to providing an inclusive,
engaging and supportive work environment which facilitates
personal development and safeguards the health and well-being of
all employees.

Caring
Company
/? PR T
HAH
Occupational
ey OUR PEOPLE
B
&
Business
RESREE

Caring Company

The Group takes great care to ensure a workplace free from
any prejudice or discrimination, supporting fair recruitment and
employment practices based on individual merit, experience and
qualifications regardless of race, religion, gender, disability, family
status, age or any other basis restricted by law.

To attract and retain every talent, we offer attractive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits, including medical health insurance
and a range of leave entitlements. Our human resources
department is responsible for annual performance appraisals
and determines promotion arrangements and salary increments.
Additionally, we encourage our employees to maintain a good
work-life balance by organising different staff activities such as
festive celebrations, weekly breakfasts and mealtime gatherings.
We also organise monthly dessert days where Chinese sweet
soups are offered. To enable employees to share festive joy
with their families, such as Chinese New Year's Eve, Mid-
Autumn Festival and Christmas Eve, staff is dismisssed earlier for
celebration. Through these events, we look to cultivate a stronger
communal and caring spirit within the Group and facilitate deeper
interpersonal connections among our colleagues.

e
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Development
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During the Reporting Period, there were no cases of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations' relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, labour
practices, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

Occupational Health and Safety

Ensuring staff health and safety of is always our priority. Following
our safety guidelines, we have worked diligently and implemented
precautionary measures to minimise potential occupational hazards
across our operations. For instance, an emergency protocol has
also been established providing guidance on standard procedures
to handle extreme weather situations such as typhoons and
rainstorm warnings. At our office premises, apart from conducting
regular fire drills and carpet cleaning, we ensure a clear indication
of emergency evacuation routes which are unobstructed at
all times. Similar control measures have been put in place at
our managed properties alongside quarterly inspections of the
firefighting system, including sprinklers and smoke detectors.

Our COVID-19 support

From the initial stages of the COVID-19 pandemic, our focus has
remained on the safety of employees. We have implemented
several measures to reduce the transmission risk on our premises
and provided staff with essential anti-epidemic supplies. In addition
to stepping up the frequency of our cleansing and disinfection
procedures, we set up a designated temperature screening
station at the entrance of our premises to monitor employees and
visitors for the symptoms of fever. We have also required staff to
wear surgical masks or suitable personal protective equipment
and check their body temperature daily before reporting to work.
Multiple sanitisation points have been in place at our managed
properties for tenants to practise hand hygiene. To help build
an immune barrier for the entire community, we encourage
employees to get vaccinated. Staff members are entitled to a day
of vaccination leave for each vaccination does received so that
they can have sufficient time to recuperate after getting a jab.

During the Reporting Period, there were no reported cases of non-
compliance with applicable occupational health and safety laws
and regulations? that have a significant impact on the Group.

T Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

2 Including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Chapter 509).
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Training and Development

To remain agile in a fast-paced business environment, we support
staff at all levels to enhance their professional knowledge to
cater to the needs of employees from different departments and
at varied career stages. To encourage continuous learning, we
subsidise staff members to participate in different external training,
including courses, seminars and workshops. Our employees are
also eligible to receive one day of paid study leave for the purpose
of learning and development.

Business Ethics

The Company upholds the highest ethical standards and
accountability throughout our operations and has a zero-tolerance
approach for corruption or malpractice of any form. All employees
are required to follow our Employee’s Handbook which outlines
our expectations for professional and appropriate behaviour. To
support our policies on ethics and integrity, a group-level Whistle-
blowing Mechanism provides a confidential channel for employees
to raise concerns about suspected misconduct. To ensure whistle-
blowers can raise grievances without fear of reprisal, all cases are
treated in strict confidence and submitted to designated personnel
for thorough investigation.

During the Reporting Period, there were no confirmed cases of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
corrupt practices.

Supply Chain Management

As part of our supply chain management approach, we prioritise
business partners who share our dedication to environmentally
and socially responsible practices. To ensure our stringent
requirements are fully met, appropriate monitoring and assessment
mechanisms have been put in place. Suppliers who fail to deliver
the promised quality are subject to a series of inspections and
reviews. This holistic approach enables us to better manage ESG-
related risks arising from our supply chain whilst building effective
long-term relationships with our partners.
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At our managed properties we have appointed specialised
consultants to provide advisory services on equipment and
materials procurement. The consultants have been specially
directed by the Group to consider sustainability factors such as
energy consumption and environmentally sustainable materials in
addition to quality and costs.

Responsible Services

The delivery of quality and responsible services is essential to our
business sustainability. As such, we have established stringent
mechanisms and standard procedures to provide employees
with guiding principles in relation to quality assurance, customer
service and privacy. For instance, we have set out complaint-
handling procedures to handle and address customer concerns in a
consistent and timely manner.

In respect of the Group’s money lending business, the Group
puts great effort to ensure our compliance with the Anti-money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter
615 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other ordinances which
combat money laundering and terrorist financing. The Group
has established policy and procedures to govern the operation
process, which include prudent due diligence to identify and verify
the customers and beneficial owners, as well as the purpose and
intended nature of the business relationship, constant monitoring
to identify and report suspicious activities or transactions,
comprehensive record keeping and staff awareness training.

In respect of the Group's securities investment business, we follow
the guidelines outlined by the Independent Commission Against
Corruption and Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC").
The securities investment team comprises of professionals with
diversified backgrounds licensed with the SFC in various regulated
activities: dealing in securities (Type 1), advising on securities (Type
4) and asset management (Type 9).
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Complaint-handling

We actively seek feedback from our tenants and have also set
out designated communications channels for any complaints or
enquires. Once a complaint, enquiry, or maintenance request has
been received, it will be logged and classified based on the nature
of the issue and level of urgency. The issue will then be passed
along to the relevant teams which will handle and communicate
back to the tenants according to our standard procedures in a
timely and effective manner.

Data Privacy

The Group places great importance on data privacy and customer
information handling. We set out clear privacy guidelines
and procedures covering the use and management of data
and information in accordance with the relevant regulatory
requirements, including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.
Only authorised personnel can access customer data on a need-
to-know and need-to-use basis. Employees are required to follow
our personal data handling procedures and only directly relevant
personal information required for business transactions are
collected from customers. No personal data is collected by any
third parties without prior consent and authorisation from the data
owners.

During the Reporting Period, there were no complaint cases
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

We leverage our resources to contribute to the position
development of the communities we serve. Working together
with the Easyknit Charitable Foundation, we help to support
underprivileged members of our communities through donations
and collaboration with other charities and social enterprises.
During the Reporting Period, the Group contributed HK$91,000 in
community investment. Apart from offering financial and in-kind
contributions to people in need, we encourage staff to participate
in different charitable activities and voluntary services.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B HRREARE

HKEx KPI Data Table BXFTERENIEEHER

A. Environmental
RIB
A1.2 |Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BERBAHTHREREE
Scope 1 emission Tonnes of CO_e 2758
#HENHEME W — | LiREE '
Scope 2 emission Tonnes of COe 44.51
#HE2BEME WE— etk E 8 '
Scope 3 emission Tonnes of CO_e 0.91
HESHHE WE— St E 8 '
— in total T fCO
na ommes of GO 7230
— NN E3 M-—atixg £
— by intensity Tonnes of CO,e/FTE
— AEE & W _fatinEg8 EH 2.26
A1.4 |Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
BERREYELBLERREE
Concrete and Metal tonne
o . 72411
BET RSB Mg
tonne/FTE
. e 22.63
W/ EREBES
Paper Waste kg
1,128
JEE 4% F=
ka/FTE
o VA= 35.25
FTr/SR2HBEE
Recycled Metal tonne
299.06
B & & 7
tonne/FTE
. VA= 9.35
W/ ERE2BES

67/
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RIE - HEBRERBHRSE

A2.1 |Energy consumption by type and intensity

REVNBINEREERREE

Direct Energy Consumption

BEERRAEE

—in total ‘000 kWh

_peE: TETRS 9274

— by intensity ‘000 kWh/FTE

— B E TEFER SH 2B 2.90
&8

Indirect Energy Consumption

MEZEREE

— in total ‘000 kWh

e E TET R 79-55

— by intensity ‘000 KWh/FTE

— UEE T TEFERE "SR 2B 2.49
B8

Total Energy Consumption

BEeRFEE

— in total ‘000 kWh

s TETRE 17229

— by intensity ‘000 KWh/FTE

— UEE T TEFRE /"SR 2B 5.38
EE8

A2.2 | Water consumption in total and intensity

BEKEREE

Water Consumption

FEKE

— in total m?3

B Bk °%0

— by intensity m3/\FTE 16.56

— UBmE 5T NAEK/EREBES
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B. Social
e
B1.1 |Total workforce by employment type and gender Male Female
REREERMAESNESEY EeRed gl
Etjll;nme Number of people 14 13
£ AN
Part-time Number of people 0 0
e BBk A
Total workforce by employment type and age group Under 30 30-50 Above 50
REBEARFRAMNIAINEELY 30 AT | 308% £505% | 5088 A £
;Jg%;me Dl\u;ber of people 3 15 9
Part-time Number of people 0 0 0
e Bk A
B1.2 |Employee turnover rate by gender Male Female
ReERBsNESRALZR B 7
% 21.43% 15.38%
:I':)E:fyee turnover rate by age Under 30 30-50 | Above 50
5 45 8 40 B 215 19 1B B 7 & b 2 30B% LA™ | 305% £505% | 505% A £
% 33.33% 6.67% 33.33%
B2.1 |Number and rate of work-related fatalities
EIEBEMETHASERER
— By number Number of people 0
— A A BT A
— By rate % 0
— A &
B2.2 |Lost days due to work injury
EIEEATHEAY
— Staff Days 0
—B8T B#
B6.2 | Number of products and service related complaints received
EERRERRBRBHNIRFHE
Number of complaints 0
(o 4=
B7.1 |Number of concluded cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the company
HARNRARHYEELANESHFARGENHE
Number of cases 0
RHHE
B8.2 |Resources contributed
ERE M
Donations (HK
AR 91,000
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Content Index
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RIE - HERERRE

HKEx KPI
T XX P B 6B

BMER

AESE ]

Description
1 ot

BRTCRR - HEREB®/REESD

Page Index

A. Environmental
RiB

Hig%SI

A1l
Emissions

235 &7

Al General Disclosure 59-61
— MR E
A1 The type of emissions and respective emissions 60-61
data
HER Y & S AR B HE R
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity 67
MERBAFNELEE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity Due to the business
FFEEEERENMBREREE nature of the Group,
this KPI is considered
not material.
ERAEENEBG
B hERERIER
WRBIETEK o
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity 67
MELABREEZEVEERTR
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and 59-61
results achieved
HIUREERENRERAEXNR
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 59-61

wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved

HILEEBEEERESEEYN AL REEAL
EMNEBRFIFKR
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HKEx KPI
B X Fr B #8 Description Page Index
BEREE A BEiS%E5|
A2 A2 General Disclosure 59-61
Use of Resources — R EE
"REA A21 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type 68
in total and intensity
RENEASHEER LHEEREEERE
g
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 60, 68
BREKEREE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and 59-61
results achieved
e RE AR ERAERKR
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 59-61
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency
initiatives and results achieved
A sKEE B AOR LA A EE - U REAR
KR R 5T 8 K BT 1S AR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products | Due to the business
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit|nature of the Group,
produced this KPI is considered
B BATABEMBNEE X(WNEB)E % E | not material.
BAEE ERAEENEBZ M
E o BERERIEE
WRBIETERX o
A3 A3 General Disclosure 59-61
The Environment and — MR
AU L ETRC A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities 59-61

BERRXARER

on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them

Ml EETHERBERRAAERNEAZE
ERDEBEHEZENTD
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HKEx KPI
B X Fr B $#8 Description Page Index
EREE #Hi B &35
B. Social
HE
B1 B1 General Disclosure 62-64
Employment — MR
EE
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age 69
group and geographical region
BRUER - EEER FRANEMWESE S OE
B g
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 69
geographical region
ZMR - FRANRMESSHNEERAE
B2 B2 General Disclosure 63
Health and Safety — MR
BERZZ B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 69
EATIEB@EMILTAAZ KX
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 69
EAITEBERIIERH
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety 63
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored
TR MOBEREREL2E R UEREHE
WITRERAE
B3 B3 General Disclosure 64
Development and — R E
Training
BRREI
B4 B4 General Disclosure 62-64
Labour Standards — R EE
g TR
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HKEx KPI
B X Fr B #8 Description Page Index
EMIEERE RT3
B5 B5 General Disclosure 64
Supply Chain — B E
Management
fitpE e e
B6 B6 General Disclosure 65
Product — B E
;ezp;r};lblllty B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 69
AR = received and how they are dealt with
EEBEANREMRRBIRFHREAREL T X
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 66
policies, how they are implemented and monitored
R EEEERRERLBEE - L RAEBEHT
RERTE
B7 B7 General Disclosure 64-65
Anti-corruption — R E
KRS B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding 69
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
RERBAANEETASEEERETIEELD
BESFREGNHERFRLE
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- 64-66
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored
PSR EREF  ARBEBERITRER
7E
B8 B8 General Disclosure 66
Community — R E
;;g;;rgnt B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 66
. ARG H
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the 66, 69

focus area

EEITHBRAAEBNER(NEENKEH)




Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 227,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

FRREBTFEERBEEMNBZHE - R
REAPHEAMHRENBTR/EEN
FH FELFTHERERMEBARERAM
BHRELEABREETREN - AT
SHELEREHEBNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
BRETEHE
Valuation of investment properties

REYWRZ1GHE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significant judgments
and assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the fair value.

MY BEEEERERETLATERSIRERZ AR
R AABHRENE ZHERS—RBRETFR -

At 31 March 2021, the fair value of investment properties
was approximately HK$1,179 million (note 15 to the
consolidated statement of financial position), with a fair
value loss recognised in profit or loss of approximately
HK$86 million (consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income).

M20215F3A31H * ®REWE R FEK1,179,000,00078
T(REMBRAKMES)  RESERZAFERS
#)/$86,000,0008 T (FEEZ REMEEKER)

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value
based on valuations performed by an independent firm
of qualified professional property valuers (the “Valuers”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EEEREMELATEIREBLAEREEME
AT (MEERDEL 2EES T - FEAEBZEER
EREFBHAZHBENGEMBRERMITIGAEE -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANBTUNEEERETEE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

RMERENEGEEZABEFEE:

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas, key inputs and data used in the valuations;
wEEMmk ESEEEETHRMAEESE WHE
MHEERR FRAZCEZEREX - T EHEHHER -
HEMERZEE2H A REIE:

. Evaluating the competence,
objectivity of the Valuers;

AEGHEMNERS EORTEME:

capabilities and

° Assessing the integrity of information provided
by management of the Group to the Valuers by
comparing, on a sample basis, details of rentals to
the respective underlying existing lease agreements;
and
FRAAMEAALCBRBEREEOZESFEN
i EEEERERMAEMCER TR
M

. Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the
Valuers and management of the Group by comparing
with relevant market information with similar
properties and assessing the appropriateness of
specific assumptions of the properties by reference
to character, location and other individual factors
which affect the valuation of properties.
FRUBAAEDEEBATSENLZ2ZELEY
EHEZDERE  LEMHE M@ 5B = AT
FERSNEEMMAGMEENR EEEERE
BRAZFEHA ZEEMN -



Key audit matter (Continued)

BEEEEE
Impairment assessment of interest in an associate

BE LA ETE

We identified the impairment assessment of interest in
an associate as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the Group’s interest in an associate in the context of
the Group's consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with the judgements and estimations involved in
management’s impairment assessment of the interest in

an associate.
B E5EERBEQRZEZY BESEERNEAS
I & & EEﬂWM”ﬂ%ﬁW

M%ﬁ%ﬂﬁék 5
BB R Ad B8 R B9 H BT R s 3 - R FI8 B B S R R
BZHENEA - BBRESFSFE -

The Group's interest in an associate represented the
interest in Eminence Enterprise Limited (“Eminence”)
with its shares listed in Hong Kong. The carrying value of
the Group’s interests in Eminence as at 31 March 2021
amounted to approximately HK$809 million.

EEERBERAZRERRRRALUEGERRAR(S
MJMA%.S/%LmZH ZfE o M202143A8318 0 &
£ 8] 14 5 L 7 4 2 #) 5 [ {8 £7809,000,0007% 7t °

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, interest in an associate is initially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. As disclosed in notes 4 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements, the carrying value of
the Group's interest in an associate exceeded the market
value of the Group's holding therein as at 31 March 2021.
The management performed impairment assessment
on whether the estimated recoverable amount exceed
the carrying amounts of the interest in an associate. The
recoverable amount of the Group’s interest in an associate
is determined by value in use calculations based on the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected
to be generated by Eminence and its subsidiaries (the
“Eminence Group”), including the cash flows from the
operations of the Eminence Group. No impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss during the year.

BN AP B RERI AW E B2 AR IR
BRAWER » bR ;K@ﬁﬁéﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ??muﬁ
REGBHELFAZEZREMEERA - FMEGA Y
BHMEMTARIGTBEE X SEEZHEQREZRZ
FEEESR SE£EEMN2021F3R3BFEEERR 2T
B -EEEEYHBERANER A INDEERS
SREREBEETRESMG AEEHNBE QA E
SN NE S EILREFEREBNERET  M&ZaT
EEARSUERETFRAR(BLERDBEABEENGE
FEBERENRE BEREsLEEELENRER
EoRFER VTERESEREZNER -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
AMWEtNNEERRESEEHE)

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
interest in an associate included:

PGB E AR REMGE EEREFEHE:

o Understanding the management'’s process for
determination of recoverable amount of the
associate;

TREEEEEHE AR ROeBZIERF:

° Determining the recoverable amount of interest in an
associate by comparing the value in use amounts and
fair value less cost to disposal;
EREBREREERA $@ﬁ£ﬁ%ﬁ$§i%
ERAERZAKRE S

o Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs and
assumptions used by management in their estimation
of value in use amounts; and
AEEREEARAAEREER ZERE AR
BEMHEEN: K

o Performing sensitivity analysis on key inputs to
evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on the
calculation of the recoverable amount of the
associate.

HERGAETHREDN - UG H 5 L
ERRAINESENFTENZENRN -
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Key audit matter (Continued)

BEETEEE
Impairment assessment of loans receivable

W B 52 E A1

We identified the impairment assessment of loans
receivable as a key audit matter due to the significance of
balances to the Group's consolidated financial position and
involvement of significance management judgment and
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses of loans
receivable at the end of the reporting period.
R|EBMKR TH EEBECERKERZEHREE
BEE BREREREREAERGZESMKRR
Eﬁ&ﬁ&ég%ﬁﬁﬁ%%&ﬁ%'ﬁﬁ%%%
WERZ BENGA—HBEETEE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in making the assessment, the loans
receivable from borrowers are assessed individually by
the management of the Group, based on the financial
background, financial collateral and the historical settlement
records, including the past due dates and default rates,
of each borrower and forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable and available without undue costs
or effort. Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate the expected credit loss,
taking into consideration of the estimates of expected
cash shortfalls. At every reporting date, the financial
background, collateral and the historical settlement records
are reassessed and relevant information from public
domain and changes in the forward-looking information
such as forward-looking macroeconomic information are

considered.

ﬁ@%é%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ REHREER - &
SEHEEEeTMSERAZHBEES HERRR
Fiﬁﬁﬁﬁ BEAHARENER  UEKEE .

ﬁﬁFHT%IﬂMEEK%EﬁﬁiWﬁZﬁW
MEEH - FERMRBARIEEFREDERBFE -
M% IEHEREE %ﬁﬂﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁihﬂ
RERERH EFRFTLMEES BERRRESL
zMﬁﬁM&XQQ%%WMH@P {71 40 A BE 1
FERBEEEAZEMELRERNES -

At 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of loans receivable
was approximately HK$143 million, net of accumulated
impairment allowance of approximately HK$81 million (note
21 to the consolidated financial statements).

7202143 H31H - & I & X Bk M {8 £9143,000,000
%ﬁ@@%%f*Zﬁ%ﬁﬁ%Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
81,000,000/ 7T (45 & 91 7% ¥k 3= fd 5221)) o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
EMWEFNNEERREEEE)

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
loans receivable included:

BAHRKRER ZREF G ZHEREIREF 2 :

° Understanding the Group's policy on granting loans to
its borrowers and the Group's credit and impairment
assessments including the related credit control and
loan monitoring process;

7% EEBEREHERTEERAZHER
k EEEEERBENGHREREEEZE
RESERIER:

. Evaluating the management’s assessment on
the credit quality of the borrowers by examining
records including financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history
of the borrowers and relevant information from public
domain
TEEEEERASHAEERAVEER &

Ef#ﬂ ERGRELERER 2N
ﬁﬁﬁ*AEfﬁ%u&X@ﬂﬁﬁﬁWﬁ%

l:ll_/'

° Checking the past due dates of outstanding loans
receivable against the loan agreements for the terms
of the loans to identify any significant change in
credit risk or default in loans receivable;
BEERHZEZERERR E*Eﬁﬁ%ﬁm
m@%aw Mﬁmﬁ%ﬁmZﬁ % 3 B A

EREMERES:

° Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the impairment assessment
of the loans receivable as at year-end by checking the
historical settlement records on a sample basis;

BEMEELERCE  ARXEEERRFR
ﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬂﬁ%ﬁ%@%Zﬁﬂz*ﬁ
3

. Evaluating the expected cash shortfalls estimated
by the management by checking the expected cash
flows from the realisation of collaterals received, if
any, against publicly available information; and
BBAHRARE EWUmﬁﬁm@ﬁmﬁ
,Hﬂﬁi//wg(mﬁ) 15'“"{@15#5’]1@\%@%
TR R

J Assessing the reasonableness of forward-looking
information used by the Group.

Ak EEEMEMRMNELERNZSEN -



The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

2020/214F ¥
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BRWER RUKAMBERREBRES
TEEARKFFAFERMEMNE KHER
RAMBAERE UYRRARERRE
FBFEMREEMEZ BB RO ABSERM
ERMZBEMBE o Rt A HANRK
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BHREREAERBHEHRRAELOLE
RE - AABMERRAATERIEEK -

EREEFEABEFENETEANBES
BMERTERHE RETEREERE
J& o AP IT -

o G BIANEYfh e RO HKRE Bk BR AR 1T 8 AR
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g
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Leung Chui Shan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2021

REBEBABBNFEET - HMETHL
EEUAHEEMBERRNBARRER
D i 4 B B 4 B AT R o 3P 7 A% BUET TR
SR ELER  RIPDEFEMRTAR
AABRELER HEBRFELNER
T MREEEMERMBRSTEBRES
HEKNBERRBEEEN AR
BIORETEERETBBEZER -

HAABY RBARENBHERABA
2RBRM -

o>

EH-BMERS AT
e -]
)

—E-—FXNAZ+N1AH



2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

2021 2020
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
B it FET FET
Revenue R
Sales of properties MEHEE 275,319 e
Rental income Helk A 32,815 38,957
Interest income from loan financing REBERBEFR B A 13,726 23,487
Building management BEFER 1,522 1,189
Total revenue ME R 5 323,382 63,633
Cost of properties sold and services HEY X RIRH R
rendered DN (223,382) (2,427)
Gross profit £ 100,000 61,206
Other income, gains and losses Hapg A Yz BB 8,003 11,009
Distribution and selling expenses #85H AK ZN (29,205) (13,009)
Administrative expenses T (49,075) (57305)
Loss on changes in fair value of "EYE 2 ATFEEDY
investment properties &5 18 5 (85,640) (196,888)
Reversal of write-down (write-down) on ¥ {E 5 & %) 2 2 5 (& # @
properties held for sale (R 1E) 300 (578)
Write-down on properties held for BIELEBRRMEZ
development for sale WA 24 (19,572) (28,573)
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of EAFEFAEBRZ
financial assets at fair value through /i\wﬁé“?,z 1B
profit or loss (“FVTPL") FEglh=(BE) 80,462 (28,824)
Gain on changes in fair value of financial A&k & & A FEFTA
assets at FVTPL upon modification BazemBEEZR
FEEZB W= 73,520 =
Release on disposal of debt instruments & H &% A FE A
at fair value through other Hih2mEWE 2B
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") ITA 970 1,051
(Impairment loss) reversal of impairment € &t & & 2 CREE1E)
loss on financial assets: HE B E R
— Loans receivable, net —F R E K 21 (47,791) (29,256)
— Debt instruments at FVTOCI — B AFEFTAEM
PHEWEZES
ITE 19 (306) (126)
— Other debt instruments at —REEKAEEL
amortised cost H Aty TI?‘IE 20 1,650 (4,353)
— Other receivables —ﬁﬁﬂr&“ﬂﬂl IR — (1,819)
Share of results of an associate g RNADIHE % 16 (53,799) (55,676)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of R AN E A o2 AR
equity interest in an associate Mk EEREBE 16 - (130,957)
Gain on bargain purchase of additional 7 ¢ B8 %8 4MNB: 2 A &) &
interest in an associate Endisavd E%FH&Z Bl = 16 58,471 200,462
Share of results of a joint venture —HEaERRANIEES (5) (1,678)
Finance costs A& R 7 (19,022) (23,622)
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AE R (B 18) 8 18,961 (298,936)
Taxation B 18 10 2,968 877
Profit (loss) for the year KEE & F (EE) 21,929 (298,059)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

2021
NOTE HK$000
B i FET
Other comprehensive income HihZ2EWK = (BAX)
(expense)
Items that may be reclassified fE f;% AJEEE T DX 18
subsequently to profit or loss: ==
Share of other comprehensive income DG B & QX7 2 H b
(expense) of an associate: 2 2EKEFESZ) :
Share of translation reserve of an DAREEE N E] 2R
associate {5 1 10,078
Share of FVTOCI reserve of an DR ERE 2D
associate FEFARMEE
U 25 8 18 16
Reclassification of translation REEREEATE
reserve to profit or loss upon ZHRABHERER
deemed partial disposal of A B o 7 25 B BT
interest in an associate without NEEBERCER
loss of significant influence ik 1 —
Reclassification of FVTOCI reserve REBREERTE
to profit or loss upon deemed ZRBLEREQ
partial disposal of interest A 5B 5 7 25 By BT
in associate without loss of NEEBERZIER
significant influence FEFAEMEE
I 25 e —
10,194
Release on disposal of debt R L ERAFEEA
instruments at FVTOCI Htbh2mK w2 EH
TA (970)
Change in fair value of debt EAFEFAHME
instruments at FVTOCI mlmvEBBIAZ
NEEEH 747
Impairment loss on debt instruments BEAFEGFAHME
at FVTOCI included in profit or loss, HlmzBEBEIAZ
net FREBBRIETRE
e 306
Other comprehensive income (expense) N4 & 7 H ith 2 U =5
for the year G- 10,277
Total comprehensive income (expense) ANFE z 2@z ()
for the year 4B FE 32,206
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:  ZA&AFE % F (B 8) H 1k
Owners of the Company VNN S 22,308
Non-controlling interest I 22 A% HE = (379)
21,929
Total comprehensive income (expense) Kifiﬁuﬁl 5 (B 2)
for the year attributable to: ok
Owners of the Company $’A a] i 3R 32,585
Non-controlling interest FEE R B = (379)
32,206
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per PR E AR EERT
share (E518) 2 HK$0.25

2020
HK$'000
FET

(7965)

(98b)

1,350

126

(8,904)

(306,963)

(297,755)

(304)

(298,059)

(306,659)
(304)

(306,963)

HK$(3.26)



Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Interest in an associate
Interest in a joint venture
Financial assets at FVTPL

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

Other debt instruments at amortised
cost

Loans receivable

Intangible asset

Deferred tax assets

Deposits

Current assets

Properties held for development for
sale

Properties held for sale

Financial assets at FVTPL

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable

Loans receivable

Bank balances and cash

Asset classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder

Tax payable

Lease liabilities

Secured bank borrowings

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

=

/)

1L

ME BEKRERE
FREEAE
wEYE

R NETE Y
—TT“AQAH B
BERAFEFABRZ
SREE
BEAFEFAHME
Kz zEBITA
REHEKATEZE
hiEE TR
G

EREE
ELEREEE

i

BEE
FRELEERME

FIELEME
AP EFABRRZ

L

Ih

TREE
BRFEFTARME
mR S ERTA
B 5 & H & WA
A @ £ IR
J& U B R
RITEHRERE
DERBIFLHEZEE
mBAE
B 5 N H Al KR
BHAE
FE& A5 — i 3F 12 B AR IR
|
& B IR
HE&E
BEERMRITIER
mEEEFR

EERBRAB AR

NOTES
ioa

13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22

31
23

24

18

19
25

21
26

20

27
27

28

30
29
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At 31 March 2021 #2021¥3531H

2021
HK$’000
FET

107,138
493
1,179,400
808,718
57

211,446
4,030
15,209
17,280
500

8,724
10,205

2,363,200

950,375
960,930

148,876
7,740
38,218
309

125,736
308,222

2,540,406

2,540,406
41,047
6,276
101,288
51,573
510
468,010
668,704
1,871,702

4,234,902

2020
HK$'000
FET

79,146
1,231
1,265,040
788,883
62

100,162
25,700

15,215
13,278
500
2,632
205

2,292,054

1,984,981
118,603

72,696

3,843
9,199
530
223,473
117920

2,631,245
34,830

2,566,075

52,162

90,348
50,351
851
823,275

1,016,987

1,549,088

3,841,142
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BERR R

At 31 March 2021 #2021¥3531H

2021 2020
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
& FE T F#E T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEE 29 1,004,457 604,911
Lease liabilities MHE&aE 30 - 410
1,004,457 605,321
3,230,445 3,235,821
Capital and reserves BEARKHE
Share capital [N 32 8,220 9,132
Reserves & 3,223,053 3,227138
Equity attributable to owners of the ARAElZBREELER
Company 3,231,273 3,236,270
Non-controlling interest JEPE R (828) (449)
3,230,445 3,235,821

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 227 were #E & R2021F6H29B L E R BHEH X E
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 828 E227B 2 &4 BEHEK - WH 5=

June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: ERKRBE:
TSE WING CHIU RICKY KOON HO YAN CANDY
EiE B AR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEREREER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143531A 1F £ &

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAREARE
Property Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Translation Special  Contributed FVTOC  revaluation  Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium Teserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interest Total
BATE
ARt
2ENE 9EER
Be  REEE  RABE  EXRE  RHRE  RARS e BE  EHE g FBRES i
000 000 000 000 H$000 H$ 000 H$ 000 H$ 000 H$ 000 000 000 000
AT 71 71 FEr FET FET FET FEL FET AT 71 FEr
fhoted) frote ) fhoteg) froted
(W) W) (Wi G
At April 2019 R0195E4E1B 9132 M3 196,565 (289) 9800 2097 188 69872 2770864 3547495 [145) 3547350
Release on disposal of debtinstuments B HERATEHAL B2
atFVIoc] AhERBIZ - - - - - - (1051 - - (1061) S (1051)
Netloss on debt instruments at FVTOCI - BAFEFAEB2EREL
EEIREER - - - - - - ] - - (34 - (33
Impgiment loss on debt nstumentsat - STABEF EATEHAL
FUTOC! ncluded in profit orloss 2 EkEZBEIAZE
BEE S - - - - - 126 - - 126 - 126
Share of other comprehensive expense  SHEBEATAB2 AR
of an associate - - - 6,618) - - (1,021) S = (7636 - (76361
Loss forthe year FEREE - - - - - - - - (29778 (29775 (304 (298059
Total comprehensie expense forthe  AEE Z2ERREE
year - = = 6,615) = S 2,289 o 297755) (306,659) (304) 306,963
2020 finaldiidend paid rote 71) WNEEEIRRERS
(W) - - - - - - - - (4566 (45660 > [1566)
At31 March 2020 RNNEIR3NE 9132 m3 196,565 9,508) 9,800 2097 (404) 69,872 2468543 3236210 (a9 3235821
Release on disposal of debtinstruments  ERHERATEFAZH2
atFVToC] AhEzERIZ - - - - - - (0) = = (970) = (970)
Net gan on debt instruments at VTOCI  BATEALB2ENEL
EHIREhE - - - - - - W - - W - I
Impaimentloss on debtinstrumentsat — ABERz FATEFAL
FVTOCIincluded in profitor loss 2 Eha BEIAZE
BEE - - - - - - 306 - - 306 - 306
Share of other comprehensive income of EE A AL B2 ARE
an associate - - - 10,078 - - 116 - - 10,194 - 10,194
Profitloss] for the year FEERT(ER) - - - - - - - - 2308 2308 (379) 299
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ FER 2R (R
for the year - - - 10,078 - - 199 - 2,308 32,585 (379) 32,206
Share repurchase and cancellation RORERREHEY)
frote 37) (912) (36,670) - = - - - = - (37582) - (37582)
At31 March 2021 RUNNEIEIIA 8200 234,663 196,565 510 9,800 20937 (208) 69,872 2490851 381213 (828) 3230445

86
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £20214#3431H 1 F &

Notes:

(a)

(c)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the
companies forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
prior to the listing of the Company's shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August
2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group includes (i) the gain
on revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group, (i) share
of the gain on revaluation of leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment of the Group's associate, both arising from the transfer
of the Group's leasehold properties or associate’s leasehold land
and property, plant and equipment to investment properties in prior
years, net of (iii) the transfer to accumulated profits upon deemed
disposal of subsidiaries in prior years.

w it -

(a)

(c)

REEZENFERKREN20065F10A K
REVRFAEE ZER -
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HEARGEEXRANEBERBEARE KN
195 LMz S EEH) B TE A
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RBIRSE TREZER -

AEEZEEGRERFEOAEEET
BOmEzEGER (1D EREEBE
REAZBEAMERDE BERRBZE
s TEANBEFEAKRBEZBEOY
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

Gain on disposal of debt instruments at
FVTOCI

Impairment loss on loans receivable,
net

Impairment loss on debt instruments at
FVTOCI

(Reversal of impairment loss)
impairment loss on other debt
instruments at amortised cost

Impairment loss on other receivables

Share of results of an associate

Loss on deemed partial disposal of
equity interest in an associate

Gain on bargain purchase of additional
interest in an associate

Share of results of a joint venture

Effect of unrealised exchange
difference

HERAFEFTAEMS

Hlm @B IR 2K

i (970)
FEWE R 2 R (E E 1B

47,791
BEAFEFAEMEEEK

HZEBITAZ RER

i 306
RN AT ECHME

BITEZ(REEEREE)

BEEE (1,650)
H A EUWRIB 2 BB BB -
BERNADHEE 53,799
KRG A LERE RREH

Bt s 2 5 1B —
KU B RE INEE & N Rl =

B2 s B U = (58,471)
BEDNRIDIHEE 5
REREREZRE 2 EE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Cash flows from operating activities REKETH 2 HERE
Profit (loss) before taxation BR 3 AT R A (B 18) 18,961 (298,936)
Adjustments for: B
Interest income B U A (15,727) (32,682)
Interest expense B FHX 19,022 23,622
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERIBZITE
equipment 4,664 4,656
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FRAREEZINE 803 1,266
Dividend income from listed EHERE 2R B
investments (1,928) (2,282)
Loss on changes in fair value of REYEZNTFEEYE
investment properties B 85,640 196,888
(Reversal of write-down) write-down on BIELEMEZCRERE)
properties held for sale R (300) 578
Write-down on properties held for BELEBREMEZRE
development for sale 19,572 28,573
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of EAFEFABRZER
financial assets at FVTPL EEZATFEZE W)
B (80,462) 28,824
Gain on changes in fair value of financial RIEWRBIZERFETARE
assets at FVTPL upon modification Bl ERMEELATE
g (73,520) o

(1,051)

29,256

126

4,353
1,819
55,676
130,957

(200,462)
1,678

1,338
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Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in properties held for development
for sale

Decrease in properties held for sale

Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL

(Increase) decrease in trade and other
receivables

Decrease (increase) in loans receivable

Increase (decrease) in trade and other
payables

Increase in contract liabilities

Cash from (used in) operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Dividend received

Interest received from loan financing

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL

Acquisition of debt instruments at FVTOCI

Deposits paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries

Acquisition of additional interest in an
associate

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at FVTPL

Proceeds from redemption of debt
instruments at FVTOCI

Proceeds from disposal of other debt
instruments at amortised cost

Other interest received

Deposit received for disposal of other
debt instruments at amortised cost

Acquisition of other debt instruments at
amortised cost

Purchase of investment properties

Net cash used in investing activities

DP
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2021
HK$’000
FET
17540

(67,202)
221,142

46,624

(29,051)
45,944

2,221
6,276

243,494
(1,682)
1,926
13,726

257,464

(160,192)
(15,322)
(10,000)

(4,969)
(196)

73,412

33,843

21,000
8,710

(53,714)

2020
HK$'000
FET
(25,803)

(57,245)

64,967

77470
(74,275)

(4,995)

(19,881)
(2,117)
3,319

23,487

4,808

(116,001)

(110,769)
(32)

43,564

16,040

14,318
15,480

(16,015)
(3,128)

(1566,543)
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2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Cash flows from financing activities REMEEZH 2 RERE
Repayment of bank borrowings EERTEE (786,576) (115,966)
Repurchase of shares % 7 B #E (37,582) —
Interest paid BT F A (29,743) (47,389)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEHEAE (816) (1,236)
Bank borrowings raised ESRTEE 830,329 257803
Advance from a non-controlling —(IIEERBR BT
shareholder 10,940 6,939
Repayment to a non-controlling BEETIHERRR
shareholder — (17600)
Dividend paid B’ E — (4,566)
Net cash (used in) from financing activites (AR KEREFH 2R &
-t (13,448) 77985
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash ReERERRSEIMORD)
equivalents pEig-E 190,302 (73,750)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F ¥R & MERIR &
the year 117,920 191,670
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FRRAEEFRRE -
year, represented by bank balances and BIRTHEBRER S

cash

308,222 117920
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Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; the
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
"“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture are set out in notes 41, 16 and 17,
respectively.

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the “Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards” and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the "Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards” and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments®

Reference to the Conceptual Framework*

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 22

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions'

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20213

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use*

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June

2 %?f%a?:'tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
3 E?f%el:‘tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
e %?f%a%:'tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
6 E?f%e?ﬁive for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
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New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2”

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase
2" relate to the modification of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting
requirements and disclosure requirements applying HKFRS
7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures” to accompany the
amendments regarding modifications and hedge accounting.

o Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities. A practical expedient is
introduced for modifications required by the reform
(modifications required as a direct consequence of
the interest rate benchmark reform and made on an
economically equivalent basis). These modifications are
accounted for by updating the effective interest rate. All
other modifications are accounted for using the current
HKFRSs requirements. A similar practical expedient is
proposed for lessee accounting applying HKFRS 16;

° Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures
in order to allow users to understand the nature and
extent of risks arising from the interest rate benchmark
reform to which the Group is exposed to and how
the entity manages those risks as well as the entity’s
progress in transitioning from interbank offered rates
to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is
managing this transition.
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New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2” (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has several Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") bank loans which may
be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The Group
expects no significant gains or losses should the interest rate
benchmark for these loans change resulting from the reform
on application of the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

”

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

() the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date.

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
“Financial Instruments: Presentation”.

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

C M EEARE RN FE R EE
AIERMBRELER @)

BEBUBHREERFIHN - BEE
T ERIE39W - BEEHBHEER
E7H - BB BHEER F45E R
BB B EERE165 2155 [ F
FEENE - FEERIE)

M2021F3A31H - AEBBHR TR
BF REENF B BEBRITRE
FWE(BEBRITAEFEDRITER o
WEZEER N EEEREREE]
ZHEMES AEBEHTEEAL
EAWEHEIE -

BEBETERFEIR LT HEE
DEBRBEFEREBUARE B2
BEE59 (2020F) Z 15 B 15 5T

ZEEFRFEERSEHREE D
TEAZERENENREES
BHMNES - DB BESBER/RE NI
mE o HAp

e FHAKABEIEARBAIR
HEERERNBRERREFE
ZIER - BEEME  ZFEIE

/B

i "BEITEXIEEEEE
FHEENRBARNBERE
BREE Rk

(i) 1 5 4 ) A 8 <7 R 56 = 1%
o mERE Y RE R K
- Rl R 77 BDE
ERXRABEERRAHT A

AEEAM -

s EFEWMERBZERTUERS
HBFEERER SHEBREREAR
ez TARBERE EF
ZERKBEEREBEARE
RERB G EAFERE /T
B2 ZRRETAE  IF
XA T EFEABOEA/R

BHERD -



2020/21 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(Continued)

”

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s right to defer settlement
for certain borrowings are subject to compliance with
covenants within 12 months from the reporting date. Such
borrowings were classified as non-current as the Group met
such covenants at 31 March 2021. Pending clarification on
the application of relevant requirements of the amendments,
the Group will further assess whether application of the
amendments will have an impact on the classification of
these borrowings. The impacts on application, if any, will
be disclosed in the Group's future consolidated financial
statements.

Except for as disclosed above, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of the Group’s
other liabilities as at 31 March 2021.
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31 RRGEMHHRREE

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values, at the end of the
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 31 RBESEMBERREE®)

financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” (“HKFRS 2"), leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the
results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.
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3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 April 2020, the Group can elect to
apply an optional concentration test, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The concentration test
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business and no
further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to investment properties which
are subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise
to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an assets and a liability in
the “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements” (replaced by the “Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting” issued in October
2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date;
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When a business combination is archived in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income and measured under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” ("HKFRS 9") would
be accounted for on the same basis would be required
if the Group had disposed directly of the previously held
equity interest.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 FESTHE®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in
net assets of the associate/joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 FESHBE®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset
is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell except for
financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 which
continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from property sales at
a point in time when legal title of property has been
transferred to customer, being when the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the

property.

Over time revenue recognition. measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value of the Group’s performance completed
to date, the Group recognises revenue in the amount to
which the Group has the right to invoice.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises property sales commissions as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset
so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.
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3.2 FESHBE®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model,
right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property or inventory
as a separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position. Right-of-use assets that meet
the definition of investment property and inventory
are presented within “investment properties” and
“properties held for development for sale/properties
held for sale” respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Leases (Continued) HE(#E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEFERBAHN(E)

Lease modifications HEBNR

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a SEF=EHEER A RANMA

separate lease if: EmE:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease e HENABREMFER—
by adding the right to use one or more underlying HRZEEEEENET
assets; and RIEMBERHE: &

e the consideration for the leases increases by an e MHEREHEMMWISHEETR
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price BEE KM B BRAETE
for the increase in scope and any appropriate WHZBLERETEM
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect HEENRABURMEES
the circumstances of the particular contract. EEoR P

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a HRRFTAEBHENHEBSK

separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, FEBEZEBRBELEITNEHE

less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease MEEBRITRALETHOHR
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised WEHKETNOEENKET
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the R RAEREKASEE -
effective date of the modification. REHFHEHEEAG -

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease rEEBRBHEAGRAEEE

liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the ETHERAERREYHEHESESE

relevant right-of-use asset. TEHFE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which is derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business is presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”(“HKFRS 15") to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and
non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone selling prices.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period.

For partial disposals of associates that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence, the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme") are charged as expenses when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contribution.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit (loss)
before taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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3.2 FESHBE®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and an associate, and interest in a joint
venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between
the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 TESTEE®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible asset

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is
acquired separately is carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

3.2 FESTHE®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwill (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to relevant cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible asset other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale which are
intended to be sold upon completion of development
are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost
model in accordance with the accounting policies of
right-of-use assets, properties held for development for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales.

Properties held for development for sale are transferred
to properties for sale upon completion.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and
are classified under current assets. They are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business is presented as revenue.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets
Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

() Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost
and debt instruments subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as
a result of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit
or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount
of these debt instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of FVTOCI reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying amounts
of these debt instruments. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes interest earned but excludes
any dividend earned on the financial asset and
is included in the “Gain (loss) on changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL".
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3.2 FESHBE®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss ("ECL") model on financial
assets (including loans receivable, debt instruments
at FVTOCI, other debt instruments at amortised cost,
trade and other receivables and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12 months ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are made based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
debtors, general economic conditions and assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL for trade receivables is assessed
individually.

For all other assets, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the borrower or
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the borrower’s or debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
borrower or debtor;
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environments of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
borrower’s or debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if (1) it has a low risk of default, (2) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (3)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)~ Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider,
or

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash
flow used for determining the ECL is consistent
with the cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of loans
receivable where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.
For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve without
reducing the carrying amount of these debt
instruments. Such amount represents the
changes in the FVTOCI reserve in relation to
accumulated loss allowance.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 TEETHBEXR®E)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets
expire or, when it transfers the financial assets and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the assets to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset'’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEFFHEXR®)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’'s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder and
secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and
only when the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group's investment properties portfolios
and concluded that the Group's investment properties located
in Hong Kong are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
arising from these investment properties located in Hong
Kong, the management determined that the presumption
that these investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered through sale is not rebutted.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
key inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers to perform valuation of the
Group’s investment properties. At the end of the reporting
period, the management works closely with the independent
firm of qualified professional property valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key
inputs for fair value measurements. \Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.
Information about the valuation technigues and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of the Group's investment
properties is disclosed in note 15. Whilst the Group considers
valuations of the Group's investment properties are the best
estimates, the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in
greater market volatility depending on how the Covid-19
pandemic may progress and evolve, which have led to higher
degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the
current year. Details are set out in note 15.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of interest in an associate

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying value of the Group’s
interest in an associate exceeded the market value of the
Group's holding therein. In view of indication of impairment,
the Group performed impairment assessment on interest in
an associate. Determining whether impairment loss should
be recognised requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the relevant associate which is the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. The value
in use calculation requires the management of the Group to
estimate its share of present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the associate,
using key inputs and assumptions including the operating
cash flows projections of the associate, approved budgets,
growth rates and discount rates. In cases where the actual
cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future cash flows
estimation, a material recognition of impairment may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a recognition takes place.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of the interest
in an associate amounted to HK$808,718,000 (2020:
HK$788,883,000).
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the impairment assessment
and evaluates the ECL of the loans receivable. Appropriate
net impairment allowance is recognised in profit or loss
during the year.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the loans receivable as
at the reporting date with the one as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the loans receivable
from borrowers are assessed individually by the management
of the Group, based on the financial background, financial
collateral and the historical settlement records, including past
due dates and default rates, of each borrower and forward-
looking information that is reasonable, supportable and
available without undue cost or effort.

Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under internal credit
ratings to calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of
the estimates of expected cash shortfalls which are driven
by estimates of possibility of default and the amount and
timing of cash flows that are expected from foreclosure
on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining and
selling the collaterals. At every reporting date, the financial
background, collateral and the historical settlement records
are reassessed and relevant information from public domain
and changes in the forward-looking information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’'s loans
receivable are disclosed in notes 40 and 21 respectively.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties
held for development for sale/properties held for
sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the Group’'s properties held for development for sale/
properties held for sale, which are situated in Hong Kong
and with an aggregate sum of HK$1,911,305,000 (2020:
HK$2,103,584,000) at 31 March 2021, with reference to
current market environment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate write-
down for estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in
profit or loss when the net realisable value is below cost. The
estimates of net realisable value are determined based on the
evidence available at the time the estimates are made, less
the anticipated costs to completion and costs necessary to
make the sales. Whilst the Group considers valuations of the
Group's properties held for development for sale/properties
held for sale are the best estimates, the ongoing Covid-19
pandemic has resulted in greater market volatility depending
on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve,
which have led to higher degree of uncertainties in respect
of the valuations in the current year. Actual realised amount
may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease or an
increase in the net realisable value of the properties held for
development for sale/properties held for sale and additional
write-down or reversal of write-down previously recognised
may be required.
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Revenue represents the aggregate of the amounts received
or receivable in respect of rental income and building
management from property investment, interest income from
loan financing and property sales from property development
during the year.

Revenue from sales of properties was recognised at a
point in time when the completed residential property
was transferred to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtained the control of the completed residential
property and the Group had present right to payment and
collection of the consideration was probable. The Group
received deposits from customers pursuant to the payment
terms of the sale and purchase agreement. The transaction
price allocated to the remaining unsatisfied performance
obligations was HK$95,259,000 (2020: nil) as at 31 March
2021 and the expected timing of unrecognised revenue is
within one year.

For building management services, the Group bills a fixed
rate for services provided on a monthly basis and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right
to issue the invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value to the customers of Group’s performance completed.
The Group acts as principal and is primarily responsible for
providing the building management services to the property
owners, who simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefit provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs, the Group recognises the fee received or
receivable from property owners as its revenue over time
and all related building management costs as its cost of
services. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group
has right to invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.

Rental income and interest income from loan financing
fall outside the scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from
contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounted to HK$276,841,000 (2020: HK$1,189,000).
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Information reported to the Group's chief executive officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"),
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered
or services provided. This is also the basis of organisation,
whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products and services.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are (i) property investment,
(ii) property development, (iii) investment in securities and (iv)
loan financing.

(a) Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results by operating and reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 March 2021
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(a) DEBEXRFERER

REERERDBANMAER 2
EEBNERNT:
Bl F20219F3H31H 1L F &
Property  Investmentin Loan
development securities financing  Consolidated
EE #5hE ERRE &a

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEn FEr FET FEn

Property
investment
HKS$'000
7L
(note)
G
SEGMENT REVENUE NHEXE
External sales HER#E 34,337
RESLLTS 24
Segment results DHEE (71,954)
Unallocated corporate income EARzAAMA
Unallocated corporate expenses EAR2RARY
Share of results of an associate BENANEEE
Gain on bargain purchase of additional RUBENG 2 DA R
interest in an associate LEENEYE
Share of results of a joint venture —~HeERAANEER
Finance costs HERA
Profit befors taxation BE &R

(note)
i)
215,319 - 13,726 323,382
(875) 153,865 (38,352) 42,684
307
(9,675)
(53,799)
58471
(5)
(19,022)

18,961
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(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020

(a) DEPEXEBEREEE)
B 220204 3H31H It F&F

Property Property  Investment in
investment  development securities  Loan financing  Consolidated
nERE NEER EHRE BRBE &4
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET AT AT
(note) note)
Wit) Wit)
SEGMENT REVENUE PHEEE
External sales MR 40,146 - - 23487 63,633
RESULTS &
Segment results pxiE 3 (178,691) (57687) (24,385) (22279) (283,042)
Unallocated corporate income ENRZDARA m
Unallocated corporate expenses EARRARY (4,695
Share of results of an associate BENANERE (55,676)
Loss on deemed disposal of equity interests 148 Bl &84 A FIRER
in an associate wHBE (130,957)
Gain on bargain purchase of additional REBENEENARRER
interest in an associate LEBNELE 200,462
Share of results of a joint venture ~HAENANMER (1,678)
Finance costs BENR (23,622)
Loss before taxation BRiESR (298,936)
Note: Rental income generated from properties held for Wet: REBELERRYECHE
development for sale (included in property development ERABEEVEERD
segment) was included in property investment BNEBEEMERED
segment. A e
Segment results represent the profit earned or loss AHEBERRE D BHIM 2 &
incurred by each segment without allocation of share MekEEZzEBEE EF 289

of results of an associate and a joint venture, loss on
deemed disposal of equity interest in an associate,
gain on bargains purchase of additional interest in an
associate, finance costs and unallocated corporate
income and expenses. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

(b) P HEEREE
BEERERSBHNTAEEZ

liabilities by operating and reportable segment: BERBREOAT:
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3H531H
Property Property  Investment in Loan
investment  development securities financing  Consolidated
NERE NERR E5RE ERmE &8
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS EE
Segment assets HHEE 1,229,311 1,921,541 338,192 169,224 3,658,268
Interest in an associate L INGE 808,718
Interest in  joint venture Gl £ 57
Tax recoverable AREHE 309
Bank balances and cash BRO&E#RRAS 308,222
Unallocated corporate assets BARZRAEE 128,032
Consolidated assets GREE 4,903,606
LIABILITIES f&
Seqment liahlities NHEE 134925 9,048 882 25590 147445
Secured bank borrowings BERRARE 1472467
Tax payable EfHE 51,573
Unallocated corporate liabilities EAEILAEE 1,676
Consolidated liabiliies Gaff 1,673,161
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(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) 2MEEREEH)

At 31 March 2020 R20204%3531H
Property Property  Investment in Loan
investment  development securities financing ~ Consolidated
nERE NEER EERE BERBE 4
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TE1 TET TET TET FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PHEE 1,286,098 2,108,506 166,770 289,930 3,851,304
Interest in an associate AN 788,883
Interest in 4 joint venture -BeeRAER 62
Tax recoverable TREHE 530
Bank balances and cash RO&HRRAS 117920
Unallocated corporate assets EARZRREE 99430
Consolidated assets GAEE 4,858,129
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabilities PHRE 10472 112,198 1,884 18,026 142,580
Secured hank borrowings BERBOEE 1,428,186
Tax payable ENHE 50,351
Unallocated corporate liabilties EAR2AAER 1,191
Consolidated liabilities GRER 1,622,308

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than interest in an associate,
interest in a joint venture, tax recoverable, bank
balances and cash and other assets.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and
reportable segments other than secured bank
borrowings, tax payable and other liabilities.

RERDBREALRRDBHEHE
RS :
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(c) Other segment information (c) HftpHEHR
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Bl E2021F3A31HIL FE
Property Property  Investment in

investment  development securities Loanfinancing  Unallocated  Consolidated
NERE NEER 258 fRRE ENE g4
HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$ 000
77 77 7T FET FAr 77

Amounts includedin themeasureof ~ 2EEESHEELHT

Seqment assets or segment results: FEHECEE:
Capital aditions EXEN - - - - 196 196
Depreciation of property, plant and W% BERZELNE

equipment 1,601 3012 28 - 3 4,664
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE - 29 518 56 - 803
Loss on changes in far value of RENEZLTE

investment properties SUFE 85,640 - - - - 85,640
Gain on changes in fair value of financial KA FEFABRZ

assets at FVTPL SRAEZATE

£8ha - - (80.462) - - (80,462)

Gainon change in fair value of financial -~ I BB A R A AT A
assets at FVTPL upon modification BIEHEEZAY

B29hA - - (73520) - - (73520]
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net ~ EAEH 2 A EEE - - - a9 - 479
Impairment loss on debtinstrumentsat ~ RAFEHALMH2E
FVTOC] hEzBHRIAY
HEFE - - 306 - - 306
Reversal of impairment loss on other debt R & 7 A3t € 2
instruments at amortised cost EfERIAY
AEFERD - - (1,650) - - (1,650)
Reversal of write-down on properties held  # {EHENE 7 R EER
for sale - (300) - - - (300)

\Write-down on properties held for BELERRNECHA
development for sale - 19572 - - - 195712
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(c)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEF @)
Other segment information (Continued) (c) HfvpHBER#)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B £2020F3H31H IEF &
Property Property  Investment in
investment  development securities  Loan financing Unallocated ~ Consolidated
VL YESIE ERRE EFRE B3R e
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FEr FET FAT FEr FEr FEr
Amounts included inthe measwre of ~ BEEEATEERAHT
Seqment assets or segment results: FEHECEE:
Capital additions BREN 3128 - - — 32 3,160
Depreciation of property, plant and W% BERZELNE
equipment 1602 1,350 28 - 1676 4,656
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE = 30 518 3 5 1,266
Loss on changes in far value of RENEZLTE
investrent properties SO5E 196,888 - - - = 196,888
Loss on changes in fairvalue of financial R AT B ABH 2
assets at FUTPL SHEELATE
2965 - - 2882 - - 2884
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net B EF 2 FHEER - - - 29,256 - 29,256
Impairment loss on debtinstrumentsat ~ FAFEFALH2E
FYTOCI KEzEBIEZ
AERR - - 126 - - 126
Impairment loss on other debt REBRATEZ AR
instruments at amortised cost BEIAZREER - - 4,353 = S 4,353
Impairment loss on other receivables ~ AHERZEZ BESE - - - 1819 - 1819
Write-down on properties held for sale~ F{EHENE 7 fA = 578 = = = 578
Wite-down on properties held for FELERRNE CAE
development for sale - 85713 - - - 28573

151
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(d) Geographical information

(e)

The Group’'s operations, revenue from external
customers and non-current asset are located in Hong
Kong (place of domicile).

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
is as follows:

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £20214#3431H 1 F &

(d) tEHEFR

(e)

AEBZEE REIKREPZ
EERBLIFERDEENNURE
B(ERH) -

FEEFZEHR

EFREBFERERASEEE
EEBEHEBI0O%N EzEEBN
T

2021 2020

HK$000 HK$'000

FETT FE T

Customer Al BEA 44,079 —
Customer B2 = FB? - 6,412
Customer C3 BECe N/A T 38 F4 25,215

Revenue from property development.

Revenue from loan financing.

Revenue from property investment.

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group.

A w N -

KEMEER 2EER -
KREERMELEHXHE -
KEMEREZERRE -
HEEXRBETEEMASES
EEFHEBI0%A L -

A w N -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

Interest on bank borrowings
Interest on lease liabilities

Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of
qualifying assets

Profit (loss) before taxation has been
arrived at after charging:

Directors’ emoluments (note 9(a))
Other staff costs, including retirement
benefits scheme contributions

Total staff costs BT A4z
Auditors’ remuneration % B R B &
Cost of properties recognised as expense BE R AT Z2WHEKAK
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMEREKBZITE
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTRAEEEZINE
and after crediting: WEEA:
Dividend income from listed investments KB FH &R & 2 KB A
Government grants (note) BB (A 2E)
Interest income from FEWARE
Other debt instruments at amortised RN ARG E 2 B
cost BEBELA
Debt instruments at FVTOCI EAFEFAEMZEK
mZEBITHA
Bank and others RITR EAh
Note: During the current year, the Group recognised government ol

BB AT & A (B 18) B Mk

E=M e (4 E90)
Htp B TR - B35 RIK
& F &t &l 3%

grants of HK$1,897,000 (2020: nil) in respect of Covid-19-
related subsidies, which are related to Employment Support
Scheme provided by the Hong Kong Government.

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
32,370 47394
45 105
32,415 47499
(13,393) (23,877)
19,022 23,622
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
7,320 7142
21,997 23,458
29,317 30,600
2,616 2,658
221,087 —
4,664 4,656
803 1,266
1,928 2,282
1,897 —
1,140 5,391
670 1,979
191 1,825
RAEAFEE  AE R %2019
TRESRAE ZEAUT%%EJJ
1,897,000/ 7T (20204 : &) - Ty
BE B BT AT IR [R5 % |5
2568 -



(a) Information regarding directors’

emoluments

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company

for the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

Fees EEHE
Other emoluments Atde
—salaries and other benefits  —E 4 REf
B
— retirement benefits —RiNERE
scheme contributions {3

Total directors' emoluments ~ EZMELE

Executive directors
yrEs

Tse Wing Koon Ho Yan
ChiuRicky  Lui Yuk Chu Candy
#xi Ei% e
HKS 000 HKSOO0  HKS000
7L FEn FEr
[note (i) (note (i)
(W) (i)
1500 3463 1739
18 132 18
1518 3,595 1,751

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

(a) FRAESEMEzEHR

H £2021F3A31MBH IEFEFE AR
REEMEFBOT:

Independent non-executive directors
BUfdfES

JongKoon  TsuiChun ~ HonTam  LauChak
Sang Kong Chun Hang Total
R4 hEH &z )3 b
HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSUOO
FEn FEr 7L FEr 7L

fnote fiii))  (note fiv))

(Wi (i)

150 150 ) % 450
- - - - 6,702
- - - - 168

150 150 5 % 7320
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e P BmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £20214#3431H 1 F &

(a)

Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Executive directors

(a) FRAESMEzER (@)

B £202063A31H ELFE AR
AEEMEHBET:

Independent non-executive directors

#1728 BUanES
Tse Wing KoonHoYan  JongKoon ~ Tsui Chun Hon Tam
ChiuRicky ~ Lui Yuk Chu Candy Sang Kong Chun Total
Hiid ELS EAR S hE® Bg ag
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET AT 7T FEr 71 T FEr
fnote fj) frote fij) fote fii)
(i) (W) (ettin)
Fees EZis - - - 140 140 140 420
Other emoluments e
— salaries and other benefits —EERAMER 1,500 3456 1598 = = = 6,554
— refirement benefits scheme —RIEMHEET
contributions 18 132 18 - - - 168

Totaldirectors' emoluments e EN L 1518 3,568 1616 140 140 140 714

Notes: Hiaz -

(i) Mr. Tse Wing Chiu, Ricky is the Chief Executive of the (i) HFXBEEBEARRZERIT
Company. His emoluments disclosed above for the B@aE HALEEZHER
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 include those for ¥ 1% B 2202149 K%2020%3A
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. SBLEFEERERITHRER

Friett 2 BR7 -

(i) The Company determined to provide certain residential (i) ZARFREMEBEEELEE &
units and carparking spaces to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a EFH®REZ TR FIRAARR A M
son of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a director of subsidiaries BRABES  REAM/NEIRE
of the Company, and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy free of HZEEEHEMNREEM - I
rental and charges for as long as they are employed by REHZERAEBFEATRHA
the Group. Aggregate rateable value of these properties MER BEEEZMWEMS
as set by the Hong Kong Rating and Valuation BEMS  ZEWEZERE
Department was HK$3,087,000 (2020: HK$2,448,000). 1 78 {8 &3,087,000/% 7T (2020

£ 12,448,000 7T) °

(i)~ Mr. Hon Tam Chun resigned as an independent non- (i) FEEBEHSLEEHR2020F885H
executive director on 5 August 2020. BAEBIIENTES -

(ivi  Mr. Lau Chak Hang is appointed as an independent (iv) 21218 %EM2020F8A6H &

non-executive director on 6 August 2020.

ZERBUFBITES -



(a)

(b)

Information regarding directors’
emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Information regarding employees’
emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year included two (2020: two) directors. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three)
highest paid individuals, not being directors, are as
follows:

Salaries and other benefits e kEMEFR
Retirement benefits scheme iR IR AR F &8 4 3k

contributions

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

(a) FRAESMEzER (@)

tRBBRZATEENESTE
REREBRARRANAEEER
BEBZRE -

il BROR 2 B S FE 1T E F B
TETERBFER/ARRESFL
RS -

(b) FRAEEME2EH

XER AEBREERSHFALT
BEMAQ020F - ME)ES -
EH=%Q020F : =)W IE
EzmeFALTZMEeOT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
6,630 6,630

54 54

6,684 6,684
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

(b)

Information regarding employees’ (b)
emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of these employees fall within the
following bands:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 2,000,000
BT

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T & 2,500,000
BT

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001;% 7T 3,000,000
BT

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors and the other three (2020: three)
highest paid individuals, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss in
office. In addition, during both years, no director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments.

FREEME2ER (@)

ZEREZMENFTI&EE:

Number of individuals

BEAH

2021 2020
1 1
1 1
1 1
3 3

RWEFE  KEBERE B
& TEEKHEM=%(20204F :
—HR)EaEHFeEZ AT EAEM
AR I A K & E Rz 42 E) 5k
EBREB B 2/E - i - R
MEAFE REEEWREXRRAE
WMEAMME -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

2021
HK$'000
FET
The charge (credit) comprises: X (GTA) B
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEMFH
Charge for the year XEERX 2,436
Underprovision for prior years BEFERETR 688
3,124
Deferred tax (Note 31) IR B IE (B 52 31) (6,092)
(2,968)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the HMEFE 2B ENG

estimated assessable profit for both years.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss)
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

2020
HK$'000
FET

1,719
36

1,755
(2,632)

(877)

S TR B fE 5T

JE AR )4t A1) 216.5% 71 & o

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit (loss) before taxation

Tax charge (credit) of Hong Kong Profits
Tax at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purposes

Tax effect of share of results of an
associate

Tax effect of share of results of a joint
venture

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Underprovision for prior years

Others

Taxation for the year

2021
HK$'000
TET

B B2 B A (B 18) 18,961

REBMNBHHEEI165%
(20204F : 16.5%) 2 %t 18
A (Gt A) 3,129
TEMBRAIcBHEYE

15,738
mARMBAZHIEFE

(30,866)
BE AR IEEEY
HIExE 8,877
—HeaE R RERSHE
BoBESE 1
*%%ﬁE%EZﬁL%

2,552
@%L&$% R IE & 18
2B (6,471)
KERTEMNMGREEE
ZHEBEEE 4,050
BEFERETR 688
H (666)
REEMIEA (2,968)

AEEHAEGEREEME2EK
m&k Z B fRHIJ/m?‘J(JEﬂE)Z;TEEZZDT

2020
HK$'000
FET

(298,936)

(49,324)
63,135
(35,499)

9,187

277

(343)

(877)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143531A 1- £ &

11. DIVIDEND

1. K2

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividend recognised as distribution REAERAREZRE
during the year
Final dividend paid of nil per share for B E2020F3H31B LB K
financial year ended 31 March 2020 FEZENKRBRE R
(2020: HK$0.05 per share for 2019) B AT E T (20205 :
20195 F A R0.05%8 7T) - 4,566

The directors of the Company do not recommend any final
dividends for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £20214#3431H 1 F &

ARBIBEREEZEREANREER
MUBEBR)DIRBEIATERTE:

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of RAETRERREERF
calculating basic and diluted earnings (BBR)ME 2&BF (&18)
(loss) per share (profit (loss) for the year (AN 7 i% 3 FE(E AN F [E
attributable to owners of the Company) = F (B 18)) 22,308 (297755)
2021 2020
Weighted average number of shares for ~ Fiat B E AN B HEAF
the purpose of calculating basic and (E518)M = 2 I FH %
diluted earnings (loss) per share LR 4= 90,834,655 91,320,403

The computation of diluted earnings per share did not
assume the conversion of the associate’'s outstanding
convertible notes since their exercise would result in increase
in earnings per share for 2021.

The computation of diluted loss per share did not assume
the conversion of the associate’s outstanding convertible
notes and share options since their exercise would result in
decrease in loss per share for 2020.

SRBERF S ELREBER NS
FENTIRMARABRZATBRBRER -
HITE S E 20215 SR BT M -

SREEEIE Y HELRERR R
wE DT RRR R TRARERRR
B - R T 08 R B 20205 & BB
R -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143531A 1- £ &

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BMEKRKRE

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
properties equipment  Motor vehicles Total
BOHER -
B RE
BOME &L RE B
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET FAET
COST RN
At 1 April 2019 R2019F 418 80,934 10,769 3,857 95,560
Additions HE — 32 — 32
At 31 March 2020 2020534318 80,934 10,801 3,857 95,592
Additions HE — 196 — 196
Transfer from properties held for sale  fi¥EHE 2
BEER 32,330 130 — 32,460
At 31 March 2021 202163 A31H 113,264 1,127 3,857 128,248
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2iME
At 1 April 2019 20194718 4,585 4,759 2,446 11,790
Provided for the year KEERE 1,747 2,128 781 4,656
At 31 March 2020 R202053A31H 6,332 6,887 3,227 16,446
Provided for the year KEERE 2,125 2,150 389 4,664
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3A31H 8,457 9,037 3,616 21,110
CARRYING VALUES EEE
At 31 March 2021 #2021%3A31H 104,807 2,090 241 107138
At 31 March 2020 7202034318 74,602 3,914 630 79,146

161



The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis according to the following
useful lives:

Over the duration of the leases
or fifty years, whichever is the
shorter

Leasehold improvements, 5 years
furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles

Leasehold properties

3to b years

The leasehold properties are situated in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group transferred
residential units from properties held for sale with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$32,460,000 to property,
plant and equipment upon change in use of these properties
as director’s quarter and other benefits (see note 9(a)).

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

FREEME BERRE BUE
BOERBUAT ZAIERF M BN E :

ROk /ES RRHZFH
gAETE
NEE&ETE

AR &M  BF

HEREE

RE 3ELF

BOMETDLRETE -

HZE2021F3A3MHIEFE AEEK
F = B 1t BR | 48 58 532,460,0007%
THRELEMEEAYE BER
BE UEAESEAREMENA
% (LM #E9() °

Leasehold land

and buildings
HALTHRIESF
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 April 2020 7"202054H1H
Carrying amount RmE 1,231
As at 31 March 2021 R202153H31H
Carrying amount REE 493
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BIE2021F3A31MHLEFE
Depreciation charge TEER 803
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BIE2020F3A31MHLFE
Depreciation charge WEER 1,266



2020/21 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

REERSA
NEFEREEE

Total cash outflow of leases
Additions to right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

For both years, the Group leases office for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms of 2 to 3
years with extension and termination option. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET T /87T
861 1,341

65 107

ERREEEREMGFAIERFRMA
EHRPHOBREERERETRINE -

I:ﬁTIErHﬂFﬁ AEBHEABRAE
BITRKE  FINHENERABETHE
F2E3FABEHEKRIEEE - Y
BEABRBERENBRETHE  EEE
FHLOHR W FTFH AR BOEBRE - K
SEFEAARMNTETETARET
o8BI BAT o

HK$'000
FET

FAIR VALUE ~EE
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4H1H 1,458,800
AddltlonS //J\\E 3,128
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss ~ R EF R 2 A FE R/ (196,888)
At 31 March 2020 2020 3A31H 1,265,040
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss ~ WREF R 2 A FE R (85,640)
At 31 March 2021 ®20219F3A31H 1,179,400

All of the Group's investment properties at 31 March 2021
and 2020 are situated in Hong Kong. The fair values of the
Group's investment properties at 31 March 2021 and 2020
were arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out as at
these dates by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited,
an independent firm of qualified professional property
valuers not connected with the Group. The valuations were
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties or by reference to net rental
income allowing for reversionary income potential using the
applicable market yields for the respective locations and
types of properties.

20214 K 2020938318 » 1A K&
EoHREMEDNURES - AEBR
20214 N2020F3A31TH Z R E W %
/‘Wﬁ)ﬂzuwﬁw%&ﬁ%@z
BUAREREEYHEGHEMTS NE
%%%EEFEJ(E? VERARRZER
HESTHAECEEETE - HERZZ2R
HUMENZTZERNMISEELE
2ZFHSWAGTERN s FHS
W A A BT 38 FB AR R i Bh A0 o 3 A
FrimAamis = KRS ELENESR
U2k o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The unrealised loss arising on changes in fair value
of investment properties as at 31 March 2021 of
HK$85,640,000 (2020: HK$196,888,000) was recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of the investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used),
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £20214#3431H 1 F &

R2021F3A3NMBZREMEZAFE
% 8 B 4 HY R & IR 55 7885,640,0008
7L (20204F « K # 3 /&5 $8196,888,000
BB R E E2021E3A31R L EE
RIBEPER -

TRINTMABERENE 2 2FE
ZEM(LER FERZMEETE
RBEA) WERBBAZABER
FEI»HNAFEFR(E1ZEEIPLZ
NFEFE -

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEEALRENE ATENANA ATESR #HEFERTEEA EXFTEEEA §8E
LAl 2020
HKS'000 8000
FET &
Commercial units 1,023,300 1104900 Level3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account of yield generated by market average  The higher the term yield and
— term yield selling price and the market average rental from comparable reversionary yield, the lower the
properties and adjustment to reflect the conditions of the building, fair value
which is ranged from 2.0% to 3.0% (2020: from 2.0% to 3.0%)
BEEL £3% WAE ERNE ZRTLANE TATHERRTATORCELY RENERESNEDS 4TH
-Edhs JRERRBEENER AR NTH20%E30% (00F:  AK
H20%Z3.0%)
— reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield generated by market
average selling price and the market average rental from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with the
future rental, which is ranged from 2.45% to 3.6% (2020 from
2.35% to 3.5%
—fR&NE RENE ZETLENF TR THEERTATHRE LK

ERRRATESER AL N TH245%236% (2000F:
#2.35%Z35%)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143531A 1- £ &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15. REWE )

Investment properties Fair value Valuation techniques
held by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEBEEZRENE AFERIANA ATEER HEFEREEEA EXRUEREA HEE
bl 2020
HKS 000 HK$ 000
iz 77
— monthly term rental Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from the average of the ~ The higher the monthly term rental,
rental as stated in the existing rental agreements, whichis ranged the higher the fair value
from HKS$33 to HK$420 per square foot (2020: from HK$23 to
HKS$417 per square foot
-AREES SRELEARSRENRERERNMI THREAL BT BAREELAR LTEAR
ARNTEE TR0 (2005 §THREBELE4T
A7)
— reversionary rental Market monthly rental rate, which is ranged from HK$35 to HKS578 per ~ The higher the reversionary rental,
square foot (2020: from HK$25 to HK$475 per square foot) the higher the fair value
-f5E2 magAES BTARNTABETEORET(0NE 5§75 HEELAR ATEAR
Rezs m 2475 )
Commercial unit 2,800 280 Level3 Direct comparison method Price per car park, using market direct comparables and taking into The higher the price per car park, the
— hased on market observable account of location, age and other individual factors, which is higher the fair value
transactions of similar properties  HK$2,800,000 {2020: HK$2,840,000)
and adjusted to reflect the
locations and conditions of the
subject properties
BREN 238 HELBE-ERRENELT  BEERER RATSERILBNEEME BENREM SEMEERE ATERR
BUBERARAREARYE  ERIEZ DEES2800000% T (2020 : 2840,000787)
BENEZBRER
Industrial units 153,300 157300 Level3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using market direct comparables and takinginto  The higher the price per square foot
— based on market observable account of location, age and other individual factors, which is ranged and price per car park, the higher
transactions of similar properties  from HK$7987 to HK$8,003 per square foot (2020: from HK$8,200 the fair value
and adjusted to reflect the to HK$8,210 per square foot), and car park of HK$2,370,000 each
locations and conditions of the 2020: HK$2,570,000 each)
subject properties
TXEl 238 HRUBE-ERRENELT  BTAREER FATAERTHRNZALE BRIREE STAREERGABLEERR:
RARERARARENRE  EARE STARNISTELES0EL00E: 87  ATERR
BENZLHERER FRAFS200E L2820 7) W REEEN2,370000% 7
(2020 : §R2,570,000% )
1,179,400 1,265,040

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the

highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
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Cost of listed investment in an associate

Addition of equity interest upon the
Group's conversion of convertible note
issued by Eminence Enterprise Limited
("Eminence”)

Addition of equity interest upon
subscription of rights shares issued by
Eminence

Acquisition of equity interest in Eminence

Share of post-acquisition profits and other

comprehensive income:

— At beginning of the year

— Share of losses and other
comprehensive expense

— Loss on deemed partial disposal of
equity interest

— @Gain on bargain purchase of additional
interest in an associate

— At end of the year

Fair value of listed investment in an
associate (note)

In August 2019, the convertible note issued by Eminence to
Madian Star Limited, an independent third party, was partially
exercised, and a total of 760,000,000 conversion shares
were issued by Eminence upon conversion. Accordingly,
the Group's equity interest in Eminence was diluted from
24.93% to 19.84% and a loss on deemed partial disposal
amounted to HK$130,957,000 was recognised in the profit or

loss during the year ended 31 March 2020.

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

BERNRETMREZKA

RAKERESLUEEER
REN([HW]) BTz
P 3R 4R B 38 00 2 RS HE 2

ERBRILBITZHERE
SRR I8 I #) BN 2

Yo BB = L B

AMEWRER BN R EME
[ &g

— RE)

A EEAREMRRE
%

R B E RN RAE
HEA

STV EEIN
3 2 51 B M 25

—REKX

BMERARLETREZATE

(ki)

201948 A -

BB
42 2(760,000,000.%, 4 i% 15
SERSLMREB2493%#E =
HEZEBSE
130,957,000 ST E RN IB R R o

19.84% * 18 & & »

2021
HK$°000
TET

407,855

16,980

71,419
39,350

535,604

258,248

(43,605)

58,471

273,114

808,718

135,087

2020
HK$'000
FET

402,886

16,980

71,419
39,350

530,635

252,055

(63,312)

(130,957)

200,462

258,248

788,883

126,664

BlLmBILE=H
Madian Star Limited 2 17 &9 7] 42 i 2=
BETHE  REABRESILET

° At - A



2020/21 Annual Report
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In November 2019 and February 2020, the Group had
subscribed the rights shares issued by Eminence and
acquired additional equity interest in Eminence through stock
market. The Group's equity interest in Eminence increased
from 19.84% to 27.47%. The excess of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the an associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment amounted
to HK$200,462,000 was included in results attributable to
interest in an associate during the year ended 31 March
2020.

In September 2020, the Group has acquired additional equity
interest in Eminence through stock market. Accordingly, the
Group’s equity interest in Eminence increase from 27.47%
10 29.60%. The excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment amounted to HK$58,471,000 is
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2021.

Note: The fair values of the listed shares are determined based on
quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange.

Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

R2019F11 A K20205F28 - AEED
RESLETHOERROLEBRE
MERESUNEMRE XEER
=1L ) AR HE B19.84% A1 £ 27.47% o
RE E2020F3A31BILFER » K&
BN E AR BEERAED
ANFEFEBBEEXNAIANERA
200,462,000 7T+ B 5 A& Q&) 4
/\/\{E%ZQ °

R20205F9H - A B EBRETH
WHE T ENRE Al &
ESERSILARER2747% E N E
29.60% ° & E2021F3A31BIFFE -
AEEEREBHERRAHENEENE
EORAFEFEBLEERANESE
58,471,000 LB = F R ©

Hrat: B RRGZ DT E TR B R BT E
BzhmEHEREEE -

AEERREHA RN L QB 15
T

Proportion of nominal value of

Place of incorporation

issued share capital held

Name of associate and operation by the Group Principal activities
AEEREH

NGRS TR &% ERTRAEELA TEEHR
2021 2020

Eminence Bermuda/Hong Kong 29.60% 2747%  Investment holding

= BRE/BB RERK



The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the consolidated financial statements of Eminence and its
subsidiaries (the “Eminence Group”) prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the Group's consolidated financial statements.

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

BERAKEZBE AR ML BER
ol o ATB A B 75 & B0 R
RIREBEESWBHRELENER 2= WU
REMBRR(SIUEED LS MB
BR -BEQARNIRAEEZHEEM
BRMERAE S ALK °

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets mBEE 3,156,267 3,202,791
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,457,070 1,400,202
Current liabilities mEAaE (570,421) (538,644)
Non-current liabilities EmBAE (1,161,623) (1,122,480
Net assets attributable to owners of B RS HEEFR
Eminence 2,881,293 2,941,869
Revenue W z= 80,253 80,682
Loss for the year KEEFEEE (180,793) (206,192)
Other comprehensive income (expense) AN & H 2@ A ()
for the year 36,110 (35,380)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AN & 2 MM & (144,683) (241,572)
Group's share of loss of an associate KEBE D hH S QA EE (53,799) (55,676)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of equity W47 & H & B & A 7 2D
interest BEERRZEIE — (130,957)
Gain on bargain purchase of additional WEEINGEE NRIER 2
interest in an associate EEWE K= 58,471 200,462
Results attributable to interest in an BE NP hEE
associate 4,672 13,829
Group's share of other comprehensive AEB D HEE Qa2 HAid
income (expense) of an associate FEBAFER) 10,194 (7.636)

14,866 6,193
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143531A 1- £ &

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 16. BEE AT = (@)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information A ER B i E R R R ERE VB HRE
to the carrying amount of the interest in an associate WRZEBE AR ERREAEYK:

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Net assets attributable to owners of SLURESHEEFE
Eminence 2,881,293 2,941,869
Proportion of the Group's equity interest in AEB R S IR A2 2
Eminence Lt 51 29.60% 2747%
852,863 808,131
Less: Net assets of the Eminence Group ~ J&l : A EE R B D 1G5 1L
not shared by the Group SECEEFE (44,145) (19,248)
808,718 788,883
17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. —BE&EARER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FE T
Cost of investment in an unlisted joint R—REELEMEERRZ
venture & KA 1,744 1,744
Share of post-acquisition loss DAE U g B 1B (1,687) (1,682)
57 62

169
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

Details of the Group's joint venture at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Name of joint venture

RELEER

Bonita Springs Global Limited

Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interest
M AR 3L it B BEREZLH

2021 2020
BVI 50% 50%
HEBRIES

No financial information of the joint venture is disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements as the joint venture is

not material to the Group.

Financial assets at FVTPL:

— Listed equity securities in
(note (a))

— Equity-linked notes (note (b))

— Convertible notes (note (c))
— Life insurance policy (note (d))

— Perpetual bonds (note (e))

Analysed as:
— Current portion
— Non-current portion

VA

{=0AN

RBEHF FEMZA
m

BB

Proportion of

voting power held Principal activity

FERERLA TEEHR
2021 2020
50% 50%  Investment holding

RERK

HREEERHAKETEREATE

MU ERGEUERREES L
R EE R -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FETT
BEAFEFABZZ SR
BE:
HongKong —RABLEMZBRAES
(B it (a) 142,645 61,41
— REHHEE
(B 7 (b)) 6,231 -
— AR EE i) 199,944 85,914
— ANERE (K Fw) 11,502 11,194
— K AEH (A it (e) - 14,339
360,322 172,858
DATA
— RBEB 1D 148,876 72,696
—3EmE E D 211,446 100,162
360,322 172,858
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The fair values of the listed equity securities were determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock
Exchange.

M et

(a)

EABRABSFZAFEDRERR
FifrsR s HEERE -

The fair values of the equity-linked notes as at 31 March 2021, (b) FEEHHIGER2021E3A31BH A
which amounted to HK$6,231,000 (2020: nil), are determined T 1E 56,231,000 7T (20204 : ) -
based on the market closing prices quoted by a bank. The TIRESETHRKTEET BE
equity-linked notes have maturity of one year. B EMER A —F o
The equity-linked notes are recognised as follows: BEHBRIGTERRNOT
HK$'000
T T
Additions N 160,192
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss FEZETERNLATFEEER (6,877)
Disposals & (59,000)
Transfer to listed equity securities HEE FhoRAE (84,859)
Interest received 24 F B (3,225)
At 31 March 2021 202143 H31H 6,231
() On 11 May 2017, the Group subscribed for convertible (¢ () M2017F581MH » K £ &

note (the “2017 CN1") issued by Eminence, with
principal amount of HK$16,000,000 which carries
interest at 3% per annum and payable semi-annually
in arrears with maturity on 11 May 2022 at redemption
amount of 100% of the principal amount. The 2017
CN1 can be converted at any time from and excluding
the date of issue to and including the date falling on
the fifth last business day prior to the maturity date
with conversion price of HK$0.16 per share. The
conversion price of the 2017 CN1 has been adjusted
from HK$0.16 per share to HK$2.63 per share effective
from 4 February 2020 as a result of the consolidation of
share and the completion of the rights issue. The Group
may redeem the 2017 CN1, at any time three months
after the grant date, at 100% of the principal amount
outstanding together with all interest accrued thereon
up to and including the date of redemption. Eminence
may redeem the 2017 CN1 on any business day prior
to the maturity date at 100% of the principal amount
outstanding together with all interest accrued thereon
up to and including the date of redemption.

RESLLERTZAR
f% Z (8 — (520179F 7]
BREED Ae2BEA
16,000,000/ T A & ¥ &
HIR S F 5 K B3% 2 Fl
B K HR2022%6 58118 & 84
HER100% 2 AE &% -
B —2017F Al R E iE
AT EITHREEZRIE
BB AAIERMEEEA I
B RS 2 1 {n] B 8 LA H%.0.16
Bz iBmE LK B
20202848 #£ © K 7
BHFTERERET E
—H2017FE TR ERE 2
H®EE A& RKR16E T
FABEEHFR2638B T K
ESEATE%THE=ZMA
ZEAEEEEEBERFE —
320174 7] 2 i 4% & &
Z100% A& R MA R
RAMNBEEZNMBEERA
B o &L ar R E i
ERIEFXBIREER
520174 7] # %,
Z2100% A& £ 58 &
RANEEZENBEE
Hy o

pir:
k

o
§E

T

%Iﬁﬂl
H#

FEOEE D
@ ot 3k
marg | N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes: (Continued)

(c)  (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

On 18 September 2020, the Group entered into the
deed of amendment with Eminence in relation to the
proposed alternations of the conversion price of the
2017 CN1. According to the deed of amendment, (i)
the conversion price of the 2017 CN1 is further revised
from HK$2.63 per conversion share to HK$0.25 per
conversion share; (ii) the maturity date of the 2017 CN1
will be extended to 28 August 2024, and (iii) the interest
payable on 2017 CN1 will be increased from 3% to 4%
per annum. The deed of amendment was approved by
the shareholders at a special general meeting of the
Company held on 19 November 2020 and the Company
received the approved letter from The Stock Exchange
on 25 November 2020. The modification of the terms
was determined to be substantial and hence resulting
in a gain on changes in fair value of 2017 CN1 upon
modification recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amounting to HK$7,040,000.

As at 31 March 2021, the 2017 CN1 with principal
amount of HK$16,000,000 (2020: HK$16,000,000)
remains outstanding.

The fair value of the 2017 CN1 is determined based
on the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of professional qualified
valuers not connected with the Group.

e PR wRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £20214#3431H 1 F &

Brat o (&)

M2020%9A18H » & &£ B M
=L ¥R E—H2017F AR
BREBEERENESZEEF]
SMAEET R o RIRIEETRE -
(V8 —2017F "] 2 R Z W
EiERTRAERKK2638
TE—SEITABRBRRK
190.257 7 ¢ (i) 88 — 1920174
AHBREENISASERSE
2024 8A281 : K (i) & — 1
2017 AT R R B F B
BB FI%EINEL% ° EF]
25 B R20206F11 8198 £ 17
MASEEREFHI KNS &
B R% AL & K AR R B 722020
F11 /258 U B Bt 22 BT o2 Bt fE
F-BANMERWEREEAE
AN B BHE—H2017F 7]
BREBEAFEZH NS E
ABEMEMEEKRERSP
% R 57,040,000/ 7t °

R202143A318 » £—192017
FABRREBRHGBAS
8 /316,000,000 7T (20204 :
16,000,000 JT) °

F—M2017F U BRBEEE 2 A
FEDIBREBEZEZEFEERA
A —HEAEELEREY
BUGEREEGHEMITRME
ZIEEETE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

(ii)

On 26 September 2017, the Group subscribed for
convertible note (the “2017 CN2") issued by Eminence,
with principal amount of HK$28,200,000 which
carries interest at 3% per annum and payable semi-
annually in arrears with maturity on 26 September
2020 at redemption amount of 100% of the principal
amount. The 2017 CN2 can be converted at any time
from and excluding the date of issue to and including
the date falling on the fifth last business day prior to
the maturity date with conversion price of HK$0.06
per share. The conversion price of the 2017 CN2 has
been adjusted from HK$0.06 per share to HK$0.9855
per share effective from 4 February 2020 as a result of
the consolidation of share and the completion of the
rights issue. The Group may redeem the 2017 CN2, at
any time three months after the grant date, at 100%
of the principal amount outstanding together with all
interest accrued thereon up to and including the date
of redemption. Eminence may redeem the 2017 CN2
on any business day prior to the maturity date at 100%
of the principal amount outstanding together with all
interest accrued thereon up to and including the date of
redemption.

On 18 October 2017, the conversion rights attached to
the 2017 CN2 with principal amount of HK$16,920,000
were partially exercised and a total of 282,000,000
conversion shares were issued by Eminence to the
Group upon conversion.

On 18 September 2020, the Group entered into the
deed of amendment with Eminence in relation to the
proposed alternations of the conversion price of the
2017 CN2. According to the deed of amendment, (i)
the conversion price of the 2017 CN2 is further revised
from HK$0.9855 per conversion share to HK$0.25 per
conversion share; (i) the maturity date of the 2017 CN2
will be extended to 28 August 2024; and (iii) the interest
payable on 2017 CN2 will be increased from 3% to 4%
per annum. The deed of amendment was approved by
the shareholders at a special general meeting of the
Company held on 19 November 2020 and the Company
received the approved letter from The Stock Exchange
on 25 November 2020. The modification of the terms
was determined to be substantial and hence resulting
in a gain on changes in fair value of 2017 CN2 upon
modification recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amounting to HK$4,964,000.

Brat: (&)

(c)

(%)

(ii)

M201749H26R » A & B R
BalLtxworUnRER
(TE—P2017E T RIRERE )
N4 4 %8 528,200,000/ 7T A
REX¥FHRINFNEAR
3% 2 | B K 2020597268
BIHARSEEE100% 2 AE £ 58 -
017 FER R EETA
THBTEREEREINHAR
FRELZEB 1 BE 2T
BLAGRR0.06B Ty HiB K
oo H202092H4H £ 0 B
PEPFSTERBE T F=
?2017F A MR ZE 2 HIB(E
CHERE THARESN
0.9855/8 7T ° AN E B Al | # 17
BE=Z@A 2T MR FE
@5 —52017F a2 AR Z 4% 14
#%Z2100% A& B XA &T
RASEZLRIEERDBS -
SRR BB A R 2 T2 %
Hig R &R0 E —52017F aJ &
BRE 8 2100% A& & 8
FEERANEEZELRBIEE
EYSER
R2017%10818H © & = 4
20174 Al #2 Bk | 4% I BE 2 5
BRIEBEBITEARAEESER
16,920,000/ T I A X # B S
& H 3 17282,000,0000% 3
BRMDFAER -

&

2020498188 » 7/ & & B
=L ERE = 7H2017F AT R
BREBEERENESE E]
SAERT R - RIBEBFT R
(V& — 2017 A R ZEH
N E R SRR AR 0.9855
BLE— ST ARTRAR
A% 150.255% 7T ¢ (i) 8 = 192017
FURREBENIHABEBER
2024487288 : K (i) & —
72017 FE AR BB EMNFE
S FEI%IBINEA% ° EF]
IR E R20205F11 8198 £ 17
MAEERREF XS &
15 B 3L R AR 2 R] B 722020
F11 8258 4 B B &2 BT 2 it &
T RN ERBERETEAE
A EtBEHE - H20175F 7]
BREEAFEESSH W EAE
HMABZEMEMEEKERSP
% R 54,964,000/ 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes: (Continued)

(c)  (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the 2017 CN2 with principal
amount of HK$11,280,000 (2020: HK$11,280,000)
remains outstanding.

The fair value of the 2017 CN2 is determined based
on the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of professional qualified
valuers not connected with the Group.

On 28 August 2019, the Group subscribed for
convertible note (the “2019 CN") issued by Eminence,
with principal amount of HK$70,000,000 which carries
interest at 3% per annum and payable semi-annually in
arrears with maturity on 17 June 2024 at redemption
amount of 100% of the principal amount. The 2019 CN
can be converted at any time from and excluding the
date of issue to and including the date falling on the
fifth last business day prior to the maturity date with
conversion price of HK$0.055 per share. The conversion
price of the 2019 CN has been adjusted from HK$0.055
per share to HK$0.91 per share effective from 4
February 2020 as a result of the consolidation of share
and the completion of the rights issue.

e PR wRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £20214#3431H 1 F &

Brat o (&)

c) (#&)

(ii)

(iii)

2021438318 © £ — 52017
FABRBRERHMNBLAE &
%8 /511,280,000 JT (20204F :
11,280,000 7T) °

FEZM017FABRBREERE A
FEDRBREBEEEFEERA
Al —HHEALEELEHEY
BUAEAREEMBEMITRME
ZHEEEE -

M201948H28H » &~ &£ B R
BHELBETZATREERE
(lRRo19F BB ERE]  HA
% 4 % /A70,000,000 T © F
BEI%NZHBRSFFFHR
S A B B A AB2024F6
A178 I B @100% 2 A& &
B o 2019F Al R B A A
TEHAREZA)EZREHA
AMERBEFEFRAEEER(BEZ
iEzEMAEELR i
855K K%H0.055%8 T A
20202 A48 & © LMD A HF
7 AR A A 31T - 2019F AT 2
BREE 2 AREERETR0.055
BLTHABEEER00E T - A
PR EHRERTR - B
200F A MR BB BRKRE
2020562 A48 A E R K HD
0.055 8 T HAE A SR X(%0.91
BT o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

Notes: (Continued) Hiaz: (&)
(c)  (Continued) () (&)
(i) (Continued) (i) (%)
On 18 September 2020, the Group entered into the M20209F9A18H © AN &£ & #
deed of amendment with Eminence in relation to the B ER2019F A K E &
proposed alternations of the conversion price of the BRENEREZEEILBRZ
2019 CN. According to the deed of amendment, (i) %o B E T 2 & () 2019
the conversion price of the 2019 CN is further revised FABRKREBRNERER
from HK$0.91 per conversion share to HK$0.25 per I 32 A% AR 19 0.918 JT i — &
conversion share; (i) the maturity date of the 2019 CN AATRBRRKARM0.25E T
will be extended to 28 August 2024; and (iii) the interest (i) 20194 o] #2 % 2 & /9 5 23
payable on 2019 CN will be increased from 3% to 4% H# R £202448A28H : &k
per annum. The deed of amendment was approved by (iii) 20194 A 2 & = ¥% FE 1 7
the shareholders at a special general meeting of the BERNHEFI%IEMEL% © &
Company held on 19 November 2020 and the Company 5] 24 2 W20209F11 5198 £
received the approval letter from The Stock Exchange THAEERRSFN RS L&
on 25 November 2020. The modification of the terms 15 1% 3R Bt /& R A QR E 722020
was determined to be substantial and hence resulting F11A268 W B B 32 B 2 8L &
in a gain on changes in fair value of 2019 CN upon - BREAMNEREBERE
modification recognised in consolidated statement K AL EHR2019F AR i =
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income BEAFTESHRZELREE
amounting to HK$61,516,000. mMEMEERERTERE

61,516,000/ 7t °

At 31 March 2021, the principal amount of M2021%E3H8318 1 2019F 1 #1
HK$70,000,000 (2020: HK$70,000,000) of the 2020 % 22 45 15 2 AN £ %870,000,000
CN remains outstanding. &7 (20204 :70,000,0007%
JT) e
The fair value of the 2019 CN is determined based 2009 AR BB 2 AT E
on the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal DIRBEETEBERRA - —
Limited, an independent firm of professional qualified MErXEBRIEREZBILA
valuers not connected with the Group. BERBEEGEMTRBEZGE

EE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143531A 1F £ &

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

The convertible notes are recognised as follows:

(435
jE (A5 )

Brat o (&)

c) (#&)

MRREREROT

18. RAVEFABEZZERME

HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4H1H 28,033
Addition # 0 70,000
Interest received 2 F B (2,070)
Unrealised fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REZABERZRERAFE
e & (10,049)
At 31 March 2020 720203 A31H 85,914
Interest received 2 F B (3,256)
Unrealised fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REBHEABRZRERAFE
W &= 43,766
Gain on change in fair value upon modification RIEREIZAFEFABEZ
TREEZATEEY NS 73,520
At 31 March 2021 #2021F3A31H 199,944

176




For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

2020/21 Annual Report

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the

convertible notes are as follows:

Valuation of convertible notes

The convertible notes are measured at fair value using the
Black-Scholes model with Trinomial Tree method, at initial
recognition and at the end of each subsequent reporting
period. The inputs into the model as at date of subscription
and the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

2017 CN1

Stock price
Conversion price
Volatility
Dividend yield
Time to maturity
Risk-free rate

2017 CN2

Stock price
Conversion price
Volatility
Dividend yield
Time to maturity
Risk-free rate

2019 CN

Stock price
Conversion price
Volatility
Dividend yield
Time to maturity
Risk-free rate

E—R2017F IR KREE
& &

H#]E

]

& 8 &

FI HA B S

4 3, B B 3R &

E-D2017F T RREE
B &

H#&fE

B 18

fi B =&

3] 5 B i

B By Bl R &

2019 AR E
& &

H#E

IR

B B %

FI| B B £

4 2| [ B 3R X

Brat o (&)

(c)

(&)

REGETRARERZTERRR

m

MRREEzfAE
HRBEERRNGEEIARRERS
EREMRTI BT — HHBE
AR=ZXBEARFEFHE - RR
BHHEBREMREXRAZE A
BEmT:

At

31 March
2021
20214
3H31H

HK$0.497%8 T
HK$0.257 JT
60.71%

0%

3.41 years
0.4524%

HK$0.497%8 T
HK$0.2538 JT
60.71%

0%

3.41 years
0.4524%

HK$0.497% 7T
HK$0.255%8 T
60.71%

0%

3.41 yearsfF
0.4524%

At

31 March
2020
20204
3H31H

HK$0.4957% T
HK$2.637%& JT
56.83%

0%

2.1 years4E
0.5783%

HK$0.4957% 7T
HK$0.9855/% 7T
7117 %

0%

0.5 years
0.6015%

HK$0.4957% 7T
HK$0.917%& 7T
78.64%

0%

4.4 years o
0.5703%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

In prior years, the Company entered into life insurance policy
with an insurance company to insure Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy,
a director of the Company. Under the policy, the Company is
the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum
is United States dollars (“US$")10,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$83,808,000). The Company is required to pay an upfront
deposit of US$1,283,000 (equivalent to HK$9,956,000)
including a premium charge at inception of the policy
amounting to US$76,980 (equivalent to HK$597,000). The
Company can terminate the policy at any time and receive
cash back based on the cash value of the policy at the date
of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payment
of US$1,283,000 plus accumulated interest earned and
minus the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense
charge. In addition, if withdrawal is made between the first
to eighteenth policy year, there is a specified amount of
surrender charge.

Life insurance policy is classified as financial assets at
FVTPL as these financial assets have contractual right to
cash flows that do not represent contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding.

At 31 March 2021, life insurance policy amounting to
HK$11,502,000 (2020: HK$11,194,000) was pledged to a bank
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

Life insurance policy is denominated in US$, a currency other
than the functional currency of the Company.

e PR wRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

Brat o (&)

(d)

RARMEE  "AARE—FHRBAQ
AR —THASRENEBRARA
EEEAMRT - BEZRE K
RAAEZARREFEFEARERE
1% %8 /510,800,000 T (= T (A
% $283,808,000/% JT) - N2 A A X
38 1+ #%2 £1,283,000% 7T (B F »
9,956,000/ 7T)* BIE R LR B
BB 2R E76,980% T (HHER
597,000/ 7T) ° AN A &) A] A fE {A] BF
MEREZRERBERREZRE
2HREBEEKBRIES R EE
{7 301,283,000% 7T & Fr B X 2 & &
FERMRRFRERREE HH
TMEE - N WHRREFE—F
ZE+TN\FERR BEBTCLEE
BRREAX -

ABRESBERELATHEMARR
ZEBMEE FAZETRMEEZA
AR Z2ASRBITRRAERR
XNAERAREEAENEZEH
Reneg -

M2021F3A31H A B R & B
11,502,000/ 7T (20204 : 11,941,000
B) BEERTRITEREAR TR
SE-RRTEEZEA -

ABREURDBENEEEIAIIZ
BHELINE -
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e MR R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143531A 1- £ &

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (continuesy  18. RAFEFTAERZE/E

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

-3

Brat o (&)

The fair values of the perpetual bonds as at 31 March (e)
2020, which amounted to HK$14,339,000 (2021: nil), were
determined based on the quoted market closing prices
available on an overseas recognised stock exchange with
fixed interest at a range from 5.90% to 6.25% (2021: nil) per

2020 3A31H * K AEHZ R F
& 514,339,000/ JT (20214 : #) -
DR —FBINRABHRRSZ
WU T B LA B EF R ENFH5.90%
%£6.25% (20214F : #E)E T °

annum.
The perpetual bonds were recognised as follows: KABEHFHEROT
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2019 R2019F 4818 39,916
Disposals e (25,562)
Exchange difference ERZERE (355)
Interest received 2 WA B (1,807)
Gain on changes in fair value recognised in profitorloss REZANER ZAFE
2 2,147
At 31 March 2020 202043 A31H 14,339
Disposals & (14,412)
Interest received 2 A B (194)
Gain on changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBZH AR 2 A F &
g 267
At 31 March 2021 72021438318 —

All perpetual bonds are denominated in US$, a currency other

than the functional currency of the relevant group entity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong or REBSBINETZET
overseas with fixed interests ranging BE - BEFMENTH
from 8.50% to 8.90% (2020: 3.75% 8.50% £8.90% (20204 :
t0 6.25%) per annum and maturity 3.75% %£6.25%) ' EHiH
dates ranging from 24 May 2021 to 30 20219654240 =2022
June 2022 (2020: 19 July 2020 to 19 F6H30H (20204 : 2020
September 2021), at fair value F7H19H 20219819
H) #®&AF¥E 11,770 29,543
Analysed as: PR
Current portion B 21D 7,740 3,843
Non-current portion EmB LD 4,030 25,700
11,770 29,543

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, debt instruments at FVTOCI
are stated at fair values which are determined based on the
quoted market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange
or overseas recognised stock exchanges.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the
credit loss allowance measured on 12m ECL basis as the
credit risk on these financial instruments has not increased
significantly since initial recognition. The Group assessed the
ECL for debt instruments at FVTOCI by reference to credit
rating of the bond investment published by rating agencies
or internal credit ratings, macroeconomic factors affecting
the respective industry for each issuer, corporate historical
default and loss rate and exposure of default of each bond
investment. An impairment loss of HK$306,000 (2020:
HK$126,000) was recognised for the year ended 31 March
2021.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 40.

All debt instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in USS$, a

currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entity.

R20214 202038318 I A F &

§+J\E1ﬁ’£\@451¥211ﬁ511ﬂf”&$

TE@JEEWETF 2 BTk 8 SRR
RBZATREMEEE -

BEAFEFAEMEZAKSZZ2EST
BR12EREHREEBBAEFER
ifFﬁg%&ﬁZimﬁ% FSRSRIRCRi
RUARSHMTIEZEERRKR I EAE
i-bu CAEBEZZEFRBBEESFE
BE7EEFRIABEETR &
BETASETEZRABRLERE -
TCEFLEHRRBAEUAREZES
WEENORR  FHZATFETAE
terEKErERTAZEHEES
B HE2021F383MBILFE - BE
5 18306,000/% 7T 74 18 7 N A 3R (2020
1 126,0008 7T) °

B RARE R 2 F BRI M FE40 ©
PBERAFEFAEMEZEARGE 2E

BTANHBESEEEBNREETEN
SN EEEETTENE ©
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Unlisted debt instruments in Hong Kong ~ &#B3EFmERK LA

Fixed-rate unsecured junior note (the EMEFERVRERE
“Junior Note") (note (a)) (TMEREED (W ()

Fixed-rate secured note (the “Secured TEF R AER B ([HER
Note") (note (b)) E® DK Ewm)

Less: Impairment allowance OB E B

Analysed as: DA
Asset classified as held for sale DHEABELREZEE
Non-current assets EMBE E

Notes:

(a) In August 2017, Charming Flash Limited (“Charming Flash”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Golden Glow
Limited (the “Issuer”), an independent third party incorporated
in the Cayman Islands, entered into a loan agreement with
principal amount of US$2,000,000 with an interest rate of
19% per annum. The carrying amount of the loans receivable
was approximately HK$15,660,000 as at 31 March 2018.

In October 2018, Charming Flash entered into a subscription
agreement with the Issuer, pursuant to which Charming
Flash subscribed the Junior Note issued by the Issuer in
the amount of US$4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$35,235,000) and settled by the existing loans receivable
amounting to US$2,000,000 and an additional cash payment
of US$2,500,000. The Junior Note was at an interest rate
of 14.65% per annum and with maturity date on 30 October
2020 with an extendable maturity date of one year after the
maturity date.

g

(a)

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
— 41,906
16,009 16,015
(800) (7.876)
15,209 50,045
= 34,830
15,209 15,215
15,209 50,045

MR20177F8A A A A — M & &
Bf B 2 & Charming Flash Limited
([Charming Flash]) B2 /A 7 £ B & 5%
fit BX 37 B9 58 2 5 = 5 Golden Glow
Limited (B 1T AD B2 E R # 5% -
N4 %8 52,000,000 TMEF R A
19% ° F2018F3A31H  E K B &
Y BR M {8 915,660,000 7T °

M20184%F 108 ° Charming Flash
HBETAGTLRBEGZE B
Charming Flash LA & %8 &4,500,000
% 7t (% B #35,235,0007% JT) R B
BOABTHVAERS  WIEREA
& U & 702,000,000 T M BB HNE &
2,500,000 TIEHE E - IR BEEF
F % /14.65% M £ £8 H A20204F10
A30H - BIEAHMEATEREIEA —
F o



Notes: (Continued)
(@) (Continued)

In February 2020, Charming Flash entered into a tripartite
agreement with a buyer and the Issuer, under which
Charming Flash agreed to sell and the buyer agreed to
acquire, the Junior Note at a consideration of US$4,700,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$36,660,000). The disposal
would be completed in August 2020 and the Junior Note was
reclassified as asset classified as held for sale as at 31 March
2020. At 31 March 2020, a deposit of HK$15,480,000 had
been received from the buyer.

The disposal was completed in August 2020 and the Company
received additional cash of HK$21,000,000.

(b) In January 2020, Mark Profit Development Limited (“Mark
Profit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a subscription agreement with Reliance Global Holdings
Limited (the “Note Issuer”), which its shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange, pursuant to which Mark Profit subscribed
the Secured Note issued by the Note Issuer in the principal
amount of HK$16,000,000. The Secured Note is at an interest
rate of 7.125% per annum and with maturity date on 16
January 2023. The Secured Note is secured by a debenture
incorporating by a first floating charge over all the undertaking,
property and assets of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Note
Issuer.

The Junior Note and Secured Note were measured at
amortised cost since the Group’s business model to hold
these debt instruments were to hold for collection of
contractual cash flows, and the cash flows represented solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Group assessed the ECL with reference to the internal
credit rating of the issuers and its holding company. A
reversal of impairment loss of HK$1,650,000 (2020:
impairment loss of HK$4,353,000) was recognised in profit
or loss during the year ended 31 March 2021. Details of
impairment assessment are set out in note 40.

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

Hat: (&)
(@ (&)

72020428 + Charming Flash £ &
ARBETATLZAHE B
Charming Flash A & 1% {X {84,700,000
F 7 (188 7 4936,660,000/5 L) H &
MEFRBEWRBYRERE LES
HE K R2020F8A K - YIREER
2020F3A3IBEF N AL EAR
B & 2 & E - M20209F3A318 -
B 88 5 WEZ 15,480,000 7T °

HEFEEDN2020FE8A7K - AR
7 Us B 58 5MIR 421,000,000 7T °

(b)  F2020F1A ARARE2EWEB AR
BRBREARQT(ERDRAEZR
BHERERATD(EHEETAL
HBRMRERZ T ) IR B W
B - F % A ANE %816,000,000/% 7T
RBEZEBRTARTHERER -
EREBVIEFF E7125%EF B -
M2023FE1A16B ZI 8 - R ZE T
LSRR ERETAZENBRAN
PEER WEREEZEFH
R EEBIEER -

HRAEEFAEZSEEFLANER
BAKRUBRAORERENFTA
BOBRBEBRERERZBHKA
AE BEREREEARETEBLAKR
EERNSHEMNK-

REEL2EBHTAREZRATNR
HEETATIEEHREEEE -H2
202153A3MHIEFEERIERER
A 1B §5 48 5 [ A41,650,00078 7T (2020
& JE (B B 184,353,000 JT) ° B B
AR B E A M 540 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

Fixed-rate loans receivable EEEWER
Variable-rate loans receivable FEEIWER

R R R B

Less: Impairment allowance

Analysed as: DA
Current portion B B
Non-current portion FEMENEB 1D

Secured SR

Unsecured I

No aged analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aged analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of loan
financing.

The Group's loans receivable denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities, which was US$, amounted to HK$12,645,000 at 31
March 2020 (2021: nil).

At 31 March 2021, the range of interest rate on the Group's
fixed-rate loans receivable is 2.3% to 12% (2020: 2.3% to
16%) per annum and the range of interest rate on the Group’s
variable-rate loans receivable is prime rate less 1% to prime
rate (2020: prime rate less 1% to prime rate) per annum.

Details of ECL assessment are set out in note 40 and below.

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TET
217,258 260,358
6,535 9,379
223,793 269,737
(80,777) (32,986)
143,016 236,751
125,736 223,473
17,280 13,278
143,016 236,751
56,770 101,835
86,246 134,916
143,016 236,751

BENEREST  ABARRESER
BoREFRBREXFUHEEMS KK
DAL BEINMEE -

AEBNUEBEEERIEE R (A
ETLIUNNNZEEINEBEZERER
M2020%F3H31H A12,645,000/%8 7T
(2021 : #) °

#2021&3)%315 CREB 2 E B EIR
BEREBFFEN F2.3% £E12% (2020
¢ 2. 3%116%>&21S$2/¥ B
BEREBFMNENTHEIREFNER1%
EHBEMER(Q020F : HEEM X
W1%EHERFEX) -

FEHIE B B R 5 & B3R M 40
KIATR o



The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable

is as follows:

At 1 April 2019

Changes due to loans receivable
recognised as at 1 April 2019
— Net remeasurement of ECL

(note (i)
— Repayments (note (i)

New loans granted (note (iii))

At 31 March 2020

Changes due to loans receivable
recognised as at 31 March 2020
— Net remeasurement of ECL

(note (ir))
— Repayments (note (i)
— Transfer to credit-impaired

New loans granted (note (iii))

At 31 March 2021

Notes:

20194818

#2019@4)%1 HE %R JE

IR E KT B &
— E%ﬁ u“‘iﬁﬁiﬁ /HH f%_
BB FE0)
—EE ( H1 a2 0)
B E (A 2 i)

MR2020%F3A31H

EA2020¢3H31 HE®R
JiE U & ZRFT B
—E*ﬁu“’iﬂi%ﬁgﬁ{%—

BB 8 (K a2 0)
—BEH )
—EEEEERE

2R E (AT 2 (i)

M2021%3831H

(i) The reversal of impairment loss of HK$159,000 (2020:
HK$1,229,000) was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$3,408,000 (2020: HK$32,111,000)

repaid during the year.

(ii) The remeasurement of ECL of HK$47,605,000 (2020:
HK$27,365,000) was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$193,235,000 (2020: HK$76,336,000).

(i)~ The impairment loss of HK$345,000 (2020: HK$3,120,000)
was related to loans receivable with gross carrying amount
of HK$5,500,000 (2020: HK$65,000,000) which are newly

granted during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

FBRERZ RERBEZEBHNT

Lifetime

ECL —

credit-
12m ECL impaired Total

BEERHN

EHEE

1218 A 78 58 BB —
FEEE FERE W
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T T T
3,730 — 3,730
2,307 25,058 27365
(1,229) — (1,229)
3,120 — 3,120
4,198 25,058 29,256
7928 25,058 32,986
1,307 46,298 47605
(159) — (159)
(3,846) 3,846 e
345 — 345
(2,353) 50,144 47791
5,575 75,202 80,777

g

(i

(ii)

(ii)

AE B 18 B [@ 2159,0005% T (2020
411,229,000 JT) 2 Bk M 42 & 7%
3,408,000 fu (20204F : 32,111,000
T ZERERTIRAFEEGR -

EHFEBEHEE BB
47,605,0007% 7T (20204 : 27,365,000
78 Jr) B BR M 42 {8 /193,235,000
7‘1(2020& 76,336,0007% JT) 7 JE WX
j=\ T)\ﬁ ﬁ@

B B B 1B 2345,00078 7T (2020

#:3,120,0008 o) R E B E A

5,500,000 ﬁ(zozoi 65,000,000

,%mzﬁm&zﬁ RTTRAFERL Z
5 F% o
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Details of credit-impaired loans receivable are set out in note
40(b).

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the
potential borrower'’s credit quality and defines credit limits
granted to each borrower. The credit limits attributed to the
borrowers are reviewed by the management regularly.

Impairment assessment

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$223,793,000
at 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$269,737,000). During the
year ended 31 March 2021, a net impairment loss of
HK$47,791,000 (2020: HK$29,256,000) was recognised in
profit or loss. At 31 March 2021, the accumulated impairment
allowance for loans receivable amounted to HK$80,777,000
(2020: HK$32,986,000).

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, intangible asset represents
a trading right with carrying value of HK$500,000 that
confers eligibility of Constance Capital Limited (“Constance
Capital”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to
trade on the Stock Exchange for the purpose of securities
dealing and broking. The trading right has no foreseeable
limit to the period that Constance Capital can use to generate
net cash flows. As a result, the trading right is considered
by management of the Company as having an indefinite
useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash
inflows indefinitely. The trading right will not be amortised
until its useful life is determined to be finite. It will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired. At 31 March 2021 and
2020, no impairment loss has been recognised in respect
of Constance Capital’s trading right as amount involved is
insignificant.

EHRCIEEERENERER ZFI1B
B 51 72 Y 7E40(b) ©

EROERTIIRER  AREFHG
BEEBRAZEEEZRREERTE
fIfERAZEER EEEEHRF
ERAZEER -

B L

TR B R % E T R2021F3A318 &k
T # {E /5223,793,0005% 7T (20204 :
269,737,000 L) 2 W E X 2 5
BE & RE 2202138318 It F
& SE IR E B 847,791,000 7T (2020
129,256,000/ L) NIBEER - K
2021F3A318 BWEZ 2 25 R
B # # /&80,777,000/8 7T (20204 :
32,986,000 JT) °

M2021F K2020F3A31H - EEEE
DRETLEEREBR AR ([AEE
K KRR zZz—HME2EWBAA -
BRIRBRAEE R SECERER
fE500,0007 JT o A HEE AN 0] 5 A )%
EHRZRGENELERESREFE -
At KRR EEERAERSELE
REATHABHETERBERE
ERMEFE RXIFIETSHEHEES
HERFTHETARAER - X S5EE
REFEREERTEEARBAR
# 1T R E R R o H20214F KX20204F3
A3'B -BRFPERZeBITEKX
ShIEE AR 2 X5 %86 R (B K18 ik

=7
R e



The amounts included a deposit of HK$10,000,000 (2020: nil)
paid to Eminence for acquisition of equity interests in certain
subsidiaries of Eminence which are holding properties held
for development for sale pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement dated 5 November 2020. The agreement has
been terminated subsequent to the end of the reporting
period (see note 43(a)).

The Group's properties held for development for sale are
situated in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2021, the amount of properties held for
development for sale which are expected to be completed
more than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period is HK$950,375,000 (2020: HK$912,675,000).

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group performed
assessment of net realisable value on its properties held
for development for sale with reference to valuations made
by independent qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuations were arrived
at by using the residual method. At 31 March 2021, the
estimated net realisable value of certain properties held for
development for sale was lower than their carrying amounts,
a write-down amounting to HK$19,572,000 was recognised
in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$28,573,000).

Analysis of leasehold lands component:

As at 31 March 2020
Carrying amount REE

As at 31 March 2021
Carrying amount REE

7202063 831H

M2021%E3H31H
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

ZeBHEEINGEaLNE: A
10,000,000 7T (20204 : #) - AR U
BEeLETTFRARIMNERE BLTA
AR 1E B E A2020F11 AEHK E & #
EBREGEVE - -ZBBERERNREH
HERB R IE (R K 7E43(0) ©

AERECHERERRDEDURE
7 e

MR2021FE3A31H - EHAEE 2 #
EHERRMERNBEHRE =M@
A A% K 2 % %8 £950,375,000/% 7T
(20204 : 912,675,000 7T) °

720214 [ 20209F3A31H » REE D
RBELEERDELETIVZERFE
HmNheERAEEREEEZEY
BERBEEYWEGEMITZMEE - %
EHEDREFBEHEEESE - R
2021F3R31H BT HELERR
MEZANEEFERNERE B2
20214 3A318 IEFE + H{E19,572,000
75 7T (20204F : 28,573,000 7T) R 1B &
REERR °

ML D
HK$°000
FET

1,984,981

839,106
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2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T T
Operating cash outflows KR M — (57.245)
Additions 0 — 81,122
The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost A L 30 & BR T B DA AKX 2SR & 1
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment MEBFFTEMTRBEERBLTE o F
losses. The residual values are determined as the estimated HBREEREEABAO LMD NMEFTE
disposal value of the leasehold land component. No EEE - ZEF 20216 % 202093831
depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands taking BH et RE  REMEO TR
into account the estimated residual values as at 31 March EEH-
2021 and 2020.
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
Trade receivables: Z 5 W EOA -
0-60 days 0-60H 2,690 2,586
61-90 days 61-90H 138 213
2,828 2,799
Prepayments TR 3 5,000 3,556
Interest receivable JE W R B 1,058 958
Dividend receivable FE W AR B - 2
Escrow deposits for properties held for BIEREMEZTETK
sale 4,622 —
Accounts receivable from margin RECRERKBERM )
financing (note) 22,450 —
Other receivables and deposits HitwE B RiRE 2,260 1,884
38,218 9,199
Note: The Group provides margin financing to certain individuals for K AEBERAEAZBHREREKRR
securities transactions secured by the individuals securities WEHEZHMETEAARBRSE
held as collateral. Securities are assigned with specific CRE - BEIEAFENRE
margin ratios for calculation margin values. Additional funds SHEUFEREFSBE - BRR
or collateral are required if the outstanding amounts of BEMENERERCAEES
accounts receivable from margin financing exceed the eligible HHRBMTESF;FNEBRELE
margin value of the securities deposited. No aging analysis is B AFREEIINESHERMR -
disclosed as in the opinion of the directors of the Company, BRARTNEEZRE BERRE
the aging analysis does not give additional value in view of the SRENME  BRITT2IE
nature of margin financing. HENEE ALERERRKS

i e



The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants. The
aged analysis of trade receivables is determined based on
invoice date which approximates revenue recognition date.

The management closely monitors the credit quality of
trade and other receivables and considers trade and other
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be of
good credit quality.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 40.

No credit loss allowance has been recognised on the trade
and other receivables as the directors of the Company
consider that the amount is immaterial.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, at prevailing market interest rates
ranging from 0.001% to 2% (2020: 0.001% to 2%) per
annum.

Included in the bank balances as at 31 March 2021 is
an amount of HK$1,545,000 (2020: HK$16,106,000)
denominated in US$, a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities.
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REBRAERTEAFPEREEY -
EHRURER MEMRZRE DN -
DRBEOIVEHRADHA CEZEH
HEE -

EEEETELES M EAMEWRNKIEA
ZIEEER YRR E
CEGRAEMBEKFEREBREE
EEx-

B R EMEWRGIE 2 REFTGHFS
B H R 5E40 -

HRARREERRERLTEKR
WA E B 5 N A [ IR FERAE
EEBEELRE -

RITHEBERSEPERAEERFEE R
A RIZRBITTEFHEH0.001% =
2% (20204 : 0.001% E2%) 2 = {& A
S AEIER Z MHASR T IE 30 »

M2021F3A318 F RITEH B H
731,545,000 7T (20204 : 16,106,000
7 T0) LA FE B8 5 B E B8 T Bt K A Ah
2 E®BETHME -
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Trade and other payables BESRkHtEARIE

2021 2020

HK$000 HK$'000

FET F#E T

Trade payables 2 5 R IA 4,290 5,508

Retention payable (note) FEHRIE S (BT iE) 7,476 11,460
Rental deposits received and rental Bl NEKRES

received in advance 8,936 9,944
Deposit received for disposal of Junior HEVREEZERIEZS

Note (note 20(a)) (Kt 5£20(a)) - 15,480

Interest payable JE A5 FI) B 2,563 419

Accruals and other payables TE 12 I H b fE - 3R 17,782 9,351

41,047 52,162

Note: As at 31 March 2021, retention payable of HK$7,476,000
(2020: HK$11,460,000) is expected to be settled within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

The aged analysis of trade payables determined based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0-60 days 0-60H
Over 90 days B 890 H

Contract liabilities

The Group receives deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreement of sales of properties
during the year ended 31 March 2021. The deposits from
customers are recognised as contract liabilities until the
customers obtain control of the properties. At 31 March
2021, the contract liabilities amounted to HK$6,276,000
(2020: nil).

Kiit: H20219F3A318 - fE R & &
7,476,000 7T (20204 : 11,460,000
B EHABERREHERE T =@
AR -

REZZEY BHENKERRS
HIRZBREBEDWWT

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET
2,350 5,508
1,940 —
4,290 5,508

BHEE

HZE2021F3A3MBHIEFE  AEEHE
EERIMEEE B UNEFLIZ
T RBPFEtHMABAAGHAGE HEE
BEMBE YT # - R2021F38
318 * A% A1EA6,276,00078 7T (2020
FfE)o
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The amount is unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand ZeRERLSBEEM 2B HHNER
and non-trade in nature. RIERGZHE -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Carrying amount repayable as follows EEECEREABENTGRIE
(based on the scheduled repayment HIRERBECIEEE
dates set out in the loan agreements): EAH)
— within a period not exceeding one — ET BB —FHRHE
year A 468,010 823,275
— within a period of more than one year — BB — FETBIB
but not exceeding two years A /9 B A 45,896 237,787
— within a period of more than two — AR EETHR
years but not exceeding five years AFHEBEA 756,611 133,492
— within a period of more than five —ERFU EHRER
years 201,950 233,632
1,472,467 1,428,186
Less: Amount due within one year shown i BRRA RSB BEZ —4F
under current liabilities NE B € 58 (468,010) (823,275)
Amount due after one year shown under B RRIERBEGBEZ—F%
non-current liabilities FHe % 1,004,457 604,911

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s secured bank borrowings
carry interest at HIBOR plus 1% to HIBOR plus 1.825%
(2020: HIBOR plus 1% to HIBOR plus 2%) per annum, with
effective interest ranging from 1.13% to 4.05% (2020: 2.66%
to 4.05%) per annum. The loans are secured by certain
assets as disclose in note 33. The proceeds were mainly
used to finance development of properties.

20214 3A318 » NEB 2 B K #H R
TEESFUREERTRERE(SE
BIRITAZEFED MR ERBRITHE
37 B 01.826% (20204F : F B R 1T H
EREIMI%ETBRITHREREIN2%)
HEBEBRFFEIIAIIZ% £4.05%
(20204F : 2.66% £4.05%) > Z EE X
TAETEEEABMBIL I ENH T
3B FIBREFERERNERYE -
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2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEARE:
Within a period not exceeding one year BH—FUR 510 851
Within a period of more than one year BEB—FUEEIEAM
but not exceeding two years F — 410
510 1,261
Less: Amount due within 12 months B BBRR @J BfE Z+
shown under current liabilities f EEi e (510) (851)
Amount due after 12 months shown under B RRIERSBEEZ T+ -E
non-current liabilities R 2 H 2% - 410

The followings are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities TXYXEREMMBEFERERNETE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and iE FE Iﬁ(éé) BENREE
prior years:
Accelerated
ECL tax
allowance depreciation Tax losses Total
EHEE hnE g
BREE e BEESE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET T T T T T T
At 1 April 2019 MR2019%F4H1H — 1,366 (1,366) —
Credit to profit or loss RE=ETA (2,476) (16) (140) (2,632)
At 31 March 2020 72020438318 (2,476) 1,350 (1,506) (2,632)
(Credit) charge to profitor #4825 (5t A)
loss 0 Br (5,980) 307 (419) (6,092)
At 31 March 2021 M2021%3831H (8,456) 1,657 (1,925) (8,724)
At 31 March 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of M2021F3A31H  AEBEERHAR

HK$103,869,000 (2020: HK$125,080,000) available for T8 &5 18 /103,869,000 7T (20204F :
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset had 125,080,000/ 7T) © A FA 1A 4K 5 K 5K
been recognised in respect of HK$11,667,000 (2020: i Al o E AR RR2021FE3A31H 2 Fi 1E &
HK$9,127,000) of such losses as at 31 March 2021. 1811,667,000% 7T (20204 : 9,127,000
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect BTEBERAELEREBEE - &
of the remaining tax losses of HK$92,202,000 (2020: REEBEFRKEFRA - I E
HK$115,953,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits i 2 # 1792,202,000/% 7T (20204 :
streams. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. 115,953,000 o) 2 T IA K 18 B I &

MIBEE  -HIABBERALE -
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £20214#3431H 1 F &

At 31 March 2021, the Group has deductible temporary M20216E3H31H - AEEEWENRTE
differences of HK$104,942,000 (2020: HK$44,157,000) HEEEE REBHEHKAFEZHM
arising from the ECL on loans receivable, ECL on other debt BEHRTAMNBEHREESE BIELE
instruments at amortised cost, write-down of properties held BRYUXEBERBIELEYEBREE
for development for sale and write-down on properties held A 1) A OB BG B 2= B8 2104,942,00078
for sale. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation 7 (20204 : 44,157,000) ° #F £ 5t 7] 0
to deductible temporary difference of HK$53,694,000 (2020: el B By 2= %853,694,0007%8 7T (20204 -
HK$29,151,000) as it is not probable that taxable profit will be 29,151,000 7T) M RIE L IB & &= -
available against which the deductible temporary differences BIERT T Al ge EE B RN A
can be utilised. MARKEREUSRCHBEE -
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Amount
BREAE R EE ©8
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 201944818 -
31 March 2021 2020%F3A318 K&
202143 A31H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETEHR:
At 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020  #2019F 4818 &
2020 3A31H 0.1 91,320,403 9,132
Share repurchase and cancellation A% 17 [l B8 & B JH 0.1 (9,120,000) (912)

At 31 March 2021 R202143H31H 0.1 82,200,403 8,220
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
repurchased its own shares on The Stock Exchange as
follows:

Number of
Month of repurchase shares
Bl & A 4 R EE
March 2021
2021493 H 9,120,000

The above shares were cancelled upon purchase. None of
the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities for both years.

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of
the Group were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group:

GERORY/ES
BREWME

Leasehold properties
Investment properties
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

Life insurance policy ASRE
Perpetual bonds X AMEFH

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

BHZEBIA
Properties held for development for sale  #H{EH &% R Y %
Properties held for sale BIELEWE

BERELMZREEF

REZ2021F3A3NBIUEFERN - AR
AIRBRXAOEERMDIOT

Price per share Aggregate
ERER consideration
Highest Lowest paid
BES B #EXARE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FET
4.20 3.98 37582

ERABRONEESEHE KMEFE
N ARABNMBARMERE  H
EXBOARAHEM EHES ©

RBEHRR AKEEFTFRITHER
ERTASEEEHEEZEENT

BAFEFAEMEZEEK

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET TET
104,807 74,602
1,176,600 1,262,200
44,583 12,91
11,502 11,194

— 14,339

3,848 29,543
950,375 1,984,981
850,331 91,174

3,142,046 3,480,944
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At 31 March 2021, 19,800,000 shares (2020: 71,500,000
shares) of Eminence with fair value of HK$9,702,000 (2020:
HK$33,041,000) held by a subsidiary of the Group is pledged
to a bank.

In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment
properties and future sale proceeds and rentals in respect
of the above properties held for development for sale and
properties held for sale are also pledged to banks.

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £20214#3431H 1 F &

M2021F3A318 - A E B/ — [ M
& A 7 # A #919,800,0000% A F & A
9,702,000 7T (20204 : 33,041,000) £y
SLBRMEEB TR -

AN ERMREM R ZHEE R B
FHERRMERBELEDEZR
HIHERTS A L& TFEMA TIRTT -

The Group as lessor AEEEREEA
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Property rental income earned duringthe MRERBE 2 EH S

year A 32,815 38,957
Less: Outgoings B (1,459) (1,435)
Net rental income HE WA FE 31,356 37522

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as
follows:

ABEBNREREKEEERENRTWET

2021 2020

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F R 33,124 29,325
In the second year F-FER 8,200 28,682
In the third year E=FRN 1,040 s

42,364 58,007
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The Group as lessor (Continued)

Included in the above, undiscounted lease payments
receivable on leases are amounts receivable from the
Eminence Group:

Within one year —FR
In the second year FFEN
In the third year E=FR

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum
of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer's monthly contributions are
calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to
a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”).
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
mandatory contributions upon their retirement at the age of
65, death or total incapacity.

The aggregate employers’ contributions which have been
dealt with in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounted to HK$681,000 (2020: HK$719,000).

AEBEERHBEA®SE)

BREELXF  RBANBEREKHE
ENRRREESLEENSE:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TFET
2,496 1,040
2,496 =
1,040 o
6,032 1,040

AREBREBEET LR HMEQTE K
B 2EBBESFE -

REEeE T EEERESAH
& H A% K &% AH1,5008 7T EE
WrAERELENMNMR - BEXZEAH
HELEEEZBRAG S EH K%
% i % 41,5007 7T ([58 #l 4 51 ) -
EER65EBRE - ST T2 E KL
TR N - ATZHE XSS MEHRRK
2100% °

H E2021%3A8318 It F E B 18 %
[ B2 {E = 34 % 5681,0007 T
(20204F : 719,000/ 7T) °



On 5 July 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 El
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. Under the 2012 EI Scheme, the directors of the
Company may at their absolute discretion grant options
to all directors (including any executive and non-executive
directors), full-time employees and consultants of the Group
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The 2012 EI Scheme
is valid for ten years commencing 5 July 2012, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 El Scheme are to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 El
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the
date of adoption of 2012 EI Scheme. The overall limit on the
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2012 El
Scheme and other share options schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates shall be subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of
the Company issue and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant
of options shall be subject to shareholders’ approval with the
connected persons of the Company abstaining from voting.

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

MR2012F7A68 AR B B B & — 18
B8 A% 5t 8 ([20124F ok & B0 B8 B8 AR b
ETEID) o AR R20126F ok & BB BE AR
E AR EFARENBERAME
EFZTEREAMRATRIENTES)
AEBZ2BES RBEMKDERE -
LAREEARRR 2 B 1D ° 20124 5k & B
R AT BB IE LA H M 5 e B 3k
&k & BIM201267A6R #£ 51 + &
W—EHEM -

20124 5k 3% B I B R 1 2 81 5 7 5 D
FOERSRERNRASDARL
1D 2 EEAGARATRERR Y
BRI -

A R2012F X BB IRER S A
EREERETUTEERT &
BRMHEE  TEBANR2012FKE
ERERETERMNBBZEETR
310% ° 7] 720124 5k & B B B8 % 4
ERARBREMBRESEMED
BRHBESARITEZBIRETUITER
BOZROBEZERE LR T8
BAREEITRMI0% -

MARREMES  EBTHRAER
FERERTARESAZHE AR
LB EEBRE HEARGSARAE
TIEMTEENME - MEARRETE
BREKBIENTESTHEARES S
BB ARNTABERE mEE
HERBEABBA AIZBALER
EREEEZAMEBREETFERE
BOIRBETZERMDAE  BEAR
FIEEITRM0I%  RIBBERE XK
HRHRBIATZEARERMINZ
AREIRHBRmEFEZRDBER
#15,000,0008 LI - L EE—FE D
BREADNSRE 2 E  MARF
ZHABANTEAERRERERE -
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Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of options in excess of the limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval with such grantee and his associates
abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under the 2012
El Scheme is determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall end on a date which is not later than ten
years from the date of grant of the options. At the time of
grant of the share options, the Company must (a) specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised in whole or in part, and (b)
specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an
offer for grant of share options is HK$1.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
of the 2012 El Scheme shall be no less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer; (i) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 El Scheme or
exercised during both years.

X EXRF 2 REIT - I A28 A
AR AEARAERORERGRH
ZEERBEERETERRRTEZ
BRE)ETEREBETRAEETZ
Bhas THREBERAARADETKR
01% - FRE-—FREBEAZ LR
ZBBRBARGRRIAE  MARA
REABBABERRAERERE -

202 K EERBREZITEHRHAN
NRAEEGRTE BEATERRLBE
BEEREFFIOFZESER - REH
BAER - ANRR] WA ) E B R
EHXMOTEZAFEZZEHR
(wmA) MoOERABREZDHIBD
TEZABATR I FERRER -
BEMRLBREZENENRER

BT e

20124 7k & B R BB A i 5t 8 2 (T 4
EERBZABEIBIRIOINED
BEIRBRXAMZEBRERMIAR
ARORBIAZKRHE: (BRE
WMAMMAEERE REIMZE
HBERMAIARBRORERTZ
FHUYHE ARG AR B R E
HWEREEURSERLE) -

PR EF E B E R B2012F K EE R
BREAINBREEROLITE -



The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

TRESAEERAREEDZ AR
28 BERLRERLEY - KA
RAEHZABHANRLAES
RERBLRERTHEAAEE
AR RERZKAREED L

flows from financing activities.

Lease Dividend
liabilities payable
HEBE EAERE
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
At 1 April 2019 12019F4A18 2,390 —
Bank borrowings raised E£FTET — —
Repayment of bank borrowings BB RITEE — =
Repayment of lease liabiities ~ EEHEAE (1,236) —
Interest paid BF 8 (105) —
Dividend paid ERRE — (4,566)
Repayment to a non-controlling 88 ¥ —fir ¥ 1%
shareholder k® — —
Advance from a non-controling ~ —fZJFE AR & %
shareholder - -
1,049 (4,566)
Non-cash changes: FREEE:
Interest expense on bank RITBEZHE
borrowings ik — =
Addition of lease liabilities HEAEEM 107 =
Interest expense on lease REAEHE
liabilities f % 105 -
Dividend declared (note 77) BEMRE
(Bt - 4,566
At 31 March 2020 12020637318 1,261 -
Bank borrowings raised EERTER - -
Repayment of bank borrowings B B R1THEE - -
Repayment of lease liabiities ~ BEAEEE (816) -
Interest paid ERFIE (45) =
Advance from anon-controlling ~ —fZ3F R R & %
shareholder - -
400 -
Non-cash changes: ¥H288):
Interest expense on bank RITEEZFE
borrowings B% - =
Addition of lease liabilities HEAGEM 65 -
Interest expense on lease HEBRZHE
liabilities E53 45 -
At 31 March 2021 12021434318 510 -

A B2
FivE °

Amount due
Secured to a non-
Interest bank  controlling
payable borrowings shareholder Total
FEft—1u
BER  #BR
ERHNE  HRTER  HREEE ag
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
674 1,285,984 101,009 1,390,057
— 257803 — 257803
= (115,966) = (115,966)
= = = (1,236)
(47284) = = (47389)
= = = (4,566)
= = (17600) (17600)
— — 6,939 6,939
(46,610) 1,427821 90,348 1,468,042
47029 365 — 47394
— — — 107
— — — 105
— — — 4,566
419 1,428,186 90,348 1,520,214
- 830,329 - 830,329
- (786,576) - (786,576)
= = = (816)
(29,698) - - (29,743)
= - 10,940 10,940
(29,279) 1,471,939 101,288 1,544,348
31,842 528 - 32,370
- - - 65
= - - 45
2,563 1,472,467 101,288 1,576,828
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group had the
following transactions with the Eminence Group:

Rental income HalA
Management fee income EBEEBRA
Consultancy fee income BHEBRA

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director and substantial shareholder
of the Company, is also a director of Eminence.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group holds
convertible notes issued by Eminence, details of which
are set out in note 18(c).

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits EHEERT
Salaries and other benefits HeRkHMET

Retirement benefits scheme IROKE A EF &
contributions K

The Group has been providing accommodation to Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu for use by her and her family members
including residential units and carparking spaces
provided to Mr. Koon Chun Ting, a son of Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and a director of subsidiaries of the Company, and
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy free of rental and charges for
as long as they are employed by the Group. Details of
the arrangement are set out in note 9(a)(ii).

(a)

(b)

(c)

R A B MARMWEN  RF
N AREESUSEETOT
X5

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET TFET
2,496 2,496
420 420

801 —

BERKL ARAIEERTE

M20215F K202053A31H @ &
EEFEEHRsLUBETZATBRERE
& FRBEI R E180) °

FEEE AR ZHM

EFNEMIBEEXRERSF
NZBEmT:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
19,603 18,912
354 336
19,957 19,248

AEBERBEREERRLLE
ERBEBRZREKREBER
YWREERELRE  EERLLH
RFNBEARAMBARNES
AREAMRMEAREZEFEEE
UNEEMN WRBEIERAN
SENHEARENER - BH
It 22 B ) 5 15 B R S 9(a) i)



(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Compensation of key management
personnel (Continued)

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and the
executive directors, respectively, having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

In January 2011, the Company entered into an
employment agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee
to act as general manager of the Company. The
employment agreement, which constitutes a
connected transaction, commenced on 21 February
2011 but may be terminated by either party at any
time by three months’ notice. The monthly salary has
been adjusted twice to HK$180,000 with effect from 1
April 2017. The remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as
general manager of the Company during the year was
HK$2,600,000 (2020: HK$2,600,000) and was included
in the “compensation of key management personnel”
in (c) above.

Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
who is a director of the Company. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu also
holds 21.20% (2020: 19.09%) equity interest of the
Company through an entity wholly-owned by her.

During the year, the Group received rental income
totalling HK$240,000 (2020: HK$234,000) from certain
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy.

During the year, the Group paid HK$718,000 (2020:
HK$1,750,000) to Wing Yee Football Team Company
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Koon Wing Yee,
which is recognised in profit or loss as “advertising”.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
paid HK$3,311,000 to Easyknit Charitable Foundation
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy. During the year ended
31 March 2021, the Group has received a refund of
donation of HK$2,400,000 from Easyknit Charitable
Foundation Limited. Such amounts were net off against
“donations” in profit or loss.

2020/214F ¥
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

FEEBABZHM R

EFRETBETBRABZMED
FEFHEZEERATERTRR
BERALTZRERTSBE M

B -

R2011F1H  ARAIEEKE KL
KRN ERRE BEREALXA
Azl E - ZEAHS B
KR8 E R 5 201192/ 21H
s BRREREA—FTRE
MEBEAETFT=EABMAMELIL -
A % &AM IR E180,000/8 7T
E2017F4A1BE M - BEXE L
ERFRNEABRRRIBIKIRE 2
B & %2,600,000/%8 T (20204 :
2,600,000/ 7T) - REBEE MU
FEBEZIZBEE AS 2B
ﬁq o

BEXEXLEAEIHR LT ZE
B HAEARAES - FELUHLK
THhEB—RHE2EBEAEZE
B2 4% AN QN F)21.20% (20204 ¢
19.09%) Bz AN #E 2= o

RERN AEEBRBREREKR LT
REAMZLtETOHR 2HS
U A& 240,000 7T (20204 -
234,000/ 7T) °

RERN - AEB 718,000 7T
(20204F : 1,750,000 JT) F 7k &
REBERAR  —HEKEL
EElz AT RIEEERAIE
i

R & E2020F3A31H I F & -
N & @ % £3,311,000% T F K
ERE=HEcGERAA — M
MEEHRZLIREAMEZ LI
#l 2 A& - N E2021F3A31
BIEFE AEEBWEKEZ
EREceARAREENEBR
2,400,000 L - ZE L BB
w2 B e -
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes secured bank borrowings disclosed in note 29
and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, accumulated
profits and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and raising or repayment of
bank borrowings.

Constance Capital (see note 22) is regulated by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission and is required
to comply with the financial resources requirements
according to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R"). Management closely
monitors, on a daily basis, Constance Capital’s liquid capital
level to ensure compliance with the minimum liquid capital
requirement under the SF(FR)R. Constance Capital has no
non-compliance of the capital requirement imposed by the
SF(FR)R during the year.

RHRAEE NS T E B TS E A
BoOAEEHEBAAETER B8
5 808 R B 4 84 BT A TR
REFRESKER - KRE2ERE
FHEBEFERIETE -

AEENEARBERSERFEEF
BREENMF2Z2EERRITEER
REN—fFEREREE FRE
RERBRERAARKRREGED
ETERBRCBTERA REEN R
e

ARARBEEERRAEARE - ER
R — BN EEEEEAKNAR
EXAMBBERR REEFNES
AEBEKEBIRMNBE - BHITHARN
REEREERTEE  ATFEHER
BARRE -

hHEBR(RMF22) IR EBEFR
HEEKERLZEQREERAEST
BREFEESNPRE(MBER) KA
(FEHEBE(WMERER) KAz 8
HEREKR - EBEBGHEYERL
%§$Zum§bi§\§ﬂ<¥uﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ

%‘&Hﬁ (Eﬁﬂzﬁ/ﬁ)fﬁﬁ”ZE—ﬂimu
@Jéﬁi%* RERNLIEERL &L
HeRrkHE(MHBERRAZE



a.

Categories of financial instruments a.

Financial assets
Amortised cost
— Trade and other receivables
— Other debt instruments at
amortised cost
— Loans receivable
— Bank balances and cash

FVTPL
— Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTOCI
— Debt instruments at FVTOCI

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
— Trade and other payables
— Amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder
— Secured bank borrowings

2020/214F ¥
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SMIAZER
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
— B S R E M EWRIE 30,992 4,351
—REERAEZEM
BERITA 15,209 50,045
—EWER 143,016 236,751
— RTEHR LIRS 308,222 117,920
497,439 409,067
BRAFEFAEZE
—BRAFEFABRREZS
BEE 360,322 172,858
RAFEFAEMEEmK S
—ERATEFAEMLEE
s BB ITA 11,770 29,543
cREes
— B R HEEARIE 21,805 43,841
— N —{IE R ERE S
5} 101,288 90,348
— BEBIRTTREE 1,472,467 1,428,186
1,595,560 1,562,375
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include other
debt instruments at amortised cost, debt instruments at
FVTOCI, trade and other receivables, loans receivable,
financial assets at FVTPL, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder, secured bank borrowings and
lease liabilities. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to certain bank balances, bank
borrowings and variable-rate loans receivable.
The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loans receivable
and other debt instruments at amortised cost.
The Group has not used any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to such interest rate risk,
however, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary
action when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

MR REREERRERBXR

AEEBZTESRHIABREIR
B A EZEMERTA
BEAFEFAEMAZEAKIE Z
BRHLTE  BZREMERGIE
ERWER - BAFEFAEBR
Zﬁﬂﬁ?‘ﬁﬁm%&ﬁi*
B REMBEMNKE - B —AL
é‘Hszﬂxﬁﬁ%ﬁoﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BEELAHEEE - ZSEeRT
ﬁZﬁFE&@FW@W?W°
ﬁMﬁiﬂIEﬁ&ZH

REZSEREBE 2 BX E'J%X’i'J
WT°”@F BRERZSE
[2 Bz DA T 1R 3 B K B R HE B R
@E%ﬁ°

%
(i) FEE

Kﬁl% BRETIRT
mer - RITEERFZRE
J-lyj)fav\ziﬁiumifu?ﬂ
“°$E@ﬁ%xﬁﬂ
Mﬁwg R 2B R R
W°$¢l1&ﬁﬁ%
Eﬂﬁié%uﬂﬁ%ﬂ
ZEfkE - AM EREE
@ﬂWHA&%%FEﬁ
HESAMNEXEARNIE
TEHRBREMBEEITE °



Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
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The Group's exposure to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from bank

borrowings.

Total interest revenue/income from financial
assets that are measured at amortised cost is as

follows:

Interest revenue
Financial assets at amortised
cost
Other income
Financial assets at amortised
cost
Debt instruments at FVTOCI

Total interest income

PN &
HEHEKN AN EZS
MEE

H Al e A
HMBHR A EZS
MEE
BAFEFAEMLE
mR S EHTA

MBI AEER

B 75 LB B R EAR IR BUR (4

w5 E B ()
(i) 7 EmE 5 (&)

AEERERABMEZHNEX
RBERAMEZRBE
TERBREE -SBAFL-
AEBzZREREMNEKR
RETEEPRERTEE
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BBHEKAGFEZERE
EZMBWRE RN EHE
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2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
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13,726 23,487
1,331 7216
670 1,979

15,727 32,682
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b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for certain bank borrowings and variable-
rate loans receivable. The analysis was prepared
assuming these balances outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. If interest rate had been 50 basis
points (2020: 50 basis points) higher or lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 would
decrease or increase by HK$6,120,000 (2020:
loss for the year would increase or decrease by
HK$5,924,000).

The bank balances are excluded from the
sensitivity analysis as the management of the
Group considers that the interest rate fluctuation
is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(ifi)

Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the group entities’
foreign currency denominated monetary assets at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

uss

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on US$ against HK$ for the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets. Under the pegged
exchange rate system, the financial impact on
exchange difference between HK$ and US$
will be immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been prepared.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy to eliminate the currency
exposures. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its
investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI,
perpetual bonds, equity-linked notes and
listed equity securities measured at FVTPL.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles and the Group has a
team to monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise. The Group's price risk is concentrated on
equity securities listed in Hong Kong and these
investments are diversified into several different
industries.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iir)  Price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to price risk at
the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the debt instruments at FVTOCI
had been 10% higher/lower, FVTOCI reserve for
the year ended 31 March 2021 would increase/
decrease by HK$1,177,000 (2020: HK$2,954,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of debt
instruments at FVTOCI.

If the prices of the equity-linked notes had been
10% higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2021 would increase/decrease
by HK$520,000 (2020: not applicable) as a result
of changes in fair value of equity-linked notes.

If the prices of the listed equity securities had
been 10% (2020: 10%) higher/lower, post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2021
would increase/decrease by HK$11,911,000
(post-tax loss for 2020: decrease/increase by
HK$5,128,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties are primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, bank balances, loans receivable,
other debt instruments at amortised cost and debt
instruments at FVTOCI. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risk associated with its financial assets, except
that the credit risks associated with loans receivable,
other debt instruments at amortised cost and margin
receivables are mitigated because they are secured
over marketable securities or properties.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Except for financial assets at FVTPL, the Group
performed impairment assessment for financial assets
under ECL model. Information about the Group's credit
risk management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating

AR 15 B 57 AR

Low risk

1K =

Medium risk

B

High risk

= [ B

Loss

&5 18

Write-off

Description
i

The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts

%fJEFE']LZ@J_L R ERUE - B I AT
B EE a’)\ 18

Debtor frequently repays but usually settles
after due date

BERALEEFRELERIHAAREERE

There have been significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition through
information developed internally or external
resources

7 BN EP N EB B R BUAS B B KR A E
B2 kB 106 i R DA SR B E L

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BRBBTIRAEEFERE DA

There is evidence indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
EEBRETEBABRAREMBEREER
REBRREERIKE AR

b. MIEEREERRERBUR5)

1= B 7 B2 R Bt 1B 5F 18 (4)
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HBEEATER :

Trade and

lease receivables
EZRHEEEK
MIE

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired
B B B e 78 B
1: BEEE— 3k

B {E

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired
B 1E B B e 72 B
5 SEEE—FE

B E

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

B8 5 2 e 7B AR
EEEE—FE
ERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

# & B B 19 78 HR
EEEBE—FE
A

Amount is written
off

WHBRE R

Financial assets
other than

trade and lease
receivables
ESZREERKK
Bz eREE

12m ECL

REAEHEE
&5 18

12m ECL

REAEHEER
& 18

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

B {8 2 H B 3B 1A
EEBR—3FE
BERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

A F B g9 78 8
FEEEBE—EE
B

Amount is written
off

WHEBREE
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b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MKEBEERZERBEE®)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEERBEFEE)
(Continued)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of TRHAIIAEBESHEEZE
the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL ERR WEBTEHEEES
assessment: BT
External credit  Internal credit ~ 12mor Loss rate  Gross carrying
2021 Notes rating rating lifetime ECL range amount
BE BEEEFE AYEENR wEAIRERHNEHEEESR FEZEE BREE
HK$900
77

Debt instruments at FVTOCI
RATERARM2AUEZERIE

Investrents in listed bonds 19 Bi) N/A 12m ECL 26% 12,076
RERLHES TER NEARBEEER
Financial assets at amortised cost
REMAATEZSREE
Loans receivahle 2! N/A Low risk 12m ECL 0%to 8% 126,035
ERER TBR EER NEARBEEER 0%28%

N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 62% to 100% 97758

TER i BERANEHEERE-GERE  62%2100%
Bank halances % Al to Prime-1 N/A 12m ECL N/A 308,216
it MESEE1  TER NEARHEERE TER
Other debt instruments at amortised cost 2 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 25% 16,009
REHAATE AMERIA TBR Bk NEARBEEER
Trade receivables 2% N/A (ii Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired N/A 2,828
BARY TER EERANEHEERA TER

-FEERA

Other receivables 2% NIA (i) 12m ECL N/A 28,164

EfER TER EARAREER FER
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Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

b. MHEREEEERBR®)

1= B 7 B2 R Bt 1B 5F 18 (4)

(Continued)
Externalcredit  Internal credit 2mor Lossrate  Gross carrying
2020 Notes  rating rating lifetime ECL fange amount
fE NBEEIR APGEEFS nBAIEERFNREEEEE BEEHE BEEE
HK$ 000
FAT
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
ROTEFARHR2ENEZERIA
Investments in listed bonds 19 B N/A 12mECL 2.51% t0 736% 30,644
RER WS TER NEARBEERR 251%%7.36%
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHHATEZSRER
Loans receivahle 2! N/A Low risk 12mECL 36%t06% 244,679
EHER ER [E &R NEARHEERE 36%Z6%
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-mpaired 100% 25,068
TR B ERRBNEEEEER-EERA
Bank balances 2 AtoPrime! N/A 12m ECL N/A 117919
RiTEH NEREES  THER NEAREEEEER AR
Qther debt instruments at amortised cost 2 N/A Low risk 12mECL 4% 16,015
REHAATEAMERIA TR i NEARHEERE
2 N/A High risk Lifgtime ECL — not creditimpaired 26.78% 41,906
TR 2RR SRR EEEER-FRENE
Trade receivables 2% NA [ Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired NA 279
EAkY TR CERBNEREEEE—FRENE TR
QOther receivables i) N/A {] 12mECL N/A 1,652
Ly ER NEARHEERE TR
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-mpaired 100% 1819
TR B ERRBNEEEEER-EERA
Notes: i

(i) For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group
estimates with reference to external credit rating and
forward-looking information such as forward-looking
macroeconomic information that is available without

undue cost or effort.

0 HEBEEEREIEMS £
SEZ2EINMEEFRMER
BATETVLERARBHE
Bz A1 E 15 B B0 40 Bl A 1
LEREER -
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) For the purpose of internal credit impairment
assessment, the Group considers if there is any past
due record or other relevant information available
without undue cost or effort to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Debt instruments at FVTOC/

The Group assesses the credit risk of debt instruments
at FVTOCI at the reporting date. The Group's debt
instruments at FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds
that are graded by credit-rating agencies as per globally
understood definitions and certain bonds without
external credit rating are assessed by internal credit
ratings.

5t 755 L B ' FEEAR I U (40
1= B 7 B K el 18 &F 18 ()

HraE: (&)

(i) BABEEREFEMS A
SEEZEREEENBEREE
B EARE T B ER AR
BHEER 2 B EEE KA
HEERBEAERARE
BARELETT -

# 2 FIEFARME EK 7
ZEFTA

AREEBRABREBBHIHIRAF
@?Aﬁmzﬁw s BT A
ZIEEERRK  AEEBRERQAFER
Aﬁﬁzﬁ%AZL%Iﬁz
EEREHEETAKBRES
HEMIERILZ EMES
mMEFIEENBEEFRZE
FRIAREEEFTRTME -

12m ECL
1218 A 78 H
FEER
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2019 7R2019F 4818 1,505
Changes due to financial assets recognised asat 1 HR £ @& E )3”‘2019¢
April 2019 AR B
— Reversal upon redemption — & @ i %’é El (530)
— Impairment allowance recognised — TR (B 126
At 31 March 2020 20203 H31H 1,101
Changes due to financial assets recognised as at ~ H R & & & & 1K 202043 A
31 March 2020 R &
— Reversal upon redemption — 7 BE [0 B #5 5] (1,101)
New financial assets purchased FEACREE 306
At 31 March 2021 720214638318 306



Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans receivable

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation
to the gross carrying amount of loans receivable
amounting to HK$223,793,000 at 31 March 2021
(2020: HK$269,737,000) with 25% (2020: 43%) of the
balances secured by marketable securities with fair
values of HK$31,980,000 (2020: HK$57,090,000) or
properties with fair values of HK$24,451,000 (2020:
HK$110,000,000). The Group is not permitted to sell
or repledge the collaterals, if any, in the absence of
default by the borrower. There have not been any
significant changes in the quality of the collateral held
for the loans receivable. In addition, the gross carrying
amount of unsecured loan receivable amounting to
HK$59,600,000 (2020: HK$45,000,000) are with
personal guarantee. The largest borrower of the Group
by itself and together with the other four largest
borrowers of the Group accounted for approximately
25% and 68% respectively (2020: 19% and 57%
respectively) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31
March 2021. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has reviewed the recoverable amounts of
the loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment is made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk on loans receivable is significantly
reduced.

Included in the gross amount of loans receivables
are HK$72,700,000 due from a borrower and other
individuals (with personal guarantee from that
borrower). During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
management assessed such balances became credit-
impaired taking into account the relevant information
from public domain and has taken various actions
to recover the balances. At the end of the reporting
period, the management has requested the borrowers
to make settlements before maturity dates of the
loans and total settlements of HK$2,179,000 were
received from the borrowers subsequent to the end of
the reporting period. For the remaining balances, an
accumulated impairment loss of HK$50,144,000 was
recognised at 31 March 2021.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, an event of
default occurred in relation to the loans receivable
of gross amount of HK$40,000,000, accordingly the
related listed equity shares pledged were transferred to
the Group. The fair value of these listed equity shares
were HK$14,942,000 on the date of transfer. The
management of the Group closely monitors the credit
quality of loans receivable with remaining gross carrying
amount of HK$25,058,000 and an impairment loss of
HK$25,058,000 was recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 March 2020. At 31 March 2021, the
accumulated impairment loss for these loans receivable
amounted to HK$25,058,000 (2020: HK$25,058,000).

Bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability
of default is negligible as such amounts are receivable
from or placed in banks with good reputation.

M¥REEEEERBE(E)
1= Bz B K 6l 18 &7 18 ()

JEH B (&)

#H £2020F3A31H It FE © 4
% %840,000,0007% 7T 19 FE WX & 3K
BFEENEMH BUHERE
BLEmRECEELAEE -
ZELTRAREZAHNAF
8 514,942,000 70 - X E B &
BEZYERRRERNEE
g £ - B £2020F3A31H I+ F
€ - T & Bk @ 42 %8 525,058,000
7 7T &R B 5 $825,058,000/%8 7T
B R8s ER - N3A31H2021
F ZBERERNERFTHES
8 /525,058,000% 7T (20204 :
25,058,000 7T) °
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group assesses the credit risk of other debt
instruments at amortised cost at the reporting date.
The Group's other debt instrument at amortised cost
comprise the Secured Note and Junior Note which
was settled during the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Group has assessed by internal credit rating determined
by financial background of the issuer. During the
year ended 31 March 2021, a reversal of impairment
loss on other debt instruments at amortised cost
amounting to HK$1,650,000 (2020: impairment loss
of HK$4,353,000) was recognised in the profit or loss.
At 31 March 2021, the impairment allowances for
other debt instruments at amortised cost amounted to
HK$800,000 (2020: HK$7,876,000).
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HK$000
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At 1 April 2019 201954 A1H 3,623
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1 April 2019 2019F 4B HER
— Impairment allowance recognised — ERRNBESE 3,657
New financial assets originated or purchased SELANBENEREE 796
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31 March 2020 2020F3A31H
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade and lease receivables

The Group assess the credit risk of trade receivables
individually by estimation based on historical
observed default rates general economic conditions
of the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.

No allowance for impairment was made since the
directors of the Company consider that the ECL
allowance is insignificant.

Other receivables

During the year ended 31 March 2020, an impairment
loss on other receivables HK$1,819,000 was
recognised in the profit or loss (2021: nil).

No allowance for impairment was made for the
remaining balances since the directors of the Company
consider that the probability of default is minimal after
assessing the counterparties’ financial background and
creditability or the loss given default is minimal due to
sufficient collateral pledged.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations. The management
also monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

At 31 March 2021, the Group has available unutilised
bank loan facilities of HK$162,302,000 (2020:
HK$367,652,000).

B 75 LB B R EAR R UK ()

1= B 3 B2 K Bl 1B AT 1% (%)

ESRHEERENIE

ZIK’EIL‘LTE%‘?ET‘%E‘JE’]ii’J
CEBARERETRN K
Z&i—ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬁ#&%ﬁﬂa Al
A FE ORI 7 () o 1T 2 B Ml R AT
HREUERNERRR -

MRARAEZRREHREE
BEBEEMINRE  RIALEEF
R E B -

LAt W

H E202063A318 REXER
BMRZEMER R ZREEIE
71,819,000/ 7T (20214F : &) -

HRARRESEFNEH T ZW
SESEREBRAATHNEK
ﬁ%f@%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁ’]%%ﬂé%
R MBRENZAREMERD
E&%Tﬁéﬁ—l—mlﬁi\lﬂﬂﬂ?tljﬁﬂﬁﬁé
e

REBEZEE

REDECARERME AKX
AERRERERERARN
KF2RERERAR S UMAL
B EERE ERENER
BEZBMILRKRLETER

fEe 3K

R2021F3A31B KREBEXRT
FSRITEREEE A162,302,000%8
7€ (20204F : 367,652,000587T) ©



Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

Liquidity risk tables
Weighted
average  Ondemand
effective  orlessthan 3 months to
interest rate 3 months 1year
mE¥Y REDAS
EBfz  OR3ER  3MWAZRIE
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET FAT
2021 2021
Tradeandother ~ BHREAE N/A
payables e8] TEA 14,330 7475
Amountduetoa  JEff—fi3E 2
non-controlling IR REE N/A
shareholder TER 101,288 -
Secured bank BERROE
horrowings g 143 157,319 263,177
Lease liabilities BB 4.32 158 368
273,095 271,020
2020 2020
Tradeand other ~ EHREME N/A
payables HE T 16,901 26,940
Amountduetoa  FEFf—fI3EME
non-controling  RREEE N/A
shareholder TER 90,348 =
Secured bank EERRTRE
borrowings g 3.35 773,649 73,057
Lease liabilties ~ HEEE 465 24 674

881,122 100,671

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

1to
5 years

125%

HK$ 000
TAT

911,522

9,522

413,418
426

413,844

5t 755 L B ' B EAR IR UK (40

MEE EE B (E)

TERHANAEEZEBAEBELZ
RABHWBBMR - BT E
THMABEMNS X DEAKE
AREBRNFTNREZNHPENE
MABANBAREREI R -

& & AR R

Total Carrying

Over undiscounted  amounts at
Syears  cashflows 31 March
AFERE  R3ANA

BB5E REAR ZREE
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

21,805 21,805

101,288 101,288

217372 1,549,390 1,472,467
- 526 510

217372 1,673,009 1,596,070

= 43,841 43,841

= 90,348 90,348

278,188 1,538,312 1,428,186
= 1,324 1,261

278,188 1,673,825 1,663,636
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c. Fair value

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The Board has delegated the valuation
work to the management to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. The management reports the
findings to the directors of the Company regularly
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value.

AT

(i)

RBEEMEERZRF
EitBZ2ErEEEHE
EZRFlE

AEBEHDEHMEERNR
EHREAFEFE- &
ZeCREEIEZAER
BIEE - AMEERFER
EMEEHERMME A
B -

EhHFFATFER  A%HE
BUREATHSAERH
B-MEBEIEGSE Q&R
ABE AEEZREX=
TEERMGEMETHE -
EHEEABRIAMGEE
MEZmAE UNBYEE
B A E R R R A g A(E -
EEEEHRARAES
BERAEER UWEER
FEEBHREA -



c. Fair value (Continued)

(i)

2020/214F ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3H31H 1- F &

c. AFE®E
RIBEEMEREZNF

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (i)
that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (Continued)

The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques

and key inputs used).

Financial assets

Fair value at 31 March

LHEE AFER3A3MA
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$000
FEx FAET
Financial assets at FVTPL
BROTEIARGEZEREE
— Listed equity securities 142,645 61,41
— LHRAES
— Convertible notes 199,944 85,914
—RRER
— Equity-linked notes 6,231 N/A
—REHBEE TER
— Life insurance policy 11,502 11,194
—A\ERE
— Perpetual bonds N/A 14,339
—KkAEH TER
Debt instruments at FVTOCI 1,770 29,543

RATEFARMRZERE 2
E%IA

Fair value

hierarchy key inputs

DYESR FEAERERAA

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an

active market

F1R REBMSHRHE

Level 3 Black-Scholes model with

(note (3)) Trinomial Tree method
(note 18(c))

3% iR —HRBREAR

(Wite)  =ZXEEWH180)

Level 2 Based on fair value of
underlying assets which

are substantially derived
from Level 1input

EVE ERREE1REANER

BEMRYE

Level 2 Quoted asset value provided
by a financial institution
(note (b))

EVE TREBRM AEEE
BEMW D)

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an

active market

LR REBDHH R HE

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an

active market

0
=

REBTHHA R HE

EifBZFEEHZHE
EZRFEGE
NERE AR WA EE &
FSeMEERAFELEHE
R ZEERAERE
BEBRA)ZEH -

Valuation techniques and ~ Significant unobservable

inputs

EXTUEERA

N/A

T

Volatility from 60.71%
(2020: 56.74% 10
76.66%)

8 M60.71% (2020% :
56.74% £ 76.66%)

N/A

7

TiEH

N/A

=

am

N/A

TER
N/A

TER
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c. Fair value (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

Notes:

(@) A slight increase in the volatility used in isolation
would result in a slight increase in the fair value
measurement of the convertible notes, and vice
versa.

(b)  Quoted asset value provided by a financial
institution represents the fair value of the
underlying investments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and
3 in both years.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis. The directors
of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

AR EE)

(i) RBEELEEMEERZRLF
EitBZ2ErEEEHE
EZRFEE
Hat -

@ EBEERNRIERRE
M EH AR ER 2
NFEFEBS LA
[ 2 IR -

(b SEBWIEEZFMBA
EEEDEBRA LA
FE -

\

RREFEE » B4 - FE28%
NEIH zEWEERE -

(i) WHERBEZMEERZRF

BBzt HMEERZHA
BEZRFE
TREENEBRAGBNAFE
ERBHFRRES AR DMIRIE—
REMANEEELETE - AQ7
EERANKEEMBHRRER
MEREEREREGENET
BEAXFERE -
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Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Ace Winner Investment Limited
EXRERRAR

Amazing Universe Limited

Arrowfield Investments Limited

Asia Million Investment Limited

BERBERALT

Charming Flash Limited

Coconut King Limited

Constance Capital Limited
WEEXBRAT

Day Glory Investment Limited

ARZEERDA

Easyknit Properties Management Limited

XENEERBRAF

Everjet Investment Limited

KERBERDA

Flourishing Day Limited
EEABRAR

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
operation

ERRL/
RIREEHE

Hong Kong

BVI/Hong Kong
REBRLES/ A%

BVI/Hong Kong
REBRAES /A%

Hong Kong

BVI/Hong Kong
RBRAES/BE

BVI/Hong Kong
EBRLHE/BE

Hong Kong
BR

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

BVI/Hong Kong
RERREE /AR

Nominal value
of issued share/
registered capital

B/
ERBAEE

Ordinary HK$1
LRRIET
Ordinary US$1
LRRIET
Ordinary US$1
LRRIET
Ordinary HK$1
LARIET
Ordinary US$1
LtakiEn
Ordinary US$1
LtaRIET

Ordinary
HK$46,000,000
1% 1746,000,0007 7T

Ordinary HK$1
LaRIET
Ordinary HK$10,000
L #AR10,000 T

Ordinary HK$10,000
£3#1%10,000% T

Ordinary US$1
TaRIER

20214 K% 2020%3A31H » KA &=+
EMBARZHBUOT:

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/ registered capital

held directly/indirectly by

the Company
ARAAEE/

BEERERTRE/

ERBRAEELS

2021 2020
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

EX 33

Investment in securities
BHLE

Property investment

nERE

Investment in securities
BHRE

Property investment

nERE

Loan financing
EXEE

Investment in securities

EHRE
Investment in securities
EHRE

Property investment

nERE

Property management

NEEE

Property development

NEER

Loan financing
BEFRE
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Proportion of nominal

value of issued share
Nominal value capital/ registered capital
of issued share/ held directly/indirectly by

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
KAREE/

HREL/ BRfT/ HBEBBERARE/

WEARER RYRBE Y dMBRAEE o AR A 1 TEXH
2021 2020

Fortunate Master Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

ABRAHEE/BE LaRIET REBRK
Global Chance Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
REERERERRA ABRIHEE/BE TBRIET NELER
Gold Winner Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
FRREBRAA B EBRIET ErRE
Golden Star Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property management
THMEREFRAT ) EBRRIET nEER
Good Merit Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property holding
ERERAERAA N EERIBT REER
Goodco Development Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EXERBERAA EBRABE/EA ETBERIET REER
Grandcorp Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
RERERARAA 'R EERIET NERE
Great East Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
KEREFRAR BR EERIET NEER
Great Sail Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
BRRRERLA EBRABE/ER FaRIER EXRE
Happy Light Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
HEREFRAA EERLBE/BA ERRIET NEER
Main Profit Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
HEREAFRAA ) FERIER EFRE
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment and

investment in securities

SHERERAT ) LERVBT NEREREHFRE
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Place of incorporation/

e PR wRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £20214#3431H 1 F &

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Nominal value capital/ registered capital

establishment and of issued share/ held directly/indirectly by
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
RAREE/
HRERL/ BRfT/ HBEBBERARL/
WEARER RURBEY dMBRAEE AR A E LA TEXH
2021 2020
On Channel International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
ZERRBRAA s FRRIET NERE
Pacific Land Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BxREBRAA N FRRIET NEER
Pacific Way Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BEREBRAA N FRRIET NEER
Planetic International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$?2 100% 100%  Loan financing
% LaR2ET BEXmE
Quick Access Enterprise Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
EBRANE/EA LaRET EXEE
Richstar Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
REZRERAA N TaRIER NEER
Success Active Limited (“Success Active”)  BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
RERRES /AR EERIET NEER
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
EBRABE/EA FBERIET NEER
Trump Elegant Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property development
IEREBRRA N EBAR10,0008 T NEER
Well Honest Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
RARBEARRAT N LaRIAT NERE
Well Smart Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 80% 80%  Property development
RRERERAR ) LARI00% T NEERE
Winsor Miles Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERABE/BE TBERIET REER
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Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Name of subsidiary operation
HRERL/
HEAR AR RUIREE Y
Widetop Investment Limited Hong Kong
AERERRAA )

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the

Company result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

FEXEWR FTEEEME
Investment holding Hong Kong
®EER EE

Inactive Hong Kong
IEE BB B

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31

March 2021 or 31 March 2020.

No financial information of the non-wholly owned subsidiary
is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as the

non-controlling interest is not material to the Group.

Principal place of business

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Nominal value capital/ registered capital
of issued share/ held directly/indirectly by
registered capital the Company Principal activities
KAREE/
BRfT/ HBEBBERARE/
dMRAEE AR AEELS TEXH
2021 2020
Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
ERRIER NEER
A EFIRABIRZ ARABMNERR -
BRERXRAREFCZER FEXE

NZFEEIBRNASEEEZ T EH
Do MARREFTZERR R RHE
HHBEAR cHFBEEEMBRNIT
£ o

RBEPRR  ARAHAEMHEAE
Bms TEERZHMBRA - thFH
BRBAIKEINBEELEE - WEME
RAEAIZEBEXHBHREBOT:

Number of subsidiaries

MEARRE
2021 2020
20 20
6 6
26 26

BB B A TIN2021%E3A31H 82020
F3ANBHITEMMEBLES -

MAFERESEAEEYTEA
MEMANEANBRERREE2EM
BAAZHBER -



Save as disclosed otherwise in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following non-cash
transaction. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
acquired equity-linked notes for HK$160,192,000 (2020:
HK$46,001,000). These equity-linked notes were linked to
securities listed on the Stock Exchange. Subsequent to the
acquisition, certain equity-linked notes of HK$84,858,000
(2020: HK$25,537,000) were converted into listed equity
securities as the share price at date of maturity of the
underlying securities reached the strike price.

(a)

On 5 November 2020, Eminence and the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which, among other things, the Company
conditionally agreed to purchase, and Eminence
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued shares of
Above Ace Limited and Success Edge Limited, wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Eminence, of which the major
assets are properties held for development for sale.
And Eminence agreed to procure the assignment of
sale loans to the Group, at an aggregate consideration
of HK$1,100,000,000 (subject to adjustments).

On 30 April 2021, the Company and Eminence entered
into a termination agreement, which they agreed to
terminate the sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant
to it, amongst other things, Eminence shall refund the
deposits received of HK$10,000,000 to the Company.
The amount has been refunded on 14 May 2021.

Pursuant to the joint announcement issued by
Eminence and the Company on 11 February 2021, a
voluntary conditional cash offer was made by Altus
Investments Limited for and on behalf of the Group to
acquire all the issued shares of Eminence at share offer
price of HK$0.50 per share. The cash offer was closed
on 21 April 2021. At date of approval of consolidated
financial statements, the Group held approximately
74.76% of the issued share capital of Eminence
and accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group. The
directors of the Company are still assessing the
financial effects on the acquisition.

2020/214F ¥
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BRERAUBREZBEHREIN

ZNES

BAENUNTIHERERS - R E £2021
F3AN BLEFE AEEBEARSE
H £5 #% E160,192,00078 JT (20204 :
46,001,000 70) - ZEREH BT E
TERBR A EMmoEHFES - BA
% B/ T Ik =X 8 85 3% £84,858,000/%8
JC (20204 : 25,537,000/ jT) & & i
BEMRAE F EHEABZEERER
FISABEBNER -

M2020F11ABH » & W # AR
RFIVEEWHEZ  Bi(Ese
B ARABRGREREE - m
= W B G 4R E H S Above Ace
Limited & Success Edge Limited
BASLZ2EMBRAR  H
FEEEABELERRYE)
ZEHBEITRSG  mLURER
FEHHEEREETAEE - &
£ {& /41,100,000,000/%8 st (A T
FAE) -

MR2021F4A308 » A QA HF
IWET R IEhaE - EFREXRLE
BEEWHZ BUH(EdaRE) 5
L 78 # B U 3% £ 10,000,000/ 7T
RETARQA © ZKEER2021
F5A14BE M

B S IL B AR RQ F 202142
RA118 % fh a9 B & & # + Altus
Investments Limited & & £ & &
SERYEREBRUHRSELN
LARR 19 ZE 49 8 & A%0.50% 7T it
BEalLagesmkokse - Re
T 4B R2021F4H21H & 1E -
R BREMETIERE -
AEBEHESLEETRALY
7476% W ABREBAEER
WEBAR - AARIEBMETGE
WEEEMNMEZ -



2020/21 Annual Report

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £2021#3/31H 1 F &

On 25 May 2021, the Group has entered in to
agreement to subscribe and acquire 8% Tranche
B promissory notes (non-redeemable and non-
transferable) issued by an independent third party
in the aggregate principal amount of US$150 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,162.5 million) (the
“Notes”) for a total consideration of US$3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$23.3 million). The
maturity date of the Notes is 25 September 2025 and
interest rate is 8% per annum. Details of the transaction
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 25
May 2021 and 2 June 2021.

On 1 June 2021, Success Active, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, successfully
won the bidding in respect of acquisition of the
Chatham Road North Building under the public
auction held by the Lands Tribunal for the purpose
of property redevelopment. The consideration of the
remaining units to be paid the Group is approximately
HK$34,860,000. Details of the transaction are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 1 June 2021.

(c)

MR2021FE5H2508 » AN & B 5] i
BERURBREREABLFE =
7B 1T AN & # % &150,000,000
x T & ® 41,162,500,000
7 J0) Z8.0E B #E & % (1~ ] f&
EAEFATER(ESFD B8R
& /&3,000,000% JL(#8 & R 4
23,300,000 JT) » & & 2 B B
H A2025%9A258 K E F| X A
BE - X HGHFBHNARRA
8 52021958258 K202166 7
2B Z A o

MR2021F6A1H A2 & 2 [
¥ 2 & W B A 7] Success Active
FLHBEHREENR 2 AABE
T AR R AT U RE R BB b
AREETYEERZ A£EEH
BRTEUREINCREDN A
34,860,000 7L - K BFFIBEEHR
ANAF A AE2021F6A1H 2 2
i
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2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Non-current assets FERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries and amounts RHB R R R & Wbt
due from subsidiaries J& AR FIA 1,990,039 2,348,451
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEBZZSR
BE 11,502 11,194
Deposits Z& 10,000 e
2,011,541 2,359,645
Current assets mENE E
Other receivables E b e W SRR 161 140
Bank balances and cash RITEHRARE 297,738 19,850
297,899 19,990
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables HAb BT RIE 1,646 1,126
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHBY B A A A 966,574 995,742
Tax payable FEAS B IR — 732
Secured bank borrowings BEMETEE 32,442 1,366
1,000,662 998,966
Net current liabilities mEAEGEFE (702,763) (978,976)
Total assets less current liabilities BEBBERLDEE 1,308,778 1,380,669
Non-current liability FEmEBEE
Secured bank borrowings BHEMIETEER - 32,442
1,308,778 1,348,227
Capital and reserves BEARK G
Share capital [N 8,220 9,132
Reserves (note) & (H at) 1,300,558 1,339,095

1,308,778 1,348,227
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44. &xARZ BB AR R T
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: K aF -
Movements of the Company's reserves during the current and prior KA ZHEERFARBAFEZEHMNM
years are as follows: T
Share Capital  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus profits Total
RO EE BEARfE AR ES 3 “uE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FETL FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2019 #2019 4A1H 271,333 196,565 220,937 710,969 1,399,804
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEEREZEHA
expense for the year L BB = = = (56,143) (56,143)
Dividend paid EARE — — — (4,566) (4,566)
— — — (60,709) (60,709)
At 31 March 2020 #2020%3A318 271,333 196,565 220,937 650,260 1,339,095
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFBRZER
expense for the year LB - - = (1,867) (1,867)
Share repurchase and cancellation & {7 [2 & & S (36,670) - - - (36,670)
(36,670) - - (1,867) (38,537)
At 31 March 2021 #2021%3A318 234,663 196,565 220,937 648,393 1,300,558

227
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Financial Summary

MBERME

Year ended 31 March

B Z3A3MALEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FETT
Revenue R 529,475 331,521 830,347 63,633 323,382
(Loss) profit before briiar (B E)
taxation Y Al (219,885) 319,809 354,985 (298,936) 18,961
Taxation 18 (23,961) (22,646) (39,171) 877 2,968
(Loss) profit for the year ~ AKFEE (E18)
S A (243,846) 297163 315,814 (298,059) 21,929
(Loss) profit for the year ~ fE{5 A FE
attributable to: (E18)mF
— owners of the — KRR
Company 9 (243,846) 297163 315,959 (297,755) 22,308
— non-controlling — FEIE R
interest = — — (145) (304) (379)
(243,846) 297163 315,814 (298,059) 21,929
At 31 March
H3A318
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FET FET FE T FETT FETT
Total assets BE E 3,871,349 4,434,511 5,026,789 4,858,129 4,903,606
Total liabilities FEN=R (1,019,089)  (1,244,356) (1,479,439) (1,622,308) (1,673,161)
Net assets EEFE 2,852,260 3,190,155  3,647350 3,235,821 3,230,445
Equity attributable ZiNNET Y
to owners of the 1A
Company 2,852,260 3,190,155 3,547495 3,236,270 3,231,273
Non-controlling interest  3F 122 I # 25 e — (145) (449) (828)
Total equity BRE R 2,852,260 3,190,155 3,547.350 3,235,821 3,230,445
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MBERME

Notes:

(a)

On 1 April 2018, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. Accordingly, certain information for the years ended
31 March 2016, 2017 and 2018 which was prepared under HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and HKAS
18 “Revenue” may not be comparable to the years ended 31 March
2019, 2020 and 2021.

On 1 April 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 “Leases”.
Accordingly, certain information for the years ended 31 March 2016,
2017, 2018 and 2019 which was prepared under HKAS 17 “Leases”
may not be comparable to the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2021.

w it -

(a)

(b)

M2018F4H1H - AEEREREAUK

EEBFRERMIEINEBY KR
EEBFBHRIFLFAHKALl At » 1B
BEEBCHERNFRIMKEIAL  ER
Rt B8l REBH ST EAFISHEIK AR
SIHE E20164F - 20174 K 2018438311
IFFEMETER R EEMEE £20194F -
20204 K 2021F3A3MH It FEETHE -

MR2019F4A18 - AEBEERBEBYH
MELBFHEIAE] - At RIBEFB
CITEAF7HRIAE]FEME 2016
F - 20174 - 2018F k201943 A31H LEF
ERE T E R o] 8% 8 E 20200 &
2021 3A3IB I FELE -



Location

Block A on Seventh Floor and
Car Parking Space No. L11,
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan,

Kowloon

NERDESE BI85
T Z AR KL BN

Block B1 and portion of Block B
on Seventh Floor,

No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDEB B8R
18 ZB1E RBEE D

Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground Floor
together with showcase on
Ground Floor, First Floor

and Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,

No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,
Mong Kok, Kowloon
BB A TEE B1195%
EEEST

12 3RER
WIS —BR 2

Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
&8 iR 78 B 8505k T

Shops A and B on Ground Floor

and Shop C on First Floor, One Victory,

Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
FUBEAI XX H B FB15% - 1A%
M35k TANMBA R —1ECH

Car Parking Space No. 407,
4/F, Capital Centre, No. 151
Gloucester Road

B & T ITE15198

B AL 4075, B AL

Purpose

R®

Industrial

Iz

Industrial

I%x

Commercial

EES

Commercial

EES

Commercial

EES

Commercial

EES

2020/214F ¥

As at 31 March 2021 2021435315

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
WMaHemE
EAEE

(sqg. ft.)
(‘F7HR)

11,874

6,992

13,544

1,200

3,953

N/A

-
(e
i

Lease term

BAOEH

Medium

A

Medium

8

Medium

1]

Long

£ H

Medium

1]

Medium

& 5
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YA

As at 31 March 2021 #2021 35318

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. HEHEREWE

FOR SALE
Approximate Stage of
Location Purpose gross site area Lease term completion
it 1k A BOwREE BHOFH 5E B B BR
(sq. ft.)
(FHR)
1. Nos. 93, 93A, 95 & 95A Residential 9,800 Long Under development
Waterloo Road, Kowloon
NEEBE T Z B3 - F= & 8 EREP
93A5E - 955% R 95AGE
2. Various units of Residential 4,685 Long Not yet commence
Nos. 470, 472, 474, 476, 478
Chatham Road South, Kowloon
BE R Rl i A 4709% ~ 47257 - F= & 8 CENEES

4745% ~ 47657 ~ 47855 Z (A B L

231
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